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Financial Highlights
RIS

2020 2019
HK$ million HK$ million
BHEER BEAT
Revenue L'ON 310 214
Gross profit EF 64 67
Earnings/(loss) before interest expense and R F SR RBEAMAT, (FR)
tax (“EBIT")/(“LBIT”) (TEBIT)),/(TLBIT]) (76) 8
Earnings/(loss) before interest expense, tax, depreciation and KT F S5~ FiTE - & R Ea &,/
amortisation (‘EBITDA”)/(‘LBITDA’) (&18) ([EBITDAJ) / ([LBITDA]) (63) 19
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company ARAEE AEMEER, (BE) (74)
Total assets WEE 4,190 967
Quick assets' REEE 573 182
Net current assets MEEEFE 859 65
Net debt? RET? (72) 67)
Shareholders’ funds® e 842 627
Capital employed* EEBRESR! 842 690
2020 2019
Shares in issue BT 5,779,196,660 3,310,812,417
shares i shares f%
Net asset value® per share BREEFE HK$0.15 & T HK$0.19 7 7T
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF, (FE) HK(1.85) cents 7&1fl  HKO0.08 cent &1l
Current ratio® B b, 3RS 1.30 1.30
Quick ratio® EE) L X0 0.20 0.84
Gearing ratio” Nl 0.44 0.21
Net gearing ratio® FERBEL & 0.09 0.11
Return on equity® P s 20 (8.8%) 0.4%
Return on capital employed® EERES WE" (9.0%) 1.1%
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Financial Highlights
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10.

Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, properties under development,
properties for sale, pledged cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank balances

Net debt represents bank borrowings less non-pledged cash and cash equivalents

Net asset value or shareholders’ funds represents the amount of equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Capital employed represents the sum of shareholders’ funds and non-current bank
borrowings

Current ratio represents the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

Quick ratio represents the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds

Net gearing ratio represents the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

Return on equity represents the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company as a
percentage of shareholders’ funds

Return on capital employed represents the EBIT/(LBIT) as a percentage of capital
employed

RYPBERRDEERTE BRTYX FEWE CE
HREEREFEMARZRHBITET

FEGERTEXREEARREEREEEY

EEFESIRRESHEARREAEAZEERESE
CHAASERRESRRITERZIERE A D 225

RBLLEIERDEELRDAENLE
RBLLEIERBDEEERBABENLE
BERBELERERTERERRESHLE
FEARABLREFAEGERRESOLE

R R IE AR AEA AREEF, (BE)HRRESH
Bk

EBAESWIEEBT/ (LBM)EEBHEENE DL
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Directors’ Statement
SRS

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the annual results of Magnus Concordia Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$310 million (2019: HK$214 million), representing an
increase of 45% from that of the preceding year. Net loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$74 million
(2019: net profit of HK$3 million), and loss per share was HK1.85 cents
(2019: earnings per share of HK0.08 cent). Shareholders’ funds increased
by 34% to approximately HK$842 million (2019: HK$627 million),
representing net asset value per share of HK$0.15 (2019: HK$0.19).

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company has
resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

The turnaround of the Group’s financial results was mainly attributable
to an unrealised revaluation loss of its investment properties (comprising
commercial shops and office premises located in Hong Kong and Mainland
China) of approximately HK$78 million (2019: gain of approximately HK$17
million) with their market values as at 31 March 2020 being adversely
affected by the weak market sentiment resulting from the temporary
quarantine measures for the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”). We remain
cautiously optimistic about the prospect of the property investment
business, having considered that the investment properties held by the
Group were fully leased out and the unrealised revaluation loss of its
investment properties incurred was mainly resulted from the temporary
quarantine measures carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China as at
the end of the reporting period. We consider that the unrealised valuation
loss is non-cash in nature, while the overall business operation and financial
position of the Group remain healthy and solid.

BAIPRR :

EEMAZYMASERNMAERAR ([ARF K
HIWBAR SiBIAEEBE_T_ZEF=A
=+ —BIUEFEZFEEE - AEEHFKRALSG10
BT (ZE—NEF 21488 L) B E—FEEM
45% ° N EIHEE AR R E R FEA R7,4008 78
T (ZZT—NF  @RS00E S T) R TR E 18 51.85
B (ZF—nF  BRAF0.08HEN) - RRESE
INB4%ELBAEHETT (ZE—NF 627188 T)
HERSREEFBEISE L (ZE—NF 0195
JL) °

AREIEE ([E2)e([E52]) EBATEHK
NEE-_E-_EF=A=+—BILFEZ KBRS
(ZE—NEF:T)-

AEBHHEEELRYBFETRARREYE (8
BARBEBRTFEANMKNEHELSTIE)ARERS
b B 1 407,8008 T (ZF — NLF & £91,7008
BT B EEANRENER-_T-_TF=A
—t—ANMEREFHNERES ([COVID-19]) Bk
BRI SRS ARE DM THNEE - ZEE
REERBENRENED TR L REREMERN
EENAREREMEBEREEREB RPBEKEER
& AR ER B0 E S R B S M TS B R 2%

BEEBOAMSRSRELERE - MR A RER
ERBERFRSEE  BEASENBEERKEER
BRI -

Annual Report 2020 —_ S _SFFIR 9



Directors’ Statement
SERES

Facing the headwinds brought by the recent global economic fallouts and
geopolitical tensions, the weakened business sentiment and uncertainties
over near-term economic prospects have dampened the domestic property
investment market and the region’s manufacturing sector in the Mainland
China. On the contrary, opportunities arising from the asset markets with
global falling interest rates and other expansionary monetary policies have
provided immediate support for initial rebound of the economy. Gaining
the concrete support from stakeholders of the Company, we have refined
the strategic development of the Group to mitigate the risks on business
to growth by focusing on the property development business in order to
capture opportunities emerging from the real estate market, especially the
market in the lower-tier cities in Mainland China with less demand-side

restrictions.

On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired a residential property development
business located in a tourism region of Wolong Lake in Zigong City, Sichuan
Province, the People’s Republic of China. The contracted acquisition
consideration amounted to HK$400 million and the Company allotted and
issued 662,162,483 consideration shares as part of the consideration for
the acquisition. Benefiting from the advantageous position of the project
which possesses privileged natural environment and exceptional presale
record, we believe that the acquisition will provide attractive return to the
Company’s shareholders from the sales of the residential units with gross
floor area of approximately 500,000 sg m which are available for sales to be

recognized by the Group.
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Directors’ Statement
SRS

A detailed review of the Group’s operations this year is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 14 to 26 of this
annual report.

During the year, the Company issued 1,806,221,760 rights shares, on
the basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary shares, at
subscription price of HK$0.11 per rights share. We consider that the rights
issue helps to strengthen the capital base of the Company and to enhance
liquidity and lower the gearing level of the Group. The net proceeds from
the rights issue amounted to approximately HK$194 million, which is
intended for repayment of external bank borrowings falling due and for
general working capital.

The Group continues to carry out effective internal control measures,
comply with overall corporate governance practices and maintain proper
corporate communications with investors and other stakeholders. Details
of the Group’s corporate governance practices and corporate social
responsibilities are included in the “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

Leveraging on the effective management on emerging risks and internal
control, the management of the Group is staying particular alert on volatility
in pricing of the investment portfolios. Anchored by decades of remarkable
operation and expertise of the printing business, the Group is able to
continue seeking growth-enhancing investment opportunities in the market.

AEERAFENLENBFBRRANFRE14E
268 M [ERENmENHT] —Hie

FR - AARDERSFEMRIRE TRRES —RHE
AR AR B9 E LA R BB E B IR AR AR (D01 LB AT
1,806,221, 7600 (AR AR 1 < F PI5R & - (ARG SR AN A

RIMEREBARGINERBE S KR EASED
BEAREEKFE - HRFTEFRIBFREL A48T
BARERINBIINIRITERRE—REEESH

R

B (TR R
EARRLRTEE RS HE RS NOER
o BBARECREARAROEUGEEY HE
I RERREE] R B LR REARE

o

S EES B BT
NVAN
V=)

=

Eﬁﬁt

BREEET IR AR E L AR E IR R A RR R - N E
ERE-HEHREESERNKBLAES EBE

B+ FRMERIEERENEEREERREEN
L AEERHEEETSTS
MBS -
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Directors’ Statement
SERS

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to ZEHERXREZEESHENKERNEE TEREKY
express our gratitude to our shareholders, customers and partners for — fF—E AR ARNER 2 8 N R0 RBFIRERL
their continuous support and confidence in the Group, as well as our REHIRFINEERBRE2EE INAEENTESH
appreciation to our executives and staff for their dedication and contribution & & &f ©

during this year.

Your faithfully, REEEY
On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited RASERGAERLF
Li Qing EE
Director &5
B
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020 R ZEZEFAZ+TNHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EstR e Sk

Review of financial performance

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$310 million (2019: HK$214 million),
representing an increase of 45% from the last year. The growth in revenue
was mainly attributable to the development and sales of residential units in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
a new property development business acquired by the Group in August
2019.

The Group’s gross margin dropped to 21% (2019: 31%) of the
consolidated revenue, as a result of minimal gross margin recorded from
the residential units sold in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC,
subsequent to the business acquisition which was completed on 1 August
2019, of which fair values of the properties upon the acquisition were
recognised as the cost of properties in accordance with the prevailing
accounting treatment for business combination. For illustration purpose, the
Group’s gross profit margin would have been approximately 29% (2019:
31%) by excluding sales of properties, the decline of which was mainly due
to the adoption of the competitive pricing strategy for the printed products
in order to sustain market share expansion under the weaker market
sentiment caused by rising global trade tensions and increasing import
tariffs. Consequently, the Group’s gross profit decreased by 3% from last
year to approximately HK$64 million (2019: HK$67 million).

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses as well as administrative and
other operating expenses recorded a moderate increment to approximately
HK$26 million (2019: HK$16 million) and HK$66 milion (2019: HK$59
million) respectively. The increment corresponded to the surge in sales
activities, as well as the acquisition of the new residential property
development business in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC, during
the year. The acquisition of the new property development business has
contributed a gain on bargain purchase of approximately HK$60 million
(2019: nil) during the year, which mainly benefited from the difference
between the market price of consideration shares allotted to the seller at
the date of acquisition and the contract share price, as well as the valuation
premium resulting from certain business concessionary and support
measures in Mainland China prevailing during the year.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Fi A EE R ABRASE]
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Management Discussion and Analysis

E1R @51 R el Sy

The Group’s other income, expense and net losses amounted to a net loss
of approximately HK$31 million (2019: HK$1 million). The amount mainly
included impairment of an other receivable of approximately HK$8 million
(2019: nil), impairment of an other non-current assets of approximately
HK$8 million (2019: nil), the fair value loss on mark-to-market valuation of
quoted bonds portfolio of approximately HK$7 million (2019: HK$1 million)
and the fees incurred for potential acquisitions of approximately HK$6
million (2019: HK$10 million).

The fair value loss from revaluation of investment properties amounted to
approximately HK$78 million (2019: gain of HK$17 million). The investment
properties had recorded a drop in fair market valuation amidst the current
weak economic sentiment, despite relatively stable rental income continues
to be derived from the properties.

The Group’s finance costs increased to approximately HK$8 million (2019:
HK$5 million), which was mainly due to the new banking facilities obtained
during the year.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a loss before taxation
of approximately HK$85 million (2019: profit of HK$3 million), which was

attributed to results of the following operating segments and expenses:

Printing business — profit of approximately HK$1 million (2019: HK$1

=
=

million);

(ii) Property investment — loss of approximately HK$78 million (2019:
profit of HK$25 million);

(i) Property development — profit of approximately HK$36 million (2019:
nil);

(iv)  Treasury — loss of approximately HK$3 million (2019: profit of HK$4
million);

(v)  Net corporate expenses and other businesses of approximately
HK$33 million (2019: HK$22 million);

(vi)  Finance costs of approximately HK$8 million (2019: HK$5 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR EstR e Sk

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$74 million (2019: profit of HK$3 million), and loss per
share was HK1.85 cents (2019: earnings per share of HK0.08 cent). The
turnaround of the Group’s results was mainly attributable to an unrealised
revaluation loss of approximately HK$78 million of its investment properties
(comprising commercial shops and office premises) located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, with their market values as at 31 March 2020
being adversely affected by the weak market sentiment resulting from the
temporary quarantine measures for novel coronavirus, as compared to
a revaluation gain of approximately HK$17 million recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Review of financial position

Regarding the Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2020, total
assets increased by 334% to approximately HK$4,190 million (2019:
HK$967 million). As at 31 March 2020, net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$859 million (2019: HK$65 million), whereas current
ratio deriving from the ratio of current assets to current liabilities amounted
to 1.30 times (2019: 1.30 times). The change in financial position was
mainly attributable to the acquisition of a residential property development
business in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC, during the year.

The net cash outflow used in operating activities was approximately
HK$50 million (2019: net cash inflow of approximately HK$27 million),
which had been accounted for cash outflow used in the purchase of high-
yield corporate bonds portfolio during the year. The net cash outflow
used in investing activities was approximately HK$165 million (2019:
HK$97 million), which mainly represented the settlement of acquisition
consideration for the residential property development business in Zigong
City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. Taking into account the net cash inflow
from financing activities of approximately HK$417 milion (2019: HK$14
million) which mainly represented funds raised from bank borrowings and
the issue of one rights share for every two existing shares at HK$0.11 per
rights share (the “Rights Issue”) in February 2020 (resulting in the issue of
a total of 1,806,221,760 rights shares), the Group recorded a net increase
in cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$202 million (2019:
net decrease of approximately HK$56 million). After accounting for the
exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$4 million
during the year under review, the balance of cash and cash equivalents
(excluding restricted use balance of approximately HK$36 million and
pledged cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$120 million)
amounted to approximately HK$266 million as at 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$68 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRIt R e Sk

Shareholders’ funds attributable to owners of the Company increased by
34% to approximately HK$842 million (2019: HK$627 million), representing
HK$0.15 per share as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$0.19 per share). The
change in equity was resulted from (a) allotment and issue of 662,162,483
consideration shares of the Company valued at approximately HK$127
million for acquisition of the residential property development business in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC, on 1 August 2019; (b) the Rights
Issue for net proceeds of approximately HK$194 million on 13 February
2020; net of (c) the net loss for the year of approximately HK$74 million;
and (d) the Renminbi exchange loss arising from translation of foreign
operations of approximately HK$32 million during the year under review.

Review of operations and business development
Property development business

The property development business involves the development, sale
and trading of real estate properties principally in Mainland China. It
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$36 million (2019: nil)
for the year, which was mainly attributable to the bargain purchase gain
of approximately HK$60 million (2019: nil) attained upon completion of
acquisition of a residential property development business in Zigong City,
Sichuan Province, the PRC, during the year under review, after deducting
project expenses. The new project contributed revenue of approximately
HK$87 million (2019: nil) during the year generated from the delivery of
residential units with gross floor area of approximately 14,000 sq m from
the date of acquisition on 1 August 2019 to the end of the reporting period.
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In view of capturing the rapid growth opportunities in the property market
in Mainland China, the Group acquired a residential property development
business containing three plots of land forming part of the Zhonggang
Shenhai Forest Project (F1 /% ¢ £/ 3xMIE E ) , located in the high-tech
industrial development zone of the Yanluyu District of Wolong Lake in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC (FR B/l & B & ™ & # T
EEMREAEHERIASE), on 1 August 2019. The management
considers that the acquisition will deliver attractive return to our
shareholders from the sale of the residential units as a whole.

Despite the gross floor area of approximately 190,000 sg m being sold
and delivered before the date of acquisition, the three plots of land have
an aggregate remaining gross floor area of approximately 500,000 sq
m available for sales recognition subsequent to 1 August 2019. The
contracted acquisition consideration amounted to HK$400 million, whereas
the Group also agreed to pay a conditional payment of up to HK$200
million to the seller in proportion to the fulflment of the profit target or
the delivery target, whichever is lower, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the sales and purchase agreement of the said acquisition. As
at 31 March 2020, residential units under development with gross floor area
of approximately 305,000 sgq m had been presold and not yet delivered.
Delivery of completed residential units, which would result in recognition of
sales of properties, is anticipated to take place in the financial years ending
31 March 2021 to 2023. As at 31 March 2020, the total carrying value of
the completed properties for sale and properties under development in
Zigong City amounted to approximately HK$2,863 million (2019: nil).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group also held 18 units of residential villas for
sale at the estate Ju Hao Shan Zhung (also known as Beverly Hills) situated
in Changsha City, Hunan Province, the PRC, with total gross floor area
of approximately 5,600 sq m and carrying value of approximately HK$50
million (2019: HK$54 million). The properties had yet to generate any
revenue to the segment for the year under review due to the restrictions
introduced by local authorities to limit speculative behaviors on the real
estate market. Taking reference to the latest regional urban planning and
development of Changsha City, the management is optimistic about the
prospect of these higher-end residential properties and expects to bring
substantial yield to the Group.

Benefiting from the expertise cumulated from the acquisition of residential
development project during the year, the Group is exploring business
opportunities in the market to expand the property development business.
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Printing business

The printing business includes the manufacture and sale of printed
products, including art books, packaging boxes and children’s books, with
our production facilities located in Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC. It recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$1 million (2019:
HK$1 million) for the year under review.

Harvesting from years of efforts in enhancing the business’s competitive
edges in innovative design, quality management and new production
facilities, the revenue for the year increased to approximately HK$207
million (2019: HK$199 million) resulting from the increase in sales of printed
products for new overseas orders. However, being affected by the weak
market sentiment amid rising global trade tensions and the lockdown to
global economic activities caused by the coronavirus pandemic crisis, the
printing business strived to sustain market share expansion and to maintain
its competitive edge by adopting competitive pricing strategy for the printed
products. Consequently, the gross margin of printed products had been
affected despite the growth in revenue and similar level of profitability
recorded by the printing business when compared with last year.
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Facing continuing challenges brought by global tariffs uncertainties, the
management derives numerous options including sourcing, manufacturing,
distribution, logistics and market diversification solutions and strives
to mitigate the impact to a minimum by prompt implementation of the
solutions and reaction. The management remains cautiously optimistic
about the growth momentum of the printing business, whereas appropriate
risk management and business deployment have been carried out to
channel threats into new growth opportunities.

Property investment business

The property investment business involves the investment and leasing of
real estate properties, which recorded an operating loss of approximately
HK$78 million (2019: profit of approximately HK$25 million) for the year
under review. The loss was mainly attributed to the unrealised revaluation
loss of the investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland
China of approximately HK$78 million (2019: gain of approximately HK$17
million), with their market values as at 31 March 2020 being adversely
affected by the weak market sentiment resulting from the temporary
quarantine measures for novel coronavirus, despite relatively stable rental
income continues to be derived from such properties.
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group held the following investment properties W-ZT=_ZTF=FA=+—H AEEFF A Fm

carried at fair market value of approximately HK$434 million (2019: HK$523
million) and contributed rental income of approximately HK$10 million
(2019: HK$11 million) during the year:

Location

ih 2h

Investment properties in Hong Kong
BB IREMHE

Shop B, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence,
No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon
NBEAMERE1115E R E D T B

Shop D, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence,
No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon
NEBEAMEREIRENE S TDREH

Shops 3, 4, 5, Parkes Residence,
No. 101 Parkes Street, Kowloon

NE B DI E1015730 o EF 4 355 - 457 M5 P &

Investment properties in Mainland China

REIKRE 2 REWH

Level 6, Chengdu Digital Plaza,

No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth Portion,

Wuhou District, Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

Fr M) 1] & AR T B R R AR R R I BR 1 5% K AR B 35018

Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, 38th Floor,

R&F Yingkai Square, No. 16 Huaxia Road,

Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC
TREREEMTATREEKICHE S HARHES38E01E 02F - 03% - 06
EROTE

Gross Floor Area

MZEER

1,014 sq ft

1,014 75 R

1,293 sq ft

1,293 5 IR

2,090 sq ft

2,090 5 R

4,255 sq m

4,255 75 K

895 sgm

895 J5 2K
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Usage
A

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[CE

Commercial

[EES

Office

a
1
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The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the prospect of the property
investment business, having considered that the investment properties
were fully leased out as at the date of this annual report and the unrealised
revaluation loss incurred was mainly resulted from the temporary quarantine
measures carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China as at the end of
the reporting period. The portfolio of investment properties was acquired
for long term investment purpose so as to provide a stable income stream
to the Group. The Group will keep on monitoring the capital gain and rental
yields of the portfolio and will consider to rebalance the investment portfolio
when suitable opportunities arise.

Treasury business

The treasury business involves the investment and trading of debts, equity
and other treasury instruments, which recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$3 million (2019: profit of approximately HK$4 million) for
the year. Despite an unrealised fair value loss of mark-to-market valuation
of the corporate bonds portfolio of approximately HK$7 million (2019:
HK$1 million), the portfolio of high-yield corporate bonds generated interest
income of approximately HK$5 million (2019: HK$5 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held high-yield corporate bonds carried
at mark-to-market valuation of approximately HK$96 million (2019: HK$32
million), equivalent to approximately 2% (2019: 3%) of the Group’s total
assets. The portfolio of corporate bonds held by the Group as at 31 March
2020 comprised bonds issued by several Hong Kong listed companies
which mainly engaged in property development related business and
leasing business in Mainland China.

Despite being affected by the turmoail in global financial markets due to
the outbreak of novel coronavirus, the high market volatility of bond price
as at the end of the reporting period has been gradually stabilized. The
management considers that the fixed-income market can still provide
remunerative investment opportunities under the global trend of falling
interest rates while preserving capital. The Group remains cautious in
monitoring the portfolio’s underlying price risk and credit risk so as to
achieve an optimal risk-return balance.
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Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s total assets amounted to approximately
HK$4,190 million (2019: HK$967 million), which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and various credit facilities. Banking facilities are
maintained to finance the Group’s working capital and committed capital
expenditures, which bear interest at market rate with contractual terms of
repayment ranging from within one year to two years. The Group adopts
a treasury policy to maximize the return on equity, which manages the
funding requirements for new capital projects by considering all available
options including a hybrid of debt and equity financing.

The Group mainly generated income and incurred costs in Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. During the year, no financial
instruments had been used for hedging purpose, and no foreign currency
net investments had been hedged by currency borrowings or other hedging
instruments. The Group manages the exposures of fluctuation on exchange
rate and interest rate on individual transaction basis.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$373 million (2019: HK$135 million) with approximately
HK$373 million repayable on demand or within one year (2019:
approximately HK$71 million repayable within one year and approximately
HK$64 million repayable after one year). The bank borrowings bore interest
at floating rate, approximately HK$361 million (2019: HK$132 million) of
which were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately HK$8 million
(2019: nil) of which were denominated in Renminbi and approximately
HK$4 million of which were denominated in United States dollars (2019:
HK$3 million). The Group’s gearing ratio was 0.44 (2019: 0.21), which was
calculated based on the ratio of total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$373 million (2019: HK$135 million) to the shareholders’ funds of
approximately HK$842 million (2019: HK$627 million).
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s cash and equivalents balances
amounted to approximately HK$421 million (2019: HK$68 million), which
included pledged cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$120
million (2019: nil) and restricted bank balances of approximately HK$36
million (2019: nil). Approximately HK$263 million (2019: HK$7 million) was
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately HK$35 million (2019:
HK$35 million) was denominated in United States dollar, approximately
HK$121 million (2019: HK$26 million) was denominated in Renminbi and
approximately HK$2 million (2019: HK$0.1 million) was denominated in
other currencies. As at 31 March 2020, the Group had a net debt position
(being bank borrowings net of non-pledged cash and cash equivalents) of
approximately HK$72 million (2019: HK$67 million) and net gearing ratio of
0.09 (2019: 0.11) (being the ratio of net debts to the shareholders’ funds).

On 1 August 2019, the Company allotted and issued 662,162,483
consideration shares valued at approximately HK$127 million for acquisition
of the residential property development business in Zigong City, Sichuan
Province, the PRC.

On 13 February 2020, the Company issued 1,806,221,760 rights shares,
on the basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary shares,
at subscription price of HK$0.11 per rights share. The Board considers
that the Rights Issue helped strengthen the capital base of the Company
and to enhance liquidity and lower the gearing level of the Group. The net
proceeds from the Rights Issue after deduction of all relevant expenses of
approximately HK$5 million amounted to approximately HK$194 million.

Outlook

Facing the headwinds brought by the recent global economic fallouts,
geopolitical tensions and the temporary quarantine measures for the novel
coronavirus, the weakened business sentiment and uncertainties over
near-term economic prospects have dampened the domestic property
investment market and the region’s manufacturing sector. On the other
hand, opportunities still emerge from the asset markets as global falling
interest rates and other expansionary monetary policies have provided
immediate support for initial rebound of the economy.
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Gaining the concrete support from stakeholders of the Company, the Group
has refined its strategic development to pose risks to growth by focusing on
the property development business to capture opportunities emerging from
the real estate market, especially the lower-tier cities in Mainland China with
less demand-side restrictions. Benefiting from an advantageous position in
our residential development project acquired possessing privileged natural
environment and exceptional presale record, the project is anticipated to
improve the financial positions of the Group in the coming financial years.

Leveraging on the effective management on emerging risks and internal
control, the management of the Group is staying particular alert on volatility
in pricing of the investment portfolios. Anchored by decades of remarkable
operation and expertise of the printing business, the Group is continuing to
seek growth-enhancing investment opportunities in the market.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2020, the Group provided financial guarantees in respect
of mortgage loans made by certain banks to certain purchasers of the
properties in the PRC, either directly provided to the banks or to the
housing provident fund management center who arranged the bank
mortgage, which amounted to approximately HK$1,387 million (2019: nil).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2020, the Group pledged certain assets including right-of-
use assets under property, plant and equipment (2019: prepaid land lease
payments), owned assets under property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents with an
aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$570 million (2019: HK$326
million) to secure bank facilities of the Group. The bank facilities of the
Group are also secured by equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Commitments

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$1 million
(2019: HK$1 million).
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Environmental, social and compliance matters

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of the business
operations and the key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have significant impact on the Group are provided
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages
73 to 140 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the Group had complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the businesses and
operations of the Group. As far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As stated in the enterprise risk management framework of the “Corporate
Governance Report”, the Group has assessed and identified key risks in
terms of strategic, operational and financial aspects facing the Group in
accordance with the likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of
their impact on the business of the Group. An effective risk management
system is in place to manage the key risks and response plans have been
evaluated by the management.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties about significant accounting
judgements and estimates are also set out in notes 38 and 3, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Certain environmental and social related risks have been described in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 73 to
140 of this annual report.

Material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies

Save for the completion of an acquisition of a property development
business at Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC on 1 August 2019,
the Group did not have material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2020.
Details of the aforesaid acquisition are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 8 October 2018, 1 August 2019 and in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors
Mr. Li Qing

Mr. Li Qing (“Mr. Li"), aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director on
26 January 2018. He is currently the chairman of the board of directors
of SFund International Investment Fund Management Limited (‘SFund
International”). Prior to joining SFund International, he worked as a deputy
general manager and general manager in Lianyun Gangshi Runbang
Zhiye Company Limited* GEEEMEAFEE B R 2 7)) from January
2008 to January 2013. He was then the general manager and chairman
in Hunan Huiyin Tianxing Private Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd* (/4
FMERKERERELEESEEBRAF) from November 2014 to
October 2016. Mr. Li is also a director of Qingda Developments Limited (a
direct controlling shareholder of the Company), New Element Investments
Limited (an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company) and Kapok
Wish Investment Limited (the general partner of Integrity Fund Limited
Partnership, which is an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company).
On 15 January 2019, he was appointed as an executive director and the
chairman of the board of directors of SFund International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock
Exchange”), stock code: 1367).

Mr. Li graduated from the faculty of music in Minzu University of China
(FRREKEAE) N June 2001. He received a master's degree from the
Musikakademie der Stadt Kassel in Germany in September 2004. Mr. Li
has over 10 years of experience working in senior management roles in real
estate investment and fund management.

* For identification purpose only
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SENRERERASZEEFR

Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet (“Ms. Au”), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 January 2018. She is also a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. She is the
investment director and deputy general manager of SFund International
since June 2017 and March 2018, respectively. Prior to joining SFund
International, Ms. Au had work experience in the financial services industry
at The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from July 2000 to October 2002
and Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from August 2008 to April 2009 and
from September 2009 to April 2013. Ms. Au then worked as the deputy
general manager at WH Group Limited (2 company listed on The Stock
Exchange; stock code: 288) from May 2013 to October 2014 and the
chief financial officer and director of Eddingpharm International Holdings
Limited from November 2014 to March 2016, and Ms. Au worked as a
consultant at Baring Private Equity Asia Limited from October 2016 to
May 2017. Ms. Au is also a director of Qingda Developments Limited (a
direct controlling shareholder of the Company), New Element Investments
Limited (an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company) and Kapok
Wish Investment Limited (the general partner of Integrity Fund Limited
Partnership, which is an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company).

Ms. Au obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of Rochester
in May 2000. Ms. Au received a master of business administration degree
from the Columbia University in May 2008. Ms. Au has over 15 years of
experience in mergers & acquisitions and corporate management.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (“Mr. Lam”), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has been the managing director and
founder of LR Construction Technologies Limited since August 2012 and
the managing director and co-founder of LR Construction and Consultancy
Limited since April 2012. He is also currently the managing director and
co-founder of LR |IOT Limited (formerly known as Alternative Turbine
Technologies Limited) since May 2009. He is also currently an independent
non-executive director of In Construction Holdings Limited (a company
listed on The Stock Exchange, stock code: 1500). From 1976 to 1987, Mr.
Lam was a lecturer in the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering of
the University of Hong Kong. From November 1996 to August 2004, Mr.
Lam was a principal lecturer of the Vocational Training Council.

Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor of science in engineering degree from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1969. In November 1972, he
received a PhD from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was admitted
as a member of The Institution of Civil Engineers in July 1975 and he was
also admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers since
November 1975 and is also a registered professional engineer of Engineers
Registration Board.

Mr. Lam has over 45 years of experience in engineering.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

SENRERERASZEEFR

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Hung Kin Man

Mr. Hung Kin Man (“Mr. Hung”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Hung has been practising as a barrister in Hong Kong since
1992. Mr. Hung was a Deputy District Court Judge in Hong Kong in March
2015.

Mr. Hung received his bachelor of law degree from the Wolverhampton
Polytechnic in England in July 1990. He was called to the Bar in England
and Wales and Bar of Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho”), aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of
working experience in private equity investment and finance and is currently
the managing director of an investment holding company. Prior to that,
Mr. Ho served as an executive partner representative of a Chengdu-based
private equity investment fund from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr. Ho
worked for a Hong Kong-based private fund management company during
January 2010 to December 2013 and was the managing director and
head of China growth and expansion capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK)
Limited from August 1997 to October 2009.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Ho Man (Continued)

Mr. Ho was a non-executive director of SCUD Group Limited (stock
code: 1399) from December 2006 to October 2009 and Shanghai Tonva
Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1103, currently known as Shanghai
Dasheng Agriculture Finance Technology Co., Ltd) from September 2008
to October 2009, both being companies listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange. He was an independent director of Shenzhen Forms
Syntron Information Co. Ltd (stock code: 300468.5Z), a company listed on
the ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from February 2012 to February
2018. He was also an independent non-executive director of Momentum
Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed on The Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1152) from November 2016 to July 2019.

Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Fantasia
Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777) since October 2009; an
independent non-executive director of Fu Shou Yuan International Group
Limited (stock code: 1448), since December 2013; an independent non-
executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (name
changed from China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited with effect from
24 April 2018; stock code: 445) since July 2015; an independent non-
executive director of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 401)
since February 2018; and an independent non-executive director of Grand
Ocean Advanced Resources Company Limited (stock code: 65) since 22
January 2020, all being companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ho has been a director of Shenzhen Daxiang Space Construction Co.,
Ltd., (stock code: 836604), a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations, since September 2015.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s degree in finance from the
London Business School. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Senior Management

Mr. Leung Ho Man (“Mr. Leung”), joined the Group in February 2018
and is the Financial Controller of the Company. He is responsible for the
financial management and treasury functions of the Group, and acts as
the coordinator for the internal audit, internal control and risk management
functions of the Group in relation to corporate governance compliance.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance and a Master of Science degree in Financial
Analysis. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in financial
management, accounting, auditing and corporate governance in an
international accounting firm and listed companies.

Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona (‘Ms. Ng”), is the Company Secretary of the
Group. Ms. Ng is responsible for overseeing corporate governance,
regulatory compliance and investor relation. She has more than 25 years’
experience in finance, accounting and corporate secretarial functions. Ms.
Ng joined the Group in January 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ng
was a company secretary of a company listed on The Stock Exchange
during 2013-2017, a financial controller and company secretary of a
company listed on The Stock Exchange during 2007-2013, and a qualified
accountant and company secretary of a company listed on The Stock
Exchange during 2006-2007.

Ms. Ng is a fellow member of Chartered Association of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXEISHRSE

Introduction

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protects and promotes the interests of its
shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 March 2020,
the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code.

(A) The Board

The Board is responsible for overseeing the business and
strategies of the Group with the objective of enhancing value for its
shareholders. The Board determines business plans and budgets,
regularly reviews the Group’s financial performance and monitors the
Group’s management. To cultivate good governance, the Board also
reviews the Group’s operation and policies from time to time.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

36

V)

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. The Board has on a
regular basis reviewed the composition of the Board and
the skills and experience required for both the executive and
non-executive Directors, in the context of the business and
strategies of the Group.

The composition of the Board as at 31 March 2020 and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Names # &

(A) E=E (EF)

U

Positions B #7

ExEgmE4AS

ExedEnE MEREFEHAEHE
AEBMEBHEBI ST NHE BRE
HEXENB -EESARARE X
MREERRLSESTE ZKEBHEANE
ERITRIFMTESMER ZBBERE

R-_B-_TBE=A=+—HBREELAR
LHE EEeREMNMEANT:

Mr. Li Qing =& £ 4

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet E gl 2+
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis #75 % 55 4
Mr. Hung Kin Man R&fi2 R 5 4

Mr. Ho Man {a] 5t A&

Biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. None of the existing
members of the Board nor the senior management of the
Company is related to one another.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(ii)

Board Meetings

Arrangements were in place to ensure that sufficient notice
and adequate information were given to each Director prior
to the Board meetings. The Company Secretary and senior
management assist the Directors in preparing the agenda for
meetings and ensure that all applicable rules and regulations
are complied with. The Directors are able to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense in appropriate circumstances or upon their request.

Minutes of Board and committees meetings were kept in
sufficient details to reflect the decisions made in the relevant
meetings and were available for inspection by the Directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year.
Special meeting of the Board will be convened whenever
necessary. The Board has held six meeting during the year
under review. The table below sets out the number of meetings
of the Board and its committees, individual attendance by the
Board and committee members at these meetings, the annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) and the extraordinary general
meetings (the “EGM”) during the year under review.

(A) %%g ( nlﬁ)

(ii)
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- = —
(A) The Board (Continued) (A) EET (&)
(i) Board Meetings (Continued) i)y Z=EE=Eg=(E)
The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings held BUEEFRNZEEFERLFLEN
during the year is as follows: T
Chairman and
Independent
Nomination ~ Remuneration Audit Non-executive
Committee Committee Committee Directors
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings AGM EGM Meeting"®
TRREL
REZES yHzee ENZEE BR BR FHUTES
£33 - ] ] L] AEAE KEIAE g3
Number of meeting(s) attended/held
HE/BERRY
Executive Directors HiTEs
M. L Qing TERE 3% NATEE  NATER  NATER o 0 NATER
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet EAFLL 6/6 1n 2/2 N/A TER 11 1N 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTEE
. Lam Chi Hung i S o6  NATER 20 303 11 11 1#
Mr. Hung Kin Man BRRLE 6/6 7 NATEH 33 il 11 il
Mr. Ho Man gL 6/6 i 212 33 11 0N 11
Note: 5T
Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) TR EA2TRBEEEEXR ([ER]ER
should at least annually hold meetings with the independent non-executive LBFEBFNTESRT-REGHE AUER
directors without the presence of other directors. Since the roles of the Company’s HEELFE -FN BRARAEFERITREHZ
Chairman and chief executive officer have been performed by the executive BEHERTESRART BINLZTZEERA
Directors on a collective basis, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet served as role of Chairman to CEBVIINTESRIT - AGH -EFERAAE
hold a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors during the year. The NEIDEFFRIEXEA2. 75

Board believes that the Company has complied with the code provision A.2.7.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

During the year, the roles of the Company’s Chairman and
chief executive officer have been performed by the executive
Directors on a collective basis.

The Board believes that the aforesaid arrangement provided
the Company with flexibility and allowed for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. The Board also considers that the above-
mentioned arrangement did not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. The Board will review the current practice from time
to time and make appropriate changes if necessary.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of the appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, including those
appointed for a specific term, for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not exceeding, one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation no later than the third annual general
meeting of the Company after he/she was last elected or re-
elected. Besides, any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after appointment and are eligible
for re-election. All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders at the respective general meetings.

(A) E=E (EF)

(iii)

(iv)
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(iv)

v)

40

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(Continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a term of two years, subject to retirement by rotation as
aforesaid.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee was established by the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) with clear terms of reference. The
principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, a board diversity policy of
the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and a nomination
policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) on a regular
basis, recommending any proposed changes to the Board for
approval, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises an executive
Director, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Hung Kin Man and Mr. Ho Man with
Mr. Hung Kin Man acting as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee is summarized as follows:

- reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

- considered and recommended to the Board on the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the Company’s 2019
Annual General Meeting (the “2019 AGM”);
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(A) The Board (Continued)

V)

(vi)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

- assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Director; and

- reviewed the terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting during the
year. The attendance record of the members of the Nomination
Committee meeting is set out in the table under “The Board”
section.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy was adopted in January 2019. In
accordance with the Nomination Policy, the Nomination
Committee shall consider, among other things, the following
factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:
(@) reputation for integrity; (b) qualifications, skills, experience
and independence that the candidate can bring to the Board
in all its aspects; (c) commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the Company’s business; and (d)
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director and to the public disclosure of
their personal data on any documents or relevant websites in
relation to their nomination or otherwise pursuant to applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. The Nomination Committee
may request candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary. The Nomination Policy is
available on the website of the Company.

(A) E=E (EF)

v)

(vi)
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(A) The Board (Continued)
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(vii) Board Diversity

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the
execution of its business strategy for sustainable and balanced
development.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted in September 2013
and revised in January 2019. The Nomination Committee
is delegated the authority, amongst other things, to review
and assess the diversity of the Board and recommend
suitable candidate to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural, educational background, professional experience
and skills and shall also take into account factors based on
the Company’s own business model and specific needs. The
Nomination Committee shall review and assess the structure,
size, composition of the Board from time to time and make
recommendations to the Board for implementing diversity
with adequate consideration of the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate.

The selection of candidates will be based on the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy. The ultimate decision
shall be based on a merit basis against objective criteria and
contribution that the candidate will bring to the Board, with
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board
Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company.
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(A) The Board (Continued) (A E== (E)
(viij Board Diversity (Continued) (vii) EEEZ it (&)
The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as TRINTHN_ZBE=-FEF=A=+—A02
at 31 March 2020: EFeZ TR

Number of Directors

BEAY

5

4 Independent non-
l executive Directors

3 BYIETES

2 l

1 l Executive Directors
l HITEE

0

Gender Age Group Designation
iz FEAER 6]

Skills & Knowledge

R R A

Real estate investment & fund management ’ ' ' 60%
BHIERE RES B

Corporate management ' ' ' ' 80%
hEER

Legal ' 20%
prE

Engineering ' 20%
Ii2

Finance ' ' 40%
B
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(A) The Board (Continued)
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(viii) Responsibilities of Directors

(ix)

()

Each Director is required to keep abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and each Director
is provided in a timely manner with appropriate information of
the Group to enable him/her to make an informed decision
and to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities as a
Director of the Company. On appointment, new Director wil
be given a comprehensive induction to the Group’s business.
Directors ensure that they give sufficient time and attention
to the Company’s affairs. Appropriate insurance coverage in
respect of legal action against the Directors is arranged by the
Company.

Directors’ and Relevant Employees’ Dealings in
Securities

The Company has adopted the model code for securities
transactions by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. In response to specific enquiries
by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines and
adopted the Model Code (collectively, the “Guidelines”) to
govern securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company and/or its
securities. No incident of non-compliance of the Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Company.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis,
Mr. Hung Kin Man and Mr. Ho Man, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(xi)

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible
for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the Directors of
the Company.

During the year, the Company has arranged seminars and
provided reading materials to the Directors that are relevant
to their duties and responsibilities. A summary of the training
record of each Director received by the Company is as follows:

(A) %gé(mﬁ)
(xi) ESzEI
BEEATRIZ sF AR EABSK AT
BEFRBERFEEERR UBRR
EHHEAB LB RRERBESS

HEEZER D MBI EM -ARRIA
BERFREPEI AHARFES
ZAaE BENEE TAEE 2R -

REE ARARIAEEZEZBE BB
RRELZH & RIBHBEER A
TRARRRIABSUER 2HIIL
BHE

Attending Reading/

briefings/ studying

seminars/ training or

conferences/ other

forums materials

HEENE ME 28

[i58=- EINH

Name of Directors BEEHR % wiE H At A1 %t

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Qing FERLE v v

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet & S A 2+ v/ v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYUFHTES

Mr. Lam Chi Hung WEHE S E v v

Mr. Hung Kin Man RRER A4 v v

Mr. Ho Man A5t v v
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management
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V)

(ii)

(iii)

Remuneration Policy of Executive Directors and Senior
Management

The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to provide a fair market
remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality
staff. The Group will set levels of remuneration to ensure
comparability and competitiveness with companies competing
within a similar talent pool.

Fee Paid to Non-executive Directors

Each non-executive Director receives an annual fee of
HK$276,000. Such fees and the amounts of emolument of
the other Directors are determined by reference to their duties
and responsibilities with the Company, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee was established by the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) with clear terms of reference
and is primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
of all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, on
the Company’s establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, and on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee performs an advisory
role to the Board with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management (i.e. the model (c)(ii) as stipulated in code
provision B.1.2 of the CG Code is adopted).
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior (B) EERESEEEAEZHM (&)
Management (Continued)

(i) Remuneration Committee (Continued) (i) FHZESF (F)
The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive FHEEEeRERTEURITESRES
Director, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet, and two independent non- R MR B IENITE EMEH T
executive Directors, Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Ho Man, R NS R EEEHIE
with Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis acting as the chairman of the BEFfF-

Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration AFEE FHNEZEEg#ET 2 TEMME

Committee is summarized as follows: T

= reviewed the remuneration package and renewal of the - BEUFNETBMEEBLIENIT
service agreements of the independent non-executive B RBHBEEMESSED
Directors and recommended to the Board for approval; HEERARIE: &
and

- reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group and the - KEBEEEEMIICOEERER
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to ERAEE 2 HMEBCK LB E
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives. &2 %R

The Remuneration Committee has held two meetings during FTHEESERFRBITMAGH 5

the year. The attendance record of the members of the WEEeXEZHRLEHEN [E=E

Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table under —HIE TR

“The Board” section.

Annual Report 2020 _Z "B HFFif 47



Corporate Governance Report
EEEIBIRSES

(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

(iv)

Remuneration of Senior Management
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual

remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)

(B) EEREEEEABZHM (&)

(iv)

B4R (BT)

BEEEASHMH

RIEE AT R Z TG ZEB.1.50% &
E_E-_TFE=-A=+—HItEESE
EEABZFEWMSHERIEINMT

Number of
individuals

AE

1,500,001 to 2,000,000
2,000,001 to 2,500,000

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 March 2020 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(C) Accountability and Audit

48

U]

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare the consolidated financial statements and to present
a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
performance, position and prospects of the Group in the
interim and annual reports of the Group.

The responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 162
to 170 of this annual report.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(ii)

Audit Committee

An audit committee was established by the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) with clear terms of reference. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or independent auditor before submission to
the Board;
reporting process and its financial control, risk management

reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial

and internal control systems, and reviewing the relationship
with and the terms of appointment of the independent auditor
and making relevant recommendation to the Board.

The current members of the Audit Committee are three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Lam Chi
Hung Louis and Mr. Hung Kin Man, with Mr. Ho Man acting as
the chairman of Audit Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee is
summarized as follows:

- reviewed with the Directors and the auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

- reviewed the financial control, risk management and

internal control systems and financial reporting process;

- reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
annual results announcement and annual report;

- reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements,
interim results announcement and interim report; and

- considered and recommended the re-appointment of the
independent auditor.

()
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

50

(ii)

(iii)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee has held three meetings during the year.

The attendance record of the members of the Audit Committee

meetings is set out in the table under “The Board” section.

Risk Management and Internal Control

(@

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing
to take in achieving its strategic objectives; ensuring
that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control
systems; and overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of these systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and reviewing the systems’ effectiveness
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. These risk management and internal control
systems can provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss; and
they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for designing,
implementing and monitoring the risk management and
internal control systems, and confirming to the Audit
Committee on the risk management and internal control
systems’ effectiveness.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MERE% (&)

(i) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) iy EREERAIBEEE (F)
(b)  Risk Management and Internal Control Governance (b)) REEEERANBEZEGESE
Framework

Audit Committee Board of Directors
EREEY BEEY

e Review the effectiveness of the e Oversee management in the design,
risk management and internal

control systems and have overall
responsibilities for these systems
internal control systems FHIE R B R NP E R R E A K
XFHEFSEERRER MAHZERGEEE

KA e R R R R Et ) e Share experience and provide direction
HEM on determining the key risks (at
corporate level) and their mitigation
measures

REFEZ2RR (RAREE) RHEE
ERBRERER HEERIIRMHES

Management
EEE

e Support the Board in
monitoring the design and
operating effectiveness of
the risk management and

implementation, and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control
systems
EEERREREE R AR E KRR
#®at Bie R EER

Internal Audit
B EZX

e Have an internal audit
function of the Group

=S WAS < w

AR E R S ®] e Design, implement and monitor risk e Monitor risk management practices m}%

e Perform reviews to evaluate gp; management and internal control and internal control activities 7|§
the effectiveness of the risk e systems B B IR G el ER

B Sl o . EERREREN R AIESES) S

management and internal §E At B RERERERRAE ’ g”
control systems 8y L Provide a confirmation to the Board tﬁl»ﬁ
EHNUFERREERA o Develop risk management policy and on the effectiveness of the risk %ﬁ

= =2

MEZERBOA R
Provide regular reports
(including monthly progress
update reports) to the Audit
Committee
FHREZZEgRE (&2
EEREEEN®RE)

procedures

HlET R ERBUR K2 T

Provide guidelines on performing risk
assessment and control activities
RAGETRR T G REEESHES
Identify key risks, assess their
respective impact and likelihood

of occurrence, and determine
corresponding mitigation actions
BRFERRE TERENEELE
J2 B A ) FT AR I - NI 758 TE AR FE Y PR
B 21T E

e |dentify, assess and mitigate risks

Bl BT R PR R

management and internal control
systems
MEFSRERREERAIMEIER
AR ERE

Operational Level
BE K

e |mplement risk management and

internal control practices
B e R E IR & A BB B 1R )
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)
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(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

(c)  Three Lines of Defence Model

The Board and management of the Group rely on
the adequate line functions, including monitoring and
assurance functions within the Group to ensure the
effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems. The Group adopts a ‘Three Lines of
Defence’ model to shield against risks that threaten
the achievement of the Group’s goals, and as a way of
explaining the relationship between these functions, as
illustrated below:

° The first line of defence is provided by the
business units / teams who own and practise the
internal controls on a day-to-day basis;

o The second line of defence is provided by the
risk management and other oversight functions
that assist the Group to monitor the first line of
defence; and

° The third line of defence is provided by the internal

audit function, which is responsible for providing
independent assurance to the Group.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(C) BERZF#& (&)

(i) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) iy EREERAIBEEE (F)
()  Three Lines of Defence Model (Continued) © Z@\EHHRER(E)

Senior Management

1st Line of Defence
FE—ERR

Self Assurance

BRZE

Internal Controls
RER B

SE N

2" Line of Defence
EERR

Risk Management
ERER

Other Oversight
Function

HAib B Emae

Board of Directors
a
g2xe e

Audit Committee

N

ENEEE

4IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

3 Line of Defence
E=EAR

External
Auditor
FNEERZ AT

Internal Audit

REREZ
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)
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(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

(C) AEREXZ (&)

iy EREERAIPBEELE (F)

(d)  Risk Management

The Board has established an enterprise risk
management (“ERM”) framework with reference to
the key principles of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSQ”) of the Treadway Commission
ERM framework, “Enterprise Risk Management —
Integrating with Strategy and Performance” published
in 2017. The Group’s ERM framework includes the
following key features:

- Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure comprises
day-to-day operational management and control,
risk and compliance oversight. The Group has
developed a risk management policy, which
outlines the principles and procedures for the
Group to manage its risks and clearly defines
roles and responsibilities of each of the multiple
layers of the structure, including the Board, the
Audit Committee, department heads, employees
at operational levels and the internal audit
department, in order to achieve the Group’s
strategic and operational goals and objectives.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
(d)  Risk Management (Continued)
- Risk Management Process

A robust risk management process is developed

to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks,
as shown in the diagram below:

1
Identify 7% 5!

5 517 S [ D e 0 L B

Monitor & Report
EERER

e Perform ongoing
monitoring of risks
TR MR EE

e Consolidate the results of the
risk assessment; and establish
a detailed action plan
RERBETHER REIET
HERITERE

* Report to management & the
Audit Committee
RMEEEREZZEGER

Risk Management

Process
AREERE

4

* |dentify the risks faced by the Group

Respond FE ¥ 3
e Select an appropriate risk treatment for
identified key risks Prioritise 8 X 7
EENA MR ERIE A AR £ B bR e Prioritise key risks and validate
Design, evaluate and implement controls top risks
on the identified risks H: BB TTEIRBEF KA
HE BRI R BIRT - A7 &% B e B R AR

(C) BEREX (&)
(i) EEEERABEE (F)
@) mERER(E)
- EREBRRE
rEERRVBRORRE

BRI AR - FHE R E IR
BERER AT EMR:

2

Assess P&
Analyse the identified risks based
on two dimensions: potential impact
and likelihood of occurrence
BWEAE DT E S B E R &

FERBEENTRMN

Risk Management Process

[\ B o 3R AR
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

56

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

Risk Management (Continued)

Risk Management Process (Continued)

Risk Management Process

During the year, the Group conducted risk
assessments at both corporate and business
process levels which include its principal
activities (the manufacturing and trading of
printed products, property investment, property
development and treasury businesses). It also
maintains a risk register that contains information
of key risks, the potential consequences, the
likelihood of occurrence, impact and overall risk
rating. Risk owners will execute risk mitigation
actions and respond to their assigned risks in the
risk register based on the Board'’s risk tolerance.

The Group has developed a process to identify
and report any new or emerging risks in the
monthly management reports. In addition, any
update on the risk management would be
reported and discussed in the Audit Committee
meetings, in order to effectively monitor and keep
track of the key risks identified at corporate level.

On an annual basis, the risks in the risk register
are re-evaluated, with consideration of potential
new or emerging risks. Depending on the changes
in circumstances and the external environment,
the Group’s risk tolerance levels and risk
responses would be adjusted accordingly.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MEREX (&)
(i) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (i) EFREERAIBEIEE (&)
(e) Internal Control ) NEPESIE
The Group has implemented an internal control system AREEE JH2%E COSOE I N ERES
with reference to the key principles of the Internal Control - REERNEZRAEITTARE
- Integrated Framework established by the COSO. The EEIE R - NE B A IPESIE R ATHY
main features and components of the Group’s internal FERBRARBIR TEZS-

control system are represented in the following diagram.

1

Control Environment

ERES

5 2

Objectives:

Monitoring Activities BEE: Risk Assessment
EBREH . Operations @Fﬁ%‘zlzfﬁ
TiE
e Reporting
2%/

e Compliance
AR

4

Information and

3

Control Activities

ERES

Communication
ERRBEF

Internal Control Framework
A ER ESEAE R
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

58

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

©

Internal Control (Continued)

Internal Control Framework

For the newly acquired residential property development
business in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the People’s
Republic of China, the Group engaged an external
advisory service provider with specific in-depth industry
knowledge and experience to conduct internal control
reviews of the core business processes. The external
advisory service provider supported management to
conduct the control self-assessment on certain key
property business processes and to perform follow-
up reviews on internal controls so as to assess if the
identified issues have been rectified.

The Group has an internal audit function. The head of
the internal audit department leads the internal audit
function and performs independent reviews of key
business processes of the Group. The internal audit
plan of the Group adopts a risk-based approach, which
is approved by the Audit Committee annually with
an objective to assess the adequacy, effectiveness,
efficiency and reliability of internal control procedures
over financial, operational and compliance activities
of the Group. The internal audit department reports
the results of the independent reviews together with
the recommended remedial actions, in the form of
internal audit reports, directly to the Audit Committee
on a regular basis. Follow-up reviews are performed
by the internal audit department, in order to verify that
the identified issues have been remediated in a timely

manner.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

©

Internal Control (Continued)

During the year, the internal audit department conducted
reviews and reported the status of implementation of
remedial actions on control deficiencies, e.g. through
monthly progress update reports provided to the Audit
Committee. Relevant recommendations reported by
the internal audit department will be implemented by
management to enhance the Group’s internal controls,
and to resolve material internal control deficiencies in a
timely manner.

Inside Information

In compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Main Board Listing Rules, the Group has developed
an inside information disclosure policy and internal
controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information to ensure consistent and timely disclosure,
and fulfiment of the Group’s disclosure obligations.
The Group has also established and implemented
procedures to guide its employees on how to report and
handle inside information, and strictly prohibit them from
any unauthorized use of inside information.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to the highest possible
standards of openness, probity and accountability. Anti-
bribery and anti-corruption standards are important parts
of the Group’s policies and operating practices. In line
with this commitment, the Group has its whistleblowing
policy, the employees and other stakeholders of
the Company can raise concerns, in confidence or
anonymously, about any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Company. A designated email
account and a dedicated hotline have been set up for
this purpose.

(C) AEREXZ (&)

(iii)
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

(h)  Review of Systems Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems
by reviewing the work performed by the internal audit
department and the external advisory service provider in
risk management and over the key business processes
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.
The review covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, and
risk management functions. The scope and quality of
ongoing monitoring of risks and the internal control
system have been assessed. The changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks faced by the Group and

response plans have been evaluated.

Management has conducted control self-assessment
on the core business processes annually and the Board
has received a confirmation from management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective

and adequate.

During the review, the Board also assessed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, employee
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit function. Qualified individuals of the
Group maintain and monitor these internal control

procedures on an ongoing basis.

The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied
with the code provisions under principle C.2 of the CG
Code regarding risk management and internal control for

the year ended 31 March 2020.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) BMERE®X (&)
(iv) Independent Auditor's Remuneration (ivy BuzEmMmziie
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the RAFE B EN TBLZEEME
independent auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows: KEETRVEBFT 2 & & I T
Services rendered HK$’000
PR i AR 7% FET
Audit and audit related services BEzREZEBERS 1,800
Non-audit services X AR
Review of interim condensed consolidated ER P RS S S
financial statements 600
Tax advisory services B 58 AR 75 113
Special engagements and others FEELRE R HAM 675

3,188
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(D) Delegation by the Board

62

V)

(ii)

Board Committee

The Company has established three committees, namely
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and Remuneration
Committee. These committees were formed with specific
clear written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authorities and duties.

Management Function

The Board has determined which matters are to be retained by
the full Board sanction and which matters are to be delegated
to the executive management. The executive management
are delegated the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
while the Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The executive management
has been given clear terms of reference, in particular,
circumstances where the executive management should report
to and obtain prior approval from the Board. All delegations to
the executive management are reviewed periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate.
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(E)

(F)

(G)

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include reviewing and developing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices; reviewing and
monitoring (a) the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (b) the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and
(c) the compliance of the Model Code; and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and performed the above
mentioned corporate governance duties.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Yee Man Fiona is an employee of the Company and she
confirmed that she has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which took
effect from January 2019. In general, the Company intends to
provide shareholders with semi-annual or annual dividends, and to
declare special dividends from time to time. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Company’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future prospects.
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(G)

(H)

64

Dividend Policy (Continued)

The Board will also take into account the prevailing market conditions
and global economic situation. The dividend payout ratio, would be
calculated based on certain per cent of the net profit recorded during
the financial year, after retaining a sufficient fund as capital for future
investment opportunities, future use; and all possible investment have
been financed. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from
time to time and there can be assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction under the
laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has established a shareholders communication policy
with the objectives of enabling its shareholders to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and to allow the shareholders and the
investment communities to engage actively with the Company. The
Board has the responsibility to review the policy regularly to ensure its
effectiveness.

(i)  General Meetings
The Board regards general meetings as the principal
opportunity to communicate with shareholders of the
Company. During the year, the Company has held an annual

general meeting and an extraordinary general meeting.

The attendance records of each Director of the general
meetings is set out in the table under “The Board” section.
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(H) Communication with Shareholders (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Significant Issues

The Company has ensured that any significant issues would be
dealt with at general meetings and be proposed as a separate
resolution.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, votes of
shareholders at all general meetings of the Company
have been taken by poll and results of the poll have been
announced in accordance with the procedures prescribed
under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Documents Available on the Websites of the
Company and The Stock Exchange

The Company has placed the announcements, circulars,
annual/interim reports, notices of general meetings and other
information of the Company as required by the Listing Rules on
the websites of the Company and The Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Enquires

Shareholders of the Company may direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and all other questions to the Board. Details have
been published on the website of the Company.

H HERzZBE (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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Shareholders’ Rights

V)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting may be convened
on the written requisition of any two or more shareholders of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up share
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within
21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) N RE®ERN(E)
(i) Enquiries to the Board iy PMEZS2EH
Shareholders of the Company will have the opportunity to ask AARBRREERGARERG LRE
questions to the Board at general meetings. Shareholders of EEEHER -FETATRESTSEL
the Company may also make enquiries to the Board in writing. EHRERN - FRERIRB NI ER—
Such enquiries shall be directed to “The Board of Directors, BARETEEE [MASEBEROERAR
Magnus Concordia Group Limited” by one of the following ZEEE|:
means:
° By mail to . Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEE IS BT E B 7B 13998 P BUG INRE20ED R ERE
° By email to . mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com
BEE
° By facsimile to  : (852) 2160 3080
BEE
The Board will respond promptly to proper enquiries raised by BEECHNOERREZ EAEH-
shareholders.
(i) Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (i) ABRERASLEZHZE
(@)  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating @ BEAETINEFRERRERE
to the election of Directors at general meetings as TREBHEEFER 28
follows:
= Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of - REARGEBERMANE
Association of the Company, a shareholder 1201 — R ZBIFHX
or shareholders (not being the person to be AHEBEARFEERD
proposed) who holds or collectively hold not less M5%.2 EM AR 2 BT IR
than 5% in nominal value of the issued shares of P2 IR (W IEFEEZ A
any class of the Company may propose a person TR RBRIAR W E
for election as a Director at any general meeting HEEmRARATEMALIR
of the Company by giving a notice in writing to the KARMERRAE EER
secretary of the Company: BF:
. of his/her/their intention to propose such . RABIBR RN AL
person for election; and B R
. signed by the person to be proposed of his/ . LHWEREBEALE
her willingness to be elected. E RPHBEEE-

Annual Report 2020 _Z "B HFFif 67



Corporate Governance Report

PEEIGIRESE
() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

68

(iii)

Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
(Continued)

(@)

Shareholders may put forward proposals relating
to the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

The period for lodgement of such a written notice
will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the
date of such general meeting. If the notice is
received less than fifteen (15) business days prior
to that general meeting, the Company will need
to consider adjournment of the general meeting in
order to (i) assess the suitability of the proposed
candidate; and (i) publish an announcement or
circulate a supplementary circular in relation to
the proposal to the shareholders at least fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business
days prior to the general meeting.

Any notice given for such proposal must include
such person’s information as may from time
to time be required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in the event that
such person is elected as a Director or any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations which
the Company may be subject to. Currently, the

following information are required:

° Full name and age;

° Positions held with the Company and other
members of the Group (if any);
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) N RE®ERN(E)
(i) Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (i) MBREAXELEZHZE (E)
(Continued)
(@)  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating @ BEAETINEFRERREAE
to the election of Directors at general meetings as TREBHEEFER 2 Fx:
follows: (Continued) (&)

Experience including () other directorships
held in the last three years in public
companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (i) other major appointments
and professional qualifications;

K5 BRIBE=F
ERABAR (HESH
EEBIOBIMEME
HFMisLEmMEFZ
HMEEBA - RiE
HEEAMEEEE
1%

Length or proposed length of service with RIS A A B2 FHisk
the Company; FEARTGFEY

Relationships with any Directors, senior BANTEMES-
management or substantial or controlling SEEEAENEE

shareholders of the Company;

His/her interests in shares of the Company

ST R 2 BER:

RAR THxT’ﬁZ%

within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO; = ( ERBHNLH

Big H%XV*B)
Amount of the Director’s emoluments and ZUEE e e
the basis of determining the Director’s REFTE@ENE 2 &
emoluments and how much of these ERRBEHRER
emoluments are covered by a service e 8 2 Ll
contract; and K
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(iii)

Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
(Continued)

(@)

Shareholders may put forward proposals relating
to the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

° A declaration by the nominated person
stating that he/she is not and has not been
subject to any of the events provided for
under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (w) of the Listing
Rules, or if any one or more of these
provisions are applicable to him/her, full
details thereof.

Any notice given for this purpose shall be directed
to “The Company Secretary, Magnus Concordia
Group Limited” by one of the following means:

° By mail to
Hong Kong
BEE
° By email to . mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com

° By facsimile to : (852) 2160 3080
BEE

Any such shareholder(s) shall be one(s) that is/
are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given.
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. Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
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() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) ) BERER (&)
(i) Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (i) RBERAXELREZ9E (&)

(Continued)

(b) To propose to put forward any other proposals at ) HRARREARE ELREEMEM
shareholders’ meeting, and for questions relating to FEMEERKRRERE LIRE
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings, B s MEmE - REREBE N
shareholders could direct all such enquiries/proposals FIEdR —THRELNERBE
in writing to “The Board of Directors, Magnus ZERMBHREER [BA%
Concordia Group Limited” by one of the following B ERAGICEEE]
means:

By mail to . Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
HaE R BT EHEFE1395 P EE IR E201EDREE

By email to : mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com

BIEE

By facsimile to : (852) 2160 3080

BEZE
(J) Amendments to Constitutional Documents ) ABERXHZEET
During the year under review, the Company has not made any REBFE AARWENHAKREERE X
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up- AHANMER T E M o AR B A ER KM XA
to-date version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of Al BT AR AN A AR &) SR B SR PR A i &5 54 o
the Company is available on the websites of the Company and The BRARRERNE — 5115 - IR AT 2B
Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the Memorandum and XN E U

Articles of Association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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IRIR M B8REIS RS

About this Report

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group” or “we”) are delighted to present our
fourth Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) report. By reporting
the policies, measures and performances of the Group in ESG aspects, we
keep all stakeholders abreast of our commitments and progress towards
sustainable development.

1. Reporting boundary

This ESG report covers the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March
2020 (the “Year”).

This ESG report includes general disclosures for both printing and
property businesses. For the key performance index (‘KPI”), unless
otherwise specified, we focus on the Group’s headquarter in Hong
Kong and two key operating subsidiaries — Guangdong Boluo
Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited and Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd.

2. Reporting standards

The content of this ESG report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (‘ESG
Reporting Guide”) set out in the Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For details of our
corporate governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report included in this annual report.

AR A&

BAEBBROBRAR (KRR REMBAR (5
i TASE ] % [ MAR2RMANFEMRE
HERERARE BABERAEENRE HERE
SRTTEEBUR 1B HE R R IR - LAMR 0 & N T AR
SEHAREERNAGRIABER

1. HREEHE

ARE HEMhEARmERESREA-ZT N
FHA-BE-_Z-_ZF=A=1+—8 ([FH
F])-

IIRIE (e REAMS BIEHR R EER
2T BB A RUE R ([FR AR
Z)mME BRIEEREEN RMFEREE
BN EBRRIH KMREELEWB AR
- BREBEZRNSEDBERATREE
P EEIRIFIRE BIRA A

2. IR{EER|

RIRE - HE REABENABT KR E SR
BRGAER AR ([BRA])EH LR
(TEmRYMD M-+ GRR-HERER
WEES) BE - ARLXERNFS  F2H
ENAFRzERE AREE -
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a¥Rs

Reporting principles 3.

We applied principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and

consistency in preparing this ESG report, as detailed in the table

W&

\ /\IJ

Tt 81 T —BUERA FHEMTRA

below. 7o

Principles’ The Group’s response

Al EEHEE

Materiality Issuers should report ESG issues when they have significant ~ We determine material ESG issues by
BEEM impacts on investors and other stakeholders. stakeholder engagement and materiality

Quantitative
21t

HEREAEESHREEREMBOHEEL
BITARELER-

KPIs need to be measurable. Targets can be set to reduce
particular impact. In this way the effectiveness of ESG
policies and management systems can be evaluated and
validated. Quantitative information should be accompanied
by a narrative, explaining its purpose, impacts, and giving
comparative data where appropriate.

BRESIERAN THE - BRARERBDSENTE-E
BORE - HERERBRKERE R M AT ATk KR
o B(LEREMSHA MR RTE WEEENE
AT RE RS-

The definitions of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency are quoted from the 1
ESG Reporting Guide set out in the Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Fi A EE R ABRASE]

2% 21 T
—++ GRE

assessment.
BMBBEFHEBRLETERNT
- REEENRTE HLEREREE-

We states environmental KPIs and certain
social KPIs on a quantitative basis,
and provide comparative data where
appropriate.

HifIESERTRRE T ENBEREIIESR
&%?Ziﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂaafki BIAER - WEE
ﬁ)ﬂr—lth{/\ T tb@%@g °

—HMRRIMEERRE LT ARRIK S
HEREARBERES]D
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We value the suggestions of stakeholders and encourage readers

3. Reporting principles (Continued) 3. ®mERFA (&)
Principles’ The Group’s response
A EEHEE
Balance The ESG report should provide an unbiased picture of the  This ESG report provides an unbiased
i issuer’s performance. The ESG report should avoid selections, picture of our environmental and social
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately — performance.
influence a decision or judgment by the report reader.
BE HEgREARSEE MR MM 2RBEITANKE RIRRE -HERERARENRIEAMLE®R
BRAESTREMTEMEEIERKNAEFER BERF THRAERENEEHENKRE -
2 MEA -
Consistency The issuer should use consistent methodology to allow for ~ The methodology for preparing the ESG
— meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time. The issuer  report is well defined. This ESG report
should disclose any changes on the methods used in the ESG  adds the residential property development
report. business in Zigong City, Sichuan Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
after the acquisition in this Year, and the
remaining scope of the ESG report is the
same as that of prior year’'s ESG report.
EITARGERA —BEESRG A S8R ZiA&% D=3 iﬁa?‘%%iﬁ‘\T\iﬁ&%ﬁi&ié’\]ﬁiaf?«ﬁ%
TFEH%T(’EE%%E’\J%F@% TABRERE HERERR BHER AR LREAMEMEAE
ERRBEEMAGTHENEE BN AR 2 A R ZEFE ([
BmlEEEamnEEmEERER
HASR M F—FREE—BU UWERD
EUHREERIERFHLE -
4. Opinion and feedback 4. EZERNNEE

B toERFHENRS TEDEERB

to contact us through the following contact information. Your AT S NERMHE BTHERER
suggestions will help us further improve our reporting and enhance BB FIE—F =R REZANREFAE
the overall sustainable performance of the Group. EREEAFEERERE -
Address: Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, Mok - EBBTEE B 1395

139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong R EINKE20EDRER
Phone: (852) 2160 3088 BEHNS: (852) 2160 3088
Fax: (852) 2160 3080 EE: (852) 2160 3080
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ESG Governance

The Group always attaches great importance to ESG performance,
promises efforts to bring positive impacts on the environment and
community in the development of our business, and is committed to
creating value for stakeholders. In order to effectively achieve sustainable
development, the board of directors (the “Board”) incorporates ESG-related
elements into strategic planning and operation management to achieve a
sustainable business model.

In the daily operation, senior management and heads of business
departments follow the requirements of the Board, regularly assess ESG-
related risks in the operation, take risk management and control measures
as appropriate and seize opportunities. The Board continuously monitors
and listens to the work progress reports of senior management to ensure
ESG risk management and internal control systems function well. The
Board is responsible for the final review and approval of the information
disclosed in this ESG report before publication to ensure its accuracy and
timeliness.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Fi A EE R ABRASE]
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Stakeholder Engagement

Through various communication mechanisms, we actively communicate
with core stakeholders to learn their opinions and suggestions on our
sustainable development performance and future development strategy.
Our core stakeholders include customers, employees, suppliers, investors
and shareholders, regulators and communities.

STAKEHOLDER GROUPS KEY CONCERNS

K ERE

BRI SRR BBES] BRESZ OB ERE
BB AT RERNEHRMATHERREBSARR
BREENEEMEZZ ZANZLFNERRER
F-RE #ERM REERERR SERBNMHE-

COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

FHERR BEESH BERE
CUSTOMERS e Product and service quality e Business visits
&5F EmEREmE SR
e Customer rights protection e Regular meetings
BEE#ERRE TFHEE
e Handling of customer complaints e E-mail and telephone
BEP KRR BFEHHREFE
EMPLOYEE e Employee wages and benefits e Employee activities
== 8 T H B a7 7 BIES
e QOccupational health and safety e Employee performance appraisals
BEERELZE BIENERZ
e Employees’ legitimate rights and interests e Employee trainings
protection 8 T

REBTIAEER

e Training and career development
Al EB R

e Company culture
hEX

Internal meetings and notices
AES=E- Y

Social media communication platform
HREREEFE
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Stakeholder Engagement (Continued) B EER (&)

STAKEHOLDER GROUPS KEY CONCERNS COMMUNICATION CHANNELS
FHERR BEER BERE
SUPPLIERS e Supply management and requirements e Business visits
HES MR RS EE R E K SR
e QOperating conditions e |iaison through email and telephone
BB BIBEFEHM R EEHL
e Sustainable supply chain management e Meetings
AREH TR e
INVESTORS AND e Financial performance e |nformation disclosed on the website of the
SHAREHOLDERS BRI Company and The Stock Exchange
REERBRR AN R R B 32 PR 4 v B8R 2 15 8
e Company’s sustainable profitability e General meetings and other shareholders
NS meetings
RBR K & R HL A AR &
e Company’s transparency
NAFERE
e Rights and interests protection
R IRE
REGULATORS e Compliance with laws and regulations e Due submission
EEEWE BEER EHA R IR
e Corporate governance e Inspection of compliance
hEER aERmE
COMMUNITIES e Social welfare engagement e Community activities
HE BELE RS * [ &
e Community development promotion e Company website
fREHRERE NN FEp

78
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Materiality Assessment of ESG issues RE Rk ERBEEEMIAM

The Group recognizes that the key issues concerned by stakeholders can

AEERRF N EBINERMBERE BRI AE

help us enhance the effectiveness of our ESG disclosures. In this Year, the EIRIE - & LEAEBRBENAREME L E - A

Group carried out stakeholder surveys through online questionnaires and
face-to-face interviews to understand the importance attached by various

M AEBBBERMES BHEAIREVARRE
RNEANLE TREFHEHEBYNRE 48

stakeholder groups to substantive ESG issues, and learn their opinions  MEAEEMEENERZE  EEUL I AEBIR
and suggestions on the environmental and social policies, practices and 3R RAZEHEK - BERRMESIRENERMER

performances. In this way, the Group accurately identified the key issues to

VAZERE BRI R B S MBS B A B SRELHA R o

be reported this Year to respond to their concerns and expectations in an

effective manner.

The process of materiality assessment on substantive issues in this Year is AN FELMFEEE M IHHRBOT
as follows:

Identifying issues 3 Bl ;& &

By taking into consideration of the Group’s business development in this Year, and with reference to national policies,
industry developments and the disclosure requirements in the ESG Reporting Guide, we identify ESG substantive issues in
four aspects, namely, environment, employment and labour practices, operation management and community investment.
BEREEASFEHEREN  EERRBER TEBER G g hERmERE3) WREZR  LABMNER
B BERSIFZH ELEERCERENESHENRE teRkEAELIEZE-

Conducting surveys B & S8 HF

We invite internal and external stakeholders to participate in the survey through anonymous online questionnaires to
collect scores on the substantive ESG issues, as well as their comments, suggestions and expectations on the Group'’s
environmental and social policies, practices and performance.
HMBFEAINBRENERBTICEZBRBENTEX 2R/ WEEHRE e EREEEEZENT Y  ARER
SERERESEHEEK BEEREMKRNTE RN

Determining materiality &€ E Z 1%

We divide stakeholders into internal ones and external ones, and the priority of issues is determined based on the matrix
of materiality assessment reflecting their average scores. Management of the Group reviews the results of the materiality
analysis and the opinions of stakeholders and determines the key issues to be disclosed this Year, which also serve as the
basis for setting ESG management objectives for the next year.

BB RHHED RABFNERIIMDBHFOERE BRESETOF0RYEENTMHER BEZEHT AEEER
BEFHEZUSIMERNFHEER BEAMFRESH WERRTE N —FERR L REQREREBENKE-
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Materiality Assessment of ESG issues (Continued) EiH #HE8REAZEEEMTME
(&)

The results of materiality assessment in this Year are as follows: AP FEEMFEERIOT

L
Q
>

ks

Materiality to stakeholders
HASEEINEEY

>0} ®

Middle Materiality to business development High
B HEBBRENEEY =
. Employment . Environment . Operation . Community
(=5 R e Zado)
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Materiality Assessment of ESG issues (Continued) EiH #HE8REAZEEEMTME
(&)

Protection of employee rights and interests
ET#EZRE
Employee compensation and benefits
8 T 3o s 48 A
Employment Occupational health and safety

EE BERREZSE
Recruitment and team building
ETHRERBRKER
Staff training and development
BTIEJIEERE
Carbon emission management
IRBEPE B
Use of water resources and wastewater treatment
IKE R 85K R 12
Environment Management of energy consumption

EmiE BERERER
Green operation and environment preservation
megERRIRRE
Waste disposal
REZE Y BR IR
Supply chain environmental and social risk management
HERRREY SRR ER
Customer service and satisfaction
EFERBEBREE
Reasonable marketing and promotion
FEEHEEE
Customer health and safety
Operation EFREHREZE

&= Product quality management

EmEEERE
Protection of intellectual property rights
HEE AR IS A E
Customer security and privacy protection
EFEERHERBTARE
Anti-corruption management and training
RESFEEEEI
Community attention and communication
tt @ BT KB
Community Public charity

#HE BENR A
Participation in community investment
2EMERE
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Materiality Assessment of ESG issues (Continued)

As indicated by the results of materiality assessment, the most important
issues in this Year are occupational health and safety, product quality
management, and customer service and satisfaction. Based on the results,
the Group highlights the disclosure of such issues in the ESG report and
further optimize the subsequent ESG work plan.

Environment

The Group is fully aware that environment protection is one of our social
responsibilities. In strict compliance with the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {fF#E A R L FEBIE(R#E
7%) ) and other local laws and regulations, we practice the concept of
green development, seek the balance between business development
and environmental protection, and fulfill our responsibilities as a corporate
citizen. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
air and greenhouse gas emissions, water and land discharges, hazardous
and non-hazardous waste generation during this Year.

1. Printing business

We have established an environmental management system for the
printing business, and developed systems and procedures such
as the “Quality and Environmental Management Manual” and the
“Environmental Factor Management Procedures” to identify and
assess environmental impact factors in the production and customer
service process, and control environmental risks associated with
workplace, production process, equipment and facilities. Besides,
the Group actively seeks and applies new technologies, new
equipment, new methods, new materials and new processes to
continuously improve our environmental performance. The business
has been certified by a third-party certification body for ISO14001
environmental management system.

ISO 14001: 2015 Certificate of Environmental Management System
ISO 14001:20153R R BB R REEE
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Environment (Continued)

1.

Printing business (Continued)

1)

Emission management

We continue to improve the exhaust emission related policies,
carry out source treatment and emission control on process
exhaust gas, volatile exhaust gas and kitchen exhaust gas, and
regularly check and maintain exhaust gas treatment facilities to
improve the cleanliness of air emission.

The production process of the printing business generates
certain Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOCs”) emissions
such as benzene, toluene and p-xylene. The Group engages
qualified testing agency every year to evaluate the organic
exhaust emissions in the workshop to ensure the compliance
with the VOCs emission standards at the place of operation.
In recent years, we have continuously improved the VOCs
exhaust emission treatment by establishing operating
standards, installing environment-friendly biological VOCs
treatment system, and introducing environmental protection
technologies and equipment, etc. The measures are detailed

as follows:

RE (&)

1.

El-l E“%i% (l"ﬁ)

1)

Annual Report 2020 _ S _SFFiR
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EITRERERERE R THRER
1 MR SA SRR MG - $R 5 B L B0 2
RIS e e BT B A A BB 1

{ft&¥ ([VOCs ) - A& - RE R —H
Ko REBGFIEFEBEENBRAKE
YR AR R E TR - R
A 1B & FTEHVOCSHE AZ 2 » T I3 44
FEH#EVOCSERAETE BB
SR EIZE  ZRVOCSIRIR R LM EE
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2 A VOCsHIHERR » BB FEIEaA T -
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Environment (Continued) RIE (&)
1. Printing business (Continued) 1. EDmIZEHK (&)
1)  Emission management (Continued) 1) HRMER (&)

Replacing traditional petroleum-based ink with soy-oil-based processing ink so as to reduce emission of VOCs
generated from fossil oil products vaporizing due to minor variations in temperature or pressure.

BEADHEES I Ih R E5H A mR o MR EEBIRTIRE KB 78065/ NE L AT A i R
B ELEEBIEAKY  EBRDASRH BB AR BRI BB -

Establishing a standard working procedure and setting up exhaust treatment and adsorption devices where
exhaust is produced. For example, activated-carbon VOCs processing system has been used so as to ensure the
exhaust gas after filtration is acceptable for emission.

BUBENRIERET EEEBERNROREFERLIE  RITEE - 106 A/EERRIDE - RERIERBE R E
RIFEHERURLE o

Introducing more environment-friendly technologies and equipment. For example, we have made use of
computer-to-plate technology in our printing process to avoid use of traditional film and associated chemicals
from the printing process so as to minimize chemical waste.

51 IR IR A BT B 2R 4 - WA {8 AR AT 25 B B R - FDEBREDRBIR R E 508 B MRt 2 maE A
e 1 B A PR & 3R AL P REY Y EE & o

Installing environment-friendly biological VOCs treatment system in the production workshop, which uses
micro-organisms attached to the filter material to degrade VOCs generated in the workshop under suitable
environmental conditions, so as to reduce the dust and VOCs in the workshop. The verification and review of this
project was completed in 2019.

EEEERZEVOCSRRAMREMERF L NAMEERBENBEROMAEY EEENREGET &
BHREANBEUEERYETRR REEENESREFLEERYRAREE AEER_Z-—NFTKERE
NErE-

Appearance and installation of the
environment-friendly VOCs treatment system
VOCSIRIR R A IMNE K L B MR B
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Environment (Continued)

1. Printing business (Continued)

1)

2)

Emission management (Continued)

The Group strictly complies with national requirements and
standards for waste water discharge and treatment, and has
developed and implemented the “Regulations on Waste Water
Discharge and Treatment”, which clarifies the responsibilities of
each function for the discharge of waste water to prevent the
environment pollution caused by waste water. The waste water
produced by our printing business includes domestic sewage
and production waste water. We set up separate pipes for
production waste water and domestic sewage. For domestic
sewage, it is treated in sewage treatment tank in the plant
before discharged into the municipal pipe network.

Waste management

The business continuously reviews and updates the
“Hazardous Waste Management Plan” every year to identify
the source and production process of hazardous waste,
standardize the storage, transfer and treatment mechanism
of hazardous waste, and strengthen the training and
implementation of relevant laws and regulations. In addition, we
entrust professional companies to properly dispose hazardous
waste in accordance with environmental protection regulations,
and are committed to reducing the generation of hazardous
waste from the source by introducing safe and environmentally
friendly chemical raw materials, as well as advanced
equipment. We sort out and store the non-hazardous waste
for recycling, and they are collected by professional waste
collectors periodically for reuse after further sorting and
processing.

RE (&)

1.

EDRI % (&)

1)

2)

BRER (&)

AEBBEEBBERERIIEE HIE
WHEE BKBRMEEERMRE) - 5
R BRI PTH KRN EIEE T

B3 LEBE /K BE IR IR B A RO )5 2 - AR SR
BENRIRBELBKE S HEEKEL
EERE/K PR AR o P8 AR A BB /K I A 03 g
IKDRIREPINEE - £ERRKNEES
KB IR BRI R B RE T E A -

BERYER

REBSFRHERTREN (CREE
WERE) - B EYIRRES
T REERBERYHNTTERER MR
BEIEHH] - IR ARRE AR AV R B -
AN HAIR B FEIE R AIRRIRR
ERHERERETZLERE XBS
REEERZE2RMETRE REL
RS ICORER D BB R
EL-RMEERKREENESERY
ETOBETERRT EHHFXERA
Bl EFIEY - B U YRR AR B D 3R
BIEBENA-
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Environment (Continued)

1.

86

Printing business (Continued)

3)

Use of electricity and water resources

The energy consumed by printing business is principally
attributed from petrol and diesel used by vehicles/forklifts and
electricity consumed at factory. We have taken the following
measures to reduce energy consumption:

° Requiring employees to turn off the electrical devices
such as lights, air conditioners, computers in time to
prevent unnecessary electricity consumption;

° Procuring energy-saving lamps, equipment and
appliances, and replacing obsolete high-power-
consuming equipment in a timely manner;

° Installing sub-meters in each of the production
workshop, office and employee dormitory to monitor the
usage of electricity;

° Conducting regular maintenance and inspection of
equipment, and fixing equipment failures in time to
reduce electricity consumption;

° According to the principle of energy saving and
consumption reduction, renovating the printing
workshop with the original equipment rearranged or
disposed, including:

® Simplifying the redundant lines in the printing
workshop, saving about 39,000 kWh per year;

® Integrating the printing workshop to reduce
the electricity consumption of air conditioners,
expected to reduce electricity consumption by
approximately 80,000 kWh each year.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Fi A EE R ABRASE]

RE (&)

1.

El-l Jﬁ;“%i% (n‘ﬁ)

3)

ENRKERER

ENpIZTs e BT 2 REEMm M NE
150 FR 70 B S LA B TR FEEE © 7 0mt

b3
Q\Hz/

SHFE R BRI THEE -

RESREE =5 8
ERBER HIETLER

R
4 b
Rii

i H

ERLESH BAERBETIES
BERBADBERAERENER

SRR ERIE - R
R R RRAEE

RIBERERE AR A BUEENRI &
B BRENERRESHREE
B BE - ERERE:

o WEIRIERMSHZ B
BEME —F A ENEE
39,000 £ A

o HHIRIEMES R ERE
AE SFEAIRVAE
#980,000F °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR M B8REIS RS

Environment (Continued)

1.

Printing business (Continued)
3) Use of electricity and water resources (Continued)

Case: Renovation of air conditioning system in the office

RO BFERABERHRE

RE (&)

1.

ENml 5= %5 (48)
3) BARKERES (H)

The business replaced the two central air conditioners in the office building with split cabinet air conditioners. After the renovation,

it can save an average of about 3,500 kWh per month, which serves the purpose of energy saving and consumption reduction,

and help promote the sustainable development of the Group.

FEBHBFEOMATREANARRENBEAEH - ZHBCER - § AR FTHEHOEEIL00E L A - BRUEE| S/

MEH REAEELEBRETHAKEER-

The major usage of water resources in the printing business,
is the operation for cooling processes. We are carried out in
strict compliance with the “Water Conservation Management
System”, and various measures are taken to save water, with
reward and punishment in place for water saving activities.
The persons in charge inspect and maintain the water-
using equipment on a timely and regular basis to prevent
unnecessary water consumption. We also encourage water
conservation among our staff to cultivate good habits of “turn
off the tap when unnecessary” and “turn off the tap as you go”
and prevent “constant running water”.
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Printing business (Continued)
4)  Paper use

Paper is one of the major resources used for our production.
We are committed to protecting various forest resources and
providing customers with reliable and stable printing paper.

The printing business has been issued the “Forest Stewardship
Council? (FSC) Standard for Chain-of-Custody (COCQC)
Certification®”, and has set up internal FSC COC system to
ensure the ability to steadily provide customers with forest
products with FSC COC certification, support the sustainable
forest management model, and realize the coordinated
development of ecological, social and economic goals.

Certificate of FSC-COC
AMEBEREZE® ([FSC|) EHEERIZERIESE

Founded in 1993, FSC is an international, non-profit, non-governmental organization
that advocates the management of global forests in a manner that is environmentally
responsible, socially acceptable, and economically feasible.

FSC COC certification provides credible assurance for the entire chain of wood processing
enterprises from log transportation, processing to distribution, ensuring that the products
are made of wood from certified and well-managed forests. Certified enterprises are
entitled to mark the name and trademark of the certification system on the products, that
is, the label of FSC COC certification.
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Environment (Continued)

1.

Printing business (Continued)
5)  Environment and natural resources

In response to the noise generated when using compressors,
printing presses and other machines and equipment, we
continue to implement policies in managing noise pollution
and the “Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprises Noise at
Boundary” (GB12348-2008). We control the noise source and
transmission by sound insulation, vibration reduction, noise
elimination and sound absorption. We employ external qualified
testing agencies to conduct regular monitoring to ensure noise
levels are in line with relevant standards.

Property business

Our property business can be divided into property development
and property investment business. We have property development
projects in Mainland China and carry out environmental management
of the construction sites. Our investment properties are office
and commercial premises, which have relatively limited resources
consumption and environmental impact.

The property development business abides by the Regulations
on Environmental Management of Construction Projects ( GGE&%
BB IRBEIEEM) ) and other laws and regulations, develops
environmental management systems and operating procedures for
projects, and sets up environmental management leading group in
each construction project with the project manager as the group
leader. The Group signs the “Agreement on Safe and Civilized
Construction Management at Construction Site” with construction
contractors, and urges them to comply with the relevant safe and
civilized construction standards and agreement requirements at
the construction site, so as to reduce the adverse impact on the
surrounding environment.
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Environment (Continued)
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Property business (Continued)

We set annual environmental management objectives and conduct
management by objective and performance appraisal to improve
the project’s performance in energy conservation and emission
reduction. The environmental management objectives include the
following:

Construction noise
management
LIRS ER

Sewage discharge

management
SESKBERE R

R®E (&)

2.

Solid waste
management

BlREERNERE

YE=T (&)

BMHIEFEREEELBE BTERERE
MEBEZ R 1RTTIA B S BLRBE 5 E VAR
KRB -AMFERFBEEBRBEATIE:

Civilized construction
and safety compliance
Y THZ2ER

All construction teams are required to sign a green construction and
environmental responsibility agreement before construction. Based
on the results of supervision and performance assessment, the
Group rewards the units, teams and persons that earnestly perform
environmental responsibilities. On the other hand, the responsible
units, departments and persons in charge are criticized, educated
and fined for the failure in management objectives and the violation of
relevant laws, regulations or disciplines.

Importance is attached to trainings and promotion of green
construction in our property development business, laying a
foundation for the implementation of green construction management
standards. At the same time, more trainings are targeted for
operators in positions with greater environmental impact, such
as those generating strong noise, dust and solid waste, so as to
enhance their awareness of green construction and work capability.
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Environment (Continued)

2.

Property business (Continued)

1)

2)

Emission management

The property development business urges contractors to carry
out the principle of civilized construction, requires that workers
regularly spray water on dusty sections at all construction sites
to reduce flying dust, apply open spray and fog cannons at
construction sections throughout the day as required, have
tyres of vehicles leaving construction sites washed, and sand,
stone and bare soil covered so as to control dust pollution
and avoid adverse effects on the neighborhood. The waste
water generated by the property development business is
mainly domestic waste water, which is discharged through the
pipe network and then treated by the municipal wastewater
treatment agency to protect the environment and avoid water
pollution.

The waste water produced by our property investment
business is mainly domestic sewage. As we operate in leased
office premises, waste water will be collected by the building
management and discharged to the municipal sewage
pipeline.

Waste management

The property development business collects and classifies
wastes on construction sites. The recyclable wastes such as
steel bars and wooden boards are recycled by a professional
third party. Earthwork and engineering dregs are first used
as backfill to reduce spoil from excavation; general domestic
waste is transported, on a regular basis, to the sanitation
station as designated by the government for disposal. In
addition, we actively advocate paperless office, encouraging
digital communication, double-sided printing, reuse or recycling
of single-sided printing paper or other paper products, so as to
reduce office paper waste.
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Property business (Continued)

2)

3)

Waste management (Continued)

Domestic waste, waste ink cartridges and toner cartridges are
the main types of waste generated from daily operation of our
property investment business. Waste ink cartridges and toner
cartridge have been properly collected by the professional
third-party institutes; domestics waste has been properly
disposed and collected by the building sanitation workers.

Hazardous waste is not generated in operation of the property
business.

Energy and water use

In response to the national policy of energy conservation and
environmental protection, the Group advocates the concept of
“energy saving and consumption reduction” and gives priority
to the use of energy-saving, efficient and green construction
equipment and tools recommended by the state and industry,
such as energy-saving construction equipment with frequency
conversion technology; at the same time, a construction
machinery and equipment management system has been
established for electricity and oil metering, reasonable
arrangement of working procedures as well as equipment
repairs and maintenance to improve the efficiency of various
construction equipment. In order to strictly control electricity
consumption in construction, distinct energy saving signs have
been set up with power supply units with maintenance and
management system applied at construction sites, according
to which electricity data should be collected in a timely manner,
and statistical accounts of electricity consumption kept for
electricity saving.
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Environment (Continued)

2. Property business (Continued)

3)

Energy and water use (Continued)

For the efficient use of water resources at construction sites,
we have taken the following measures:

° Reasonably planning the temporary water layout at
construction sites, living areas and office areas;

° Collecting rain for road cleaning at construction sites;

o Recycling the waste water from car washing;

° Providing training on water conservation to relevant
personnel to enhance their awareness of water

conversation.

In addition, the property investment business continues to
promote the concept of green office to enhance employees’
awareness of energy conservation and environmental
protection. For example, Internet and video conferencing
are applied to reduce the frequency of business travels,
reduce resource consumption and greenhouse gas emissions
therefrom. Register for the use of official vehicles is required to
reduce unnecessary vehicle travel. Consumption of resources
in office areas is under strict control with employees required to
turn off lights and power whenever necessary. The system of
accountability is established by area with daily patrols arranged

to reduce energy consumption.

RE (&)

2. MEXEH(H)

3)

Annual Report 2020 _ S _SFFiR

REREKERER ()

FHHE TIRIGKERME A - K FIERE
LA 87K FE I -

o ABRRENEIIRG HERFMA
I&& i By 7K AR EL

o IWEFRIKARMEIIESAEIKE
L E

o HSAHE HBEELANEKERSE
A

o HBRABETHOMKEE E
ERATRBEHMAKIER

IO MR B E RS Tﬁﬁzf‘@#ﬁ
FESRABIEERRES  HlF
RAERES- L/(%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ**ﬂ bl
RHER BEBITRBEENERHE
FELR EREBHRG W ABERE A E
TERER BTNV ENBRHLIT: &
BEEMARESERER REB8 Ik
FE SR HEsERERERT
ABIE - W R B  SETREREFEE
FER-

93



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS HEKREISHS

Environment (Continued)
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Property business (Continued)

4)

5)

Conservation and utilization of materials

The business selects green materials, actively promotes new
materials and new processes, and reduces consumption
of construction materials whenever possible. The use of
commercial concrete and ready-mixed mortar is one of the
examples. In terms of the utilization of material resources, we
constantly strengthen material planning and construction site
management, set up targets for material loss control, develop
and implement key control measures to improve the material
saving rate and eliminate the waste in construction. Besides,
we try the best to procure materials from local sources or
purchase cheap and durable green materials in pursuit of
better efficiency in material consumption. We also reward good
deeds in lowering material consumption.

Environment and natural resources

To reduce the impact on local ecology, relevant management
methods are in place with clear requirements on the protecting
underground facilities, cultural relics and resources during the
project planning and construction phase, including finding out
all underground facilities before construction for protection.
We steer clear of ancient and famous trees in construction. In
addition, once cultural relics are found, we immediately stop
the construction, have the site protected, and notify the cultural
relic department and provide all possible assistance, so as to
achieve the coordinated development of our projects and the
surrounding communities.

Case: Green building design of Wolong Lakeside Villa

Following the principle of sustainability, the project plan
aims at incorporating the city, buildings and landscapes,
fully integrates environmental protection into the design of
the building ecosystem, optimizes the use of ecological and
environmentally friendly building materials, and organically
combines natural and artificial materials to ensure the building’s
quality and green performance.
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Environment (Continued) RIE (&)
2. Property business (Continued) 2. WPEEK (&)
5)  Environment and natural resources (Continued) 5) RIBEXAER (&)

We attach great importance to the impact of the building on BFIEE EREZEMEH BT MRIER
the urban microclimate, introduce a natural ventilation system, Z. 5| \BABRREL Wi HHAREE
and make full use of greening and vegetation on the facade YoM AR TE _EHETTAR AL AR - DARR
and roof of the building to improve the microclimate of the EFEEOREE WE—PRAEE
residential area and further enhance the living comfort of the R EEETEE ©
owner.
Rainwater collection is an important part of building water RKKEREERKBRBANEZA
recycling. The project comprehensively plans the regional KD -ZIBEEESHRETREERM
natural terrain conditions and road design, forms a natural A MERZT KT —REERA
rainwater gathering path with internal water systems and FOK R AR A R IARI K YR B A
slopes, configures rain gardens and sponge facilities of road to BLE T REMERK SR E B T
build a complete water source piping system. Rainwater can FIKREBRF - BBERKNEET
moisturize the surface vegetation through infiltration, and can MBEFRIEF A B AR SBEN -
be used for greening irrigation after sedimentation, circulation EEEHNAKRIES ARG EZ.

and purification in the storage tank, and supplement landscape
water to achieve the purpose of saving water resources and
improving water efficiency.

Use of green building design

RS R R

Use of water recycling design

PR fE IR KR AT
Environmental key performance indicator in this Year please R FIRIRAREBUEIZ B2 EWER IR
refer to Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator. e kERBRESIER-
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Employment

We always regard our employees as the most valuable assets, and strive to
create a fair, motivated and harmonious workplace where employees can
make accomplishments and realize their personal values.

The Group strictly abides by the employment laws and regulations applied
in business and operation, including but not limited to the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {F#E A R KM L 8))%) ), the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Employment Contracts ( /2 A R
MELEEREE) ), and the Employment Ordinance ( (/&% 1&f1) ) and
the Minimum Wage Ordinance in Laws of Hong Kong ( (&K L& &) ).
The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion; working hours,
rests periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare during this Year.

We continue to improve the human resource management system. The
printing business has now been accredited by SA8000: 2014 in reflection of
its efforts in implementing labour standards, improving working conditions,
and continuously improving wages and benefits. Besides, in line with
the development objectives, the printing business revised the “Human
Resources Management Procedures” in the current Year, with a view to
further improve human resources management.

96
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Employment (Continued) & (&)
As of 31 March 2020, we had a total of 655 employees. See below for HE T -TF=A=+—H HMEEEI655
details: A BIFFEWT:

By Gender By Ranking

BRHERIE D A EE

27

e ® B
. xale ® i: " Senior Management @ SREIEE
emaie Middle-level Management @ FHEIRE
General and Technical Staff @ —AZREHMTE T
By Age Group By Geographical Region By Employment Type
RERED RIEMELESD RERELE S
51 982 29 ~1
" 161
215

193 =
20 and Below @ 208 &LA T Mainland China @ B A Full Time @ 28
21-30 @ 21-30 HongKong @ &5 Contractor @ &4
31-40 @ 31-40 Overseas @ G4
41-50 @ 41-50
51-60 @ 51-60
Above 60 @ 605%IA L
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Employment (Continued)
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Recruitment and promotion

The Group has established a sound mechanism for controlling
and planning recruitment and promotion in line with business
development. Besides, the Group adheres to the principle of
“giving full scope to the talents”. We make internal adjustments to
recruitment when necessary and will recruit through a variety of
channels, such as Internet websites, recruitment agencies and talent
markets. We uphold the principle of being open, impartial, fair and
merit-based to select the right people for the right position.

According to the “Employee Performance Evaluation System”, the
Group evaluates employees on a regular basis from aspects of
work performance, attendance, working attitude, personal qualities,
etc. based on reliable materials and confirmed facts. We allow
no cheating in performance evaluation and encourage ongoing
communication and improvement on performance. Performance
evaluation over employees is first done by direct supervisors who
will submit results thereof to department heads for comprehensive
rating. Evaluation over department heads is carried out by executive
directors, general managers and other senior management in a fair
and objective manner. The evaluation results serve as reference for
promotions, position transfers and salary adjustments. Employees
with outstanding performance are given the opportunities for
promotion and raise in salary.
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Employment (Continued)

2.

Compensation and benefits

The Group complies with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( {ZE AR HEFBEI4 &)%) ), the Social Insurance Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( {2 AR EFBIt&REIE) ) and
the Minimum Wage Ordinance in Laws of Hong Kong ( (& {& T & {&
7)), and establishes and maintains a sound and reasonable policy
on salary and benefits. Employees’ compensation is determined
based on academic qualifications, professional qualifications, work
performance, market conditions and other factors. Besides, the
Group ensures equal pay for equal work and distribution based
on work. For the printing business, the Group has developed
a management system for salary adjustment to better provide
employees with salary incentives and improve their work enthusiasm.

All employees are entitled to statutory benefits and paid leaves in
accordance with relevant local regulations. We actively implement
the benefit system and policies to provide employees with a variety
of welfares such as holiday gifts, free medical examinations, annual
subsidies for professional qualifications, as well as basketball courts,
libraries, and gyms for diversified work life.

Basketball Courts
EIR5
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Employment (Continued)

2.

Compensation and benefits (Continued)

In this Year, in order to further improve the benefit system,
demonstrate care and love for employees, and increase their sense
of belonging, the Group’s printing business developed the “Welfare
Management System”, establishing such measures as improving
the accommodation environment and food quality, diversifying
entertainment activities for employees and providing uniforms and

birthday gifts, etc.
Employee communication and activities

We establish a smooth communication mechanism to encourage
employees to express their opinions and views over opinion boxes
or to their superiors. The Group’s printing business have actively
held meetings for employees in this Year, listening to their voices and
demands while striving to address problems and satisfy their needs.

We have also held a number of activities, such as Mid-Autumn
Festival celebration, National Day celebration, tug of war, birthday
parties,

in order to enrich employees’ lives, promote corporate

culture, and enhance their sense of belonging.
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Employment (Continued)

Case: Tug of war

ESVRE VLN ;

The Group’s printing factory held a tug of war on 14 to 15 August 2019. Our employees
have demonstrated strong courage, solidarity, and tenacious fighting spirit in the

competition.

SENORITHER -ZE-NAEFRNAATEETRBRT T RERROBOTLEES
BTMRRBH - EEBIE BERBOBPELETSITREIRR

Case: Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day celebrations

RO T [HE|CHREED

On 12 September 2019, in celebration of the Mid-Autumn Festival and the 70th birthday
of the motherland, the Group held activities for employees in Zigong. The employees
participated in making lanterns, playing puzzle games and having delicious food in the

joyous festival atmosphere.

—TNFAA+TZR REVPRES  BEBETER  KEES RS [FK] -
[BE|SHRAEETIRNES BT2HEAEIERE BEX REXRNIREOT &KX

HEeRRONETEAE -
Training and Development

The Group aims to provide employees with training and development to
drive its own development. At present, the Group has established and is
continuously optimizing the training management system. The “Employee
Handbook” establishes clear requirements on providing on-the-job training
for employees and improving their overall professional abilities. In addition
to regular training, the Group also actively encourages employees to
participate in external training and provides them with appropriate funding
support to meet their development needs.

’RE (&)

BT R

AEESHERBEIMNEIHER RECELRS
ke BAl AEEBRY W HEECHFINIEERR
BE (REFM) T oRmE@EEE REITRHESE
FEBEI - RABINEELGRAE N -REREIZ
N AEEEEGEEE T2EINBFI - WAHR
HBEEES R MEEITEEF K.

Annual Report 2020 _B_B&F#® 101



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS HEKREISHS

Training and Development (Continued)

At the beginning of each year, the human resources department of the
printing business formulates the annual training plan and keeps oversight
of actual training provided by all departments according to the plan. Our
training is divided into six categories by type of trainee and goal of training:
orientation training, corporate culture training, safety and system training,
professional skill training, management skill training and career development
training, so as to comprehensively improve employees’ professional
knowledge and skills.

The Group’s property development business has set up all kinds of talent
teams, including reserve cadres, “son of Hong Kong”, “fresh” talents,
“piloting” talents, “leading” talents and “sailing” talents, we select promising
talents and provide all kinds of professional training and enterprise
management training thereto, to drive our strategy.

Case: Management training
=6l AREREFI

The Group attaches great importance to the training of the management. In this Year, the
Group organizes the managers of all departments of the printing business to participate
in the training on communication skills, so as to master the basic methods and skills of
communication and coordination, promote the relationship among colleagues, solve the

problems among different departments and improve productivity.

AEESEERHERENEI RAMFABARXBEHPIEEASL2EINEE
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Training and Development (Continued)

ETHIEERE (F)

Case: Training on the Hong Kong Listing Rules and corporate governance

Rl BFRETRAR DB EREI

The Group’s property business provides training sessions on the Hong Kong Listing Rules and corporate governance as well

as ESG management, which covers the Hong Kong Listing Rules, connected party transactions, anti-corruption, information

technology, etc. The training helps employees to have a clearer understanding of corporate governance, compliance

management and other related knowledge, and to improve their professionalism and sense of responsibility, which eventually

enhances the Group’s corporate governance.

AEEMEXBRRBELTRARARE AR HEREREENEREI ARRETBELTARY BHEALRS
RERE BAMREAT EPHETIEFRTHRARAE AREESHENZ BARTIRERREECER  ANBAE

BEhEER-

During this Year, the total number of training hours of staff of the
headquarters, printing business and property business of the Group
reached 22,075.5 hours. The percentage of trained employees and the
average training hours of employees by gender and rank are as follows:

RPF - SEEEL - DRIEBRYEERE TR
R BUE22,075.6/ N\ IRIER - BRI DX IIER B

oL BB R 8 ST R g

NRR

Average training hours of employees by gender: BRUHRESNEEFHZIGE:
Percentage

of trained Average
employees training hours
FHITEHRE
Gender 4 5 ZIEEESL (/INBF)
Male B 92.02% 17.15
Female pegi 94.41% 16.50
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Training and Development (Continued)

ETHIERRE (F)

Average training hours of employees by ranking: ERAE TN EEFLIZIRE:
Percentage

of trained Average
employees training hours
ZIFH R
Ranking B4R ZIEEESL (/)
Senior management BREE 92.59% 7.99
Middle management PR ERE 89.05% 4.60
General and technical employees —REWMET 94.30% 20.76

Safety and Health

The Group takes employees’ safety and health management as a priority,
strictly abiding by occupational health and safety laws and regulations, and
the Occupational Health and Safety Management System (OHSAS18000)
and related internal rules. The Group also adopts a series of measures
to reduce accidents, controls and prevents occupational diseases, and
develops sound management measures for occupational safety and health
to establish a healthy and safe working environment.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that had any significant impact on the Group relating
to health and safety during this Year. It includes the Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( (fFZE AR EMBHZ 2 A EE) ), the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FF 2 A RHEFBIRE 2 F5767%) ), the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

During this Year, the Group witnessed no work-related death.
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Safety and Health (Continued) ZEHERE (&)

1. Safe production 1.

We have optimized production safety and health of the printing
business in three aspects: laws and regulations, on-site
management, training and subsidy.

° Compliance with laws and regulations

We comply with local laws and regulations on labour
protection, earnestly implement relevant requirements of
OHSAS18000 and SA8000:2014, and optimize relevant
safety production system, so as to ensure the occupational
health and safety of employees throughout the year. We have
successfully achieved the goal of zero incident of occupational
health in the year.

° On-site management

C We have established a health and safety committee
responsible for improving workplace health and safety
conditions and conducting regular occupational health
and safety risk assessments;

° We have developed and strictly implemented plans
on production safety management, carried out regular
inspections on electrical equipment, fire control facilities
and other safety facilities, and deal with and manage
violations;

ZELEE

HREFEBNEEL2REER  RAEE
REE RSER BIHERESRE=(E
HEETTRE

ERRHIE

BPEMA RS ERENERER  RE
& B3 1TOHSAS18000E2SA8000:2014
B ESR WHEEEL 2 EEEE
ATEL BREFEEIRERERER
T2 BRTENREFTELEERRE
EORERER

REEE

© RURFEZEZRE® %%Eﬁl
1RSSR R 25 I ,Hiﬁﬁ
BRERLZRRE:

o BIEXBBATREAEEES
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Safety and Health (Continued)
1. Safe production (Continued)
° On-site management (Continued)

C We have attached great importance to staff's health
by creating a working environment in accordance
with the national occupational health standards and
requirements, regularly disinfecting the factory, providing
labour protection supplies for employees, and regularly
organizing employees to have physical examination for
occupational disease;

C We have developed contingency plans and organized
employees to participate in firefighting and other
emergency drills.

° Training and subsidies

High temperature subsidy is provided to front-line production
personnel, and production safety trainings are included in
the annual training plan. The human resources department
supervises the implementation of the trainings based on the
plan:

C Orientation trainings for new joiners: Through trainings,
new joiners are well informed the general situation of the
company and the basic knowledge and requirements
of 784 fire safety and ISO, and have better safety
awareness;

< Basic trainings for production safety in workshops:
Workshop employees are organized to participate in
trainings on a regular basis to keep them aware of the
importance of production safety in workshops and
reduce the accidents.

4 78 refers to Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seikeetsu, Shitsuke, Safety and Saving.
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Safety and Health (Continued) ZEHERE (&)
1. Safe production (Continued) 1. ZRE24E (&)
e Training and subsidies (Continued) o IEJIHAHER ()

Case: Staff fire drill
RPI:BIHRER

In order to raise the fire prevention awareness of all employees, a fire drill for evacuation and fire extinguishing was carried out in
October 2019. This drill tested the staff’s ability to deal with emergencies, and improved their fire safety awareness and ability to
escape and save themselves, as well as the use of fire-fighting equipment and fire extinguishing at its early stage.
RIEEEEENES HRIZEBR - —NF+AETTENRAEBOENEE - RREZAFAT B TRYRESTHAES
BEREEN RRETELENZ2E#RAGRE R BRI ER DA CERE R F R -

FOTEET O T e mue WY g

Staff Fire Drill
BITHEERS
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Safety and Health (Continued) ZEHEERE (&)

2. Safe and civilized construction 2. ZEXHEL

Compliance with laws and regulations

We develop and implement the “Rules on Environmental
Protection and Occupational Safety and Health”, the
“Measures for Construction Health and Safety Control” and
other regulations, and sign the “Agreement on Safe and
Civilized Construction Management at Construction Site” with
construction contractors, requiring them to abide by laws and
regulations related to production safety.

On-site management

Construction contractors are required to develop and
implement the safety technical plan, and to set up noticeable
production safety slogans and alerts at the construction site. At
the same time, we arrange special persons to carry out safety
inspection at the construction site to eliminate potential safety
hazards and ensure the safety of electricity, machinery, fire
control and aerial operation.

Facility management

At the construction site, construction contractors are urged
to set up safety related facilities and provide labour protection
appliances that meet relevant national safety technical
standards to ensure the construction safety.

108 Magnus concordia Group Limited B ASEEIAREIRAE]

FIEARE

HIEALERE GRERR BELEREE
2) (eTiERr2EEER) S8
BB EisTH%E GELRELEX
AEE ) @ BREE TR E2EER
BHVEEER MREDEE-

Ri5ER

BRETHHELRTLERMIR
WERTRGREBBNRL 2 EEERE
HERE -RBERMELHEAYET
RSETRERE HRZ2RE RE
FE #i BN REEENT M-

4

EE

ERMIAEHRIRERESELER
MMSEHFERE BT AASEFA
BREBZT2HINZE - REETEE

o]
T e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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Safety and Health (Continued)

2. Safe and civilized construction (Continued)

° Safety training

Trainings and guidance on production safety are provided for
all staff at the construction site to enhance their awareness
of production safety, and facilitate the implementation of
safeguard plans. The trainings cover various safety related
aspects such as the discipline, construction knowledge and

operation rules.

ZEREER (&)

2.

ZEXHET (H)
o ZRIEY

HiETHRSEBETEEEEHFE
REE RE2EREEENER ER
ZERREFESAENER BHIAED
BREZELE MIL2HH RRBE

g

Safe passageway at the construction site

BIRSRTEE

3. Fire safety training

In March 2020, all the project managers engaged in property
development business of the Group watched the live broadcast on
fire safety training. By learning the usage of fire extinguisher and
hydrant, understanding the importance of fire lanes, and drawing
experience from firefighting incidents, their fire safety awareness,
safety measures at construction site, and the ability to deal with
emergencies are enhanced to enable safe and rapid evacuation of

workers.

HEr = 2%

—ERRE-R ARENEBRREBRER
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a¥Rs

Labour Standards

In strict compliance with the Labour Law and SA8000:2014 standards, the
Group signs labour contracts with employees in accordance with laws and
regulations, and stringently prohibits any child labour or forced labour to
protect employees’ legitimate rights and interests in recruitment, dismissal
and work overtime. In order to create a diverse and equal workplace, the
Group upholds the principle of fairness and equity, respects employees
from various backgrounds, and shows no tolerance to prejudice or
discrimination on race, color, religion, age, gender or sexual orientation.
The Group has also established a mechanism for appeal and complaints to
rectify discriminatory in a timely manner.

In accordance with the “Measures to Protect Rights and Interests
of Outsourced Labour”, the property development business urges
construction units to pay workers’ wages on time by setting up special

accounts for workers’ wages and making deposits in advance.

During this Year, the Group was not aware of any cases of child labour
or forced labour which had caused any significant violation of labour
standards.

Supply Chain Management

The Group strictly abides by the “Supplier Management Procedure” and
the “Procurement Control Procedure” to strengthen the supply chain
management mechanism for the printing business, and has formulated
and implemented the “Bidding Management System” to standardize
procurement process for its property business. We are committed to
maintaining sound relationship with suppliers to jointly provide customers
with safe products of reliable quality.
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Supply Chain Management (Continued)

The procurement management process of the Group’s printing business
includes supplier selection and supplier evaluation. In terms of supplier
selection, the procurement department searches for suppliers via multiple
channels, conducts preliminary background check on suppliers fulfilling the
requirements on price and quality, collects information such as qualification,
certification and inspection report, and carries out relevant quality tests on
the materials provided by suppliers. According to the location of suppliers,
the relevant functional departments of printing business implement on-
site evaluation or off-site evaluation for the qualified suppliers to test their
management ability. Suppliers evaluated as qualified will be added in the
list of qualified suppliers by the procurement department. In the process of
supplier evaluation, the procurement department evaluates the delivery and
quality of suppliers to divide them into three grades of A, B and C based
on evaluation scores. Incentive measures are provided to qualified suppliers
to promote their performance, and for supplier failing the evaluation, the
quality control department will urge them to improve, and the procurement
department will conduct re-evaluation if necessary. Cooperation with such
suppliers could be cancelled upon further failure of evaluation.

For the property business, the Group identifies qualified suppliers for
procurement by selected bidding, simple bidding and direct commission.
Except for special matters, selected bidding is normally preferred for
the procurement business. Bidding shall follow strict approval process,
including demand approval, shortlisted units approval, bidding documents
approval, and bid determination approval, so as to ensure the openness
and transparency in the procurement process. After integration of supplier
resources, we select reliable suppliers for different procurement businesses
via corresponding evaluation, so as to ensure that the engineering and
service quality meet our requirements.
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Supply Chain Management (Continued)

The Group has established a responsibilities mechanism on supply chain
to strengthen suppliers’ awareness of social responsibility. A number of
criteria are taken in to consideration during supplier selection, including
but not limited to green procurement, chemical safety, material safety and
quality assessment. We proactively guide suppliers to fulfil their social
responsibilities and work with them to promote sustainable development.

During this Year, the Group had a total of 2,810 suppliers, divided by region
as follows:

HE#EERE (&)

REEETEEHEEES  IAHEREEEER
HoRPEIEHERRELRZARE BRET
BRRGERE tERt: MHEERE2RAREF
% S| BHENBBRBEITHLE AT BHEHAR
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RF - AEE LG HERN2 810K IR D a3
FERIEEMT

No. of Suppliers

Location of the Suppliers {4t PE 7 P AE it HEBHE
Mainland China HR B A 2,778°
Hong Kong B 32

Product Responsibility

The guarantee of product and service quality lays the solid foundation
for enterprise’s long-term development. Regarding the printing business
and property business, the Group have established product quality
management mechanism, which will continuously review and improve our
management system and operation model to safeguard customers’ rights
and interests with more efficient management.

During this Year, there was no significant non-compliance with relevant
national laws and regulations in respect of health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services provided by
the Group and methods of redress.

o This Year, the number of printing business suppliers is 104, and the number of property
business suppliers is 2,674.
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Product Responsibility (Continued) EmEE(E)

Quality management of printing business

Maintaining high standard of the printing services is the key to the
long term growth of our business. Potential suppliers are assessed
based on various factors including their pricing, quality, scale of
operation and market reputation. Regular assessments would also be
conducted to evaluate the delivery punctuality and defect rate of our
suppliers.

Strictly following the Product Quality Law of the Peoples Republic
of China ((FEARXTMBEEMEEE) ), the Regulations on
the Administration of Printing Industry ( <ENRIZZIRER) ), the
Provisions on the Administration of Undertaking of Presswork Printing
( CEDfl s A ENEIRARTE D ).

Quality control is performed to examine the product’s quality against
the quality acceptance level at every stage of the production process.
Incoming raw materials, such as paper and ink, are periodically
tested against customers’ technical specifications. Finished products
will be subjected to a number of checks and visual inspection before
packaging and delivery to ensure the exact specifications of the
customers are met.

ISO9001: 2015 Quality Management System Certification
ISO9001:20154 & EIR B R REFE
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Product Responsibility (Continued) EmEE(E)

Quality management of printing business
(Continued)

We have adopted the quality management system in accordance
with the requirements of ISO 9001:2015. For products that have

1.

HRlmEE (&)

D ARIRISO 9001:2015R ERME 2 EIR &
o %H“ﬁ%ib%é’]%uﬁﬁ R EE

to be delivered to North America, we had fulfiled their compulsory BHMUER FEEHRLE2HE ([2ERLE2RH
requirement in attaining the Global Security Verification (‘GSV”) FER ZETE\‘%ETKE%AE?EE%% BB
program. By obtaining GSV certificate, it confirmed that our exported M OEMERBEEHEELZ S RTEEER

products have been fulfilled the security measures based on
international supply-chain security requirements.

In order to control the quality of raw material, certain suppliers are
required to provide inspection reports to ensure that its raw materials
completely satisfy the Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”)
directive. It could ensure our children’s book and food packaging box
in compliance with the relevant children’s product safety rules and
food packaging safety rules respectively. As hygiene is important for
food packaging, a dust-free workshop would be used.

The quality management system of the Group’s printing business has
passed the third party certification of ISO9001 quality management

system.

In order to ensure the design and operation effectiveness of the

2

REGIRMHEE BAZRETHERRM
BERE  UWERERM B S2NAEEYNE
BRH ([RoHS 8% - LB ER B PN R EE
ENRMEBERENFINAEHEREEERLER
ELRBBELZERTE -ANRMEENEHE
BESE BARREEER-

AEBHOREKEEEEERXRRE AL
SOV EEEREENE = HRE

REREGEETEBANRT ETHERME K

quality management system, the quality inspection and management SEOREBORERINRER BmEFE
of the Group’s printing business is led by the quality control B EEAMIPIHEETT WHEBIERAR

department and assisted by other departments, and develops
management improvement plans to achieve the continuous
optimization of the quality management system.
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

1. Quality management of printing business 1.

(Continued)

The Group sets up standardized product quality inspection
procedures to check the core procedures of incoming materials,
manufacturing process, finished products and transportation, so

EmEE ()
BRlmEE (&)
AEERERL(ERUERRIFES &

KL 8RR Ra BB SROREEEIER
BRERXMNEINEPNMEERBER-

as to ensure products of good quality and exact specifications are

delivered to customers.

Incoming Quality
Control (IQC)
incoming quality
control

ERmETEE

In Process Quality
Control (IPQC)
manufacture quality
control

HRmEEE

Quality assurance (QA)

of finished products

FX fa fm EAR R

Transportation and
storage

ERRfrE

Check whether the incoming material is up to standard and prevent serious damages
during production process

B RELE R ERR  HAR AR A 2 AR F & B Bk E 1 28

Issue relevant report of incoming inspection

A ROR 1% H B B R

Build up supplier/sub-contractor punishment system for quality issues

1) X {4 5 7 /41 2% R B £ T B T ) 2

Mainly by onsite inspection of the production line, supervise the first inspection of new
products and sampling inspection of finished products to help the production team identify
and solve problems -

FEREESR SR BRESNmER 2N milie B A E BB B A A7
R

Cultivate quality awareness of the staff and supervise self-inspection of process

AR ETESER EEIFER

Establish labeling system in this Year to enable process tracking

AHEHETRBHE  HERRLFER

Each batch of finished products must pass the QA sampling inspection before shipment to
prevent serious technical errors

B-#AKmBLELCBMERT MR 2 EA EER 7 IEERBRBRSEH KM REE
Formulate and implement finished product inspection system and punishment mechanism

% I 5% B A am B & ) JE e g K

Maintain clean transportation, avoid rain and snow, and handle loading and unloading with
caution

BRBERERF HERNSIME FEEH

Maintain proper storage temperature, atmosphere and orderly placement

RERRAE ZREE BHEE
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

1.

Quality management of printing business
(Continued)

IQC process
IQCIR &

IPQC process
IPQCIRES

Pursuant to the Technical Requirement for Environmental Labeling
Products Culture Paper, RoHS 2.0° of the EU standard (a directive
restricting the use of certain harmful ingredients in electronic and
electrical equipment), REACH? (regulations on the registration,
evaluation, authorization and restriction of chemicals), and the US
Standard Consumer Safety for Toy Safety ASTM F963-16 (safety
standard for toys), the Group avoids the use of toxic and harmful
substances in production, and requires our suppliers to provide
RoHS and other test reports to ensure that our products cause no
harm to customers’ health and safety. In terms of products delivered
to customers in North America, the Group has passed the “Global
Safety Verification” system certification and implemented relevant
safety regulations to ensure compliance with mandatory requirements
of international supply chain.

With regard to customers’ return application, the Group carries
out inspection and disposal process of product return based
on the “Defective Product Output Management Procedures” to
ensure proper handling of goods returned. Meanwhile, the relevant
departments shall check the defects in a timely manner and take
corrective measures to prevent similar problems from happening
again.

RoHS 2.0: The Restriction of Hazardous Substances 2011/65/EU, a compulsory standard
established in law by the European Union, is mainly used to regulate the prohibited harmful
substances in the materials and processes of electronic and electrical products.

REACH: The Regulation of Concerning Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and
Restriction of Chemicals, performing as an EU regulation on the preventive management
of all chemicals entering its market, requiring companies to certify that household products
contain no harmful chemicals.
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

1. Quality management of printing business
(Continued)

While strengthening product quality management to prevent product
defects, we have also set up the “Regulations on Product Recall
Management” and the “Procedure for Reporting and Management
of Quality Incidents” to standardize recall procedures, and carry out
testing on recall procedure annually to ensure the effectiveness of the
process.

The Group has obtained a number of international professional
certifications on printing industry, including G7 Master Facility
Colorspace?, the highest certification promulgated by IDEAlliance,
and Global Standard for Packaging and Packaging Materials issued
by the professional certification organization SGS, etc.

* Idedlliance.

e g ey b

Mmml—d—v‘\-—!
e
e

B e

e b
[===rys) e

Authentication certificate of Global Standard for
Packaging and Packaging Materials

Global Standard for Packaging

and Packaging Materialsi? & i &

. International Digital Enterprise Alliance (Idealliance for short) is a non-profit organization
in the graphic communication industry and the largest and most important printing
certification body recognized by ISO. G7 certification is a leading specification in the
global industry created by the international federation of digital businesses, representing
advanced capabilities in facilities of the accredited enterprise in color management,
equipment calibration and standardization. G7 certification has three levels, i.e. G7
Grayscale, G7 Targeted and G7 Colorsapce. G7 Colorspace marks the highest standard.

mafonal Lmled
Bodes Twanchou Midas Frinfing Limiled

EmEME (&)

1.

G Master Facility Colorspace

Guangdang
BRORRENE LN — - EENF NEARSDS LN

B e e s at]
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RmEE (&)

ERtERESER B ERRREHRE:
REETFIET (EmBREEHAE) - <<Euu
BEEHIREZEFIRE) SHE REA
1ERFF THFHBERFETAR J«Xﬁﬁﬁ?
MAZH B R -

REEBR T ZIANRTTERER ZHERE 40

B BR 21 5 10 3£ B B8 (IDEAlliance ) A MUK & =
RFEG7 Master Facility Colorspace®sR#& N B
REBHABSCGSE AR BEM B 2R ERE
(Global Standard for Packaging and Packaging
Materials ) 55 °

Certificate of G7 Master Facility Colorspace
G7 Master Facility Colorspaces &

% 485 1> 22 B B3 (International Digital Enterprise Alliance —
18 Idealliance ) & — R IF & R0y B SE TR B 3
RISOR A HFA K B Z 1) ERIRE WS - G7TRE 2B B
BHEEHBAIZNEIRERALRE RREGSRAILE
BRENREECHER RIEREMZE T EEALRE
Ho G7TRFES G7 Grayscale * G7 TargetedE2G7 Colorsapce
= &% 4% - G7 Colorspace &= 4 ©
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

2.

Quality management of property development

In order to ensure the quality of property development, the Group
abides by the Construction Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEARKEMBEZESL) ) and other laws and regulations,
and has established the “Management Requirements of General
Contractors and Subcontractors”, the “Guide on Central Process
of Project Management”, the “Process Control Standardization
and Forms”, the “Process and Node Method”, the “Measures for
the Administration of Project Quality Inspection and Evaluation”,
the “Management System of Supervision Unit”, the “Administrative
Manual of Rights and Liabilities”. Under these regulations and
guidelines on construction quality, the construction process and
technologies are standardized, the quality inspection mechanism is
established, the construction rights and liabilities are clarified, and the
construction’s quality and safety is guaranteed.

The Group has built an all-round construction quality management
mechanism and set up management and supervision measures such
as joint examination of drawings, construction disclosure, safety
inspection and quality acceptance, offering effective guarantee for
construction quality.
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Product Responsibility (Continued) EmEE(E)

2. Quality management of property development 2. Y¥%ERE (/&)
(Continued)

Joint examination of drawings B4 & &

e Adhering to the principle of “plan first, sample leading”, we review and approve the construction design drawings and
construction plans step by step before construction, and conduct joint examination of drawings with engineering design
company, supervision company and general subcontractor to determine construction standard.

o BE[FHRET BRSIBINRA EHEIATERELBEME LR AEARBIR BIRERFAF BEEAR 4
PBEAARAHERSES BEHEIEE.

Disclosure before entering the construction site & T i 15 i X &

e Prior to construction, technical disclosure shall be made at the project site with the subcontractors to confirm technical
requirements.

o fEMIAEHEBRBERSBEIEMETRITRE BRIEXRMTEK.

On-site quality inspection of project I E R iE E E K&

e On-site engineers carry out regular and spot quality and safety inspection for construction project, and order rectification to
problems identified within a time limit.
e HETHEMUMBIEEETERERETSELLRE HEREHEFESRARL -

Special acceptance and completion acceptance 218 5§ Ut & %t T B Uk

e During the construction process and upon the completion of the project, acceptance procedures shall be carried out in
accordance with the construction contract, regulations on construction project quality management, and construction project
supervision specifications.

e HEMIMBEMEBRARIN BRUBREMEIAR BRIBESETERIILERIEEERBHNSIARTET

Delivery acceptance 3 {8 I

e In the project delivery phase, the engineering department, together with the property and customer service department, shall
carry out household acceptance inspection, record acceptance results and quality problems upon delivery, and timely track
and rectify quality to ensure delivery quality.

e EHAXRMNER IEBERWE FEFREDEARES PRI TDHBINAREINEEME KN ETEERER
B REXNEE-
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

2.

Quality management of property development
(Continued)

In order to strengthen the management of the construction units
involved in the project, the Group organizes annual comprehensive
evaluation for the performance of each general contractor and
subcontractor in terms of safety, quality, progress, civilized
construction and engineering cooperation. Units failing to reach the
standard in comprehensive assessment shall be given a warning, or
cooperation shall be terminated.

Customer satisfaction management

For the printing business, the Group has formulated and
implemented the “Customer Satisfaction Management Procedures”,
and established a customer satisfaction monitoring system to collect
and analyze customer feedback on delivery or service. We have
adopted the “8D problem solving method” to analyze customer
complaints and trace root causes in a scientific manner, so as to
improve the internal management mechanism and the coordination
of all departments, and continuously optimize the suitability and
effectiveness of the management system. The Group strengthens the
follow-ups of customer services, timely record customer feedback,
communicates actively to solve after-sales problems, records the
follow-up results, and analyzes and summarizes relevant problems,
S0 as to provide customers with satisfactory products and services.
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

3.

Em

B (&)

Customer satisfaction management (Continued) 3. EFREEETE (&)
As for the property business, the Group has established the REBMEZEBHT T (BFPEFRERERZ
“Customer Reception Standards and Assessment and Supervision EEEE) (BPEFERIE (BFE®
Mechanism”, the “Complaints Management Measures”, and the BERAESBEIEES) SHE RETFE
“Guidelines on Customer Satisfaction Survey Management”, to o RFRIE - MEERESRERE  WiRA
regulate the standard procedures of customer reception, complaint B TR R ZE X RRFEA S E R  BRE
handling and satisfaction survey. We arrange staff training and FPEREZEZENRFEE TFEBEEME
evaluation to ensure the implementation of standards, timely BB BUERR -
communication of customers’ comments and suggestions, and
efficient resolution of customer complaint.
During this Year, statistics regarding products and services of the REFEE - ENRIZE 75 72 on IR IR A AR RE BB 20 T P
printing business are shown as below: N
Unit/Case
o8 P ES
Products recalled due to safety and health % % B (# BT IR /A M 78 B I E G 0
concerns
Complaints received on products and EHE®MRBHIEF 28
services
During this Year, statistics regarding products and services of the NEFF - M EFTFE M MRS AR EESE N T A
property business are shown as below: N
Unit/Case
o8 P ES
Products recalled due to safety and health 75 EifiE R IR AR i A B U E M 0
concerns
Complaints received on products and BHE®MRBHIEF 3
services
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Product Responsibility (Continued)

4,

Protection of intellectual property rights

Stringently pursuant to the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( (R #EARKMBEEIZEE) ), the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( (% AR ZEFBEZEEREE) ), the
Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {13 A R £ B =
F3%) ) and other laws and regulations of the countries and regions
where we operate, the Group has formulated and implemented a
series of intellectual property management systems, standardized the
application, registration, ownership change and related information
management of intellectual property rights, and carried out relevant
provisions via training, publicity and continuous monitoring.

Customer information and privacy protection

The Group respects customers’ rights in information privacy and
data protection. Customer information collected by the Group will
only be used for the purposes agreed by both parties at the time of
collection, and the provision of customer data to a third party without
customer authorization is strictly prohibited. Besides, all the data are
protected by firewall, restricted system access, password setting and
other means. Only authorized employees are entitled to save and
export relevant data within the authorized scope. All the employees
signed confidentiality agreements upon taking office and are
offered with information safety training to prevent them from leaking
confidential information of the Group, so as to protect customer
information and privacy.
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Product Responsibility (Continued)
6. Marketing in compliance

The Group hews to the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( (F#EARKMBESEE) ), the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( (R ZE AR LMBEIFEZEL) ) and
other laws and regulations on advertising and marketing, formulates
and implements related systems and strictly reviews the publicity
materials and sales commitment to prevent false or misleading
propaganda content and safeguard consumer rights and interests
from being infringed. The Group requires that all materials for external
image display, promotion events, marketing, etc. should be carefully
reviewed before production and release to ensure the authenticity
and accuracy.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly complies with the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China ( {FPEE A R FMBEE) ), the Law against Unfair Competition of
the People’s Republic of China ( {(fFZE AR KEMEIR T IEEFEFIE) ), the
Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery ( (BERZE 17 2 B IR 1T
BEREITIRE) ), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Competition Ordinance (Chapter 619 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations. With reference to
the Corruption Prevention Guide for SMEs in Guangdong, Hong Kong and
Macao ( (EERF/NEEFEHES]) ), the Group incorporates integrity in
the management system, controls the risk of fraud, and prohibits all forms
of corruption, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, so
as to maintain the normal order of business operations.
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Anti-corruption (Continued)

We treat business integrity as an important part of sustainable development
and promote the concept of integrity and compliance-based governance
during the operation. Anti-corruption policy has been formulated and any
kinds of illegal acts can be reported to the Group’s delegates via phone
or e-mail. The procedures of receipt of complaints, investigation and other
aspects are kept in strict confidential.

The Group has arranged anti-corruption trainings during this Year, engaging
employees at all levels from directors, senior executives to ordinary
employees, so as to incubate an atmosphere of fair operation and build up
employees’ sense of integrity and responsibility.

During this Year, there were no identified cases of corruption litigation
relating to the Group and our employees. The Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the laws and regulations pertaining to the
prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

The property development project of the Group is located in a tourism
region of Wolong Lake in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. During
its development, the Group has proactively undertaken the task of
construction and maintenance of afforestation along the lake, made efforts
to building a pleasant natural environment for the surrounding communities,
and created green activity space for sports, leisure and entertainment for
residents.
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Features: Fighting the Epidemic

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has strictly implemented
various control measures for work resumption in accordance with relevant
national regulations, and has made unremitting endeavor to combat the
epidemic.

The Group has promptly distributed protective products such as masks,
alcohol disinfectant, bactericidal wipes and hand sanitizers to employees,
and equipped office with air fresher to effectively sterilize and fight
Coronavirus. The printing business segment has also set up a leading
group for epidemic prevention and control as soon as it resumes work. The
epidemic prevention products, including masks, disinfectants, forehead
thermometers, protective clothing and gloves are procured in a timely
manner to ensure that office supplies for epidemic prevention are well
prepared. Meanwhile, a daily health monitoring mechanism was established
which collects and summarizes the health information of all employees
through the applet of social and communication applications on a daily
basis, and timely reports health status of employees in such applications,
s0 as to ensure orderly and safe resumption of work.

Air fresher
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Features: Fighting the Epidemic (Continued)

As for the property development business, we have particularly established
pre-arranged emergency planning for epidemic prevention, set up
emergency leading group, emergency office and on-site rescue team,
and organized management personnel to conduct safety education
and epidemic prevention and control training, so as to improve the
management’s knowledge of epidemic prevention and control and ensure
conditions and measures at the construction site in line with requirements

for work resumption.

Epidemic prevention training
& B

\_

HE - NERE(HE)

WMEBREBEMIRY TIIRERER  RIUESE
BV B ATEIISRIERE  WABEEA
BRRZ2HAE BRBHEE - naERASHR
RIBRIERAEN T 8 ARG LTRSS L 2 EE R
RIEREEIETIENR

The Group has intensified management on epidemic prevention and
work resumption, requiring employees to wear masks, avoid peak hours
and group activity, monitor temperature and keep distance in queue. We
have also sterilized the key public areas on a regular basis, kept windows
open in workshops and offices for ventilation, and implemented thorough
management and control to effectively ensure employees’ health and
safety.

AEBETHNEE TR IZEMEEE BBREKE
TiME O S 8k U 28 FRERS MR &) - ARl 88
B BRI WER A KBRS M
B NG EBRE R R BEMEERTST 2
AEER ARREEIMNERELE-

Checking employees’ body
temperature
BT8R mA
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Full disinfection
2HEES

Management of epidemic prevention and work resumption
BIMEER
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator [i&%l: B85 HERERBREENIE
E
Environmental Key Performance Indicator RIZEARENIEE
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
BE-Z-%F BE-Z2-h&
=A=t+—H =B=+-AH
teim By HEE LEE
Greenhouse gas (GHG)
BERE
Total emissions Tonnes of COze 5,705.25 3,457.16
e g Wo_E({ixEE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO2e 500.86 151.79
BEHN (BE-) Bo_SikEE
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of COz¢e 5,204.39 3,305.37
SN (EE =) M-S tREE
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Revenue) Tonnes of CO2e/HK$'000 0.002 N/A
revenue
RERBHREE (BE—R&EE=) (W) Mg bikE g Tk TE M
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Production) Tonnes of CO2e/Tonnes of 0.88 0.49
production
REREBHENTE (BE—L#EE=) (E8) W_S(iREE WMES
Air emissions
BERHENE
Nitrogen oxides (‘NOx”) kg 437.47 908.39
REY =
Sulphur oxides (‘SOx") kg 0.32 1.84
k=Rl =
Particular matter (‘PM”) kg 31.47 27.27
OFR T TR
Hazardous waste
BEREEY
Total hazardous waste disposal Tonnes 4.90 10.29
EEREYRERS TR
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Revenue) kg/HK$'000 revenue 0.0001 N/A
BEERENRERE (W) TR/ FTATkaE TEM
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Production) kg/Tonnes of production 0.78 1.46
EERENRELE (EE) Tr/WHES
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator

Byl BRI - HERERARERE

(Continued) = (&)
Environmental Key Performance Indicator RIZARENIEE (&)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
BE-Z-ZF BE-Z—hF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
BE By HFEE LEFE
Non-hazardous waste
EEREEY
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonnes 49,237.26 2,122.88
FEENEZSEZYESE 7
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Revenue) Tonnes/HK$'000 revenue 0.46 N/A
BEBREVEETE (KH) BE,/F i Tl T A
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes of production 0.28 0.30
EERENELTE (EE) WE,WEE 2
Non-hazardous waste disposed
ERENEZEREY
Domestic waste Tonnes 17.14 15.60
EEREY M58
Construction waste Tonnes 2,201.00 N/A
BEEEN A TEH
Non-hazardous waste recycled
BRI EEZEREY
Paper Tonnes 1,586.06 1,856.89
R 7]
Metal Tonnes 287.41 120.75
B A
Food waste Tonnes 22.16 31.20
BTEh 7
Wood Tonnes 113.07 98.45
A# TR
Earthwork (mud) Tonnes 45,000.00 N/A
5 kL) 48 i@ A
Discarded electrical appliance Tonnes 0.56 0
WESH A
Discarded furniture Tonnes 9.24 0
WEERIER 17

—_——
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator Mgkl IRIB - HERERBERENIE
(Continued) = (&)
Environmental Key Performance Indicator REBBENISE (E)
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
BE-—F-%F BE-FT-—NF
=A=+-—H =H=t+-—H
BE B LLFE LLFE
Energy
5
Total consumption MWh 8,063.01 6,818.84
HFERE JKFL
Electricity MWh 6,205.62 6,270.86
EW)) K LI
Diesel MWh 1,668.98 339.06
S KBS
Unleaded Petrol MWh 188.41 208.92
A 80 KL BF
Energy consumption intensity (Revenue) MWh/HK$’'000 revenue 0.003 N/A
fREREE (M) KRR/ TFHTh T A
Energy consumption intensity (Production) kWh/Tonnes of production 1,240.49 968.22
BERERETE (E2) TRETHES
Water
KER
Water consumption m3 152,324.36 146,596.00
BAKE MK
Water consumption intensity (Revenue) m3/HK$’000 revenue 0.13 N/A
FRERE (W) NAK TR TEA
Water consumption intensity (Production) m?/Tonnes of production 22.51 20.82
FREE (EE) NAK/WEES
Packaging materials
BEME
Packaging material consumption Tonnes 418.80 401.09
R ERBE 17
Plastic bag and tape Tonnes 51.02 62.30
BRRREBM 73
Paper box Tonnes 367.78 338.79
] 7
Packaging material consumption density (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes of production 0.07 0.06

BEMMEREE (EE)

e, WEEE =
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Scope of environmental data collection

Environmental data collected from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was

included in this ESG report, covering the Group’s headquarters in Hong

Kong, Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited and Zigong

Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd., among which the Group’s

headquarters and Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment Co., Ltd.

are newly added coverage of this Year.

Notes to environmental data and coefficients

1)

In this Year, the calculations of certain environment intensity ratios
have their indicators according to the nature of their businesses, the
relevant environment indicator or data was divided by the amount of
its relevant revenue for the property and treasury businesses, and/or
by the production tonnes for the printing business.

The greenhouse gas emissions (scope 1) come mainly from
primary energy consumption of fixed equipment, vehicles, while
the greenhouse gas emissions (scope 2) mainly originate from
consumption of electricity. The above data is sourced from relevant
fee bills and administrative ledgers. Greenhouse gas emission factors
for domestic power grid are subject to the 2017 Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of People’s Republic of China; greenhouse
gas emission factors for other energy categories are subject to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs released by The Stock
Exchange.

In this Year, energy consumed by the Group include fuel consumed
by fixed equipment, official vehicles and purchased electricity. The
above data is from relevant fee bills and administrative ledgers; the
energy consumption coefficients are subject to conversion factors
provided by the International Energy Agency and the General
Principles for Calculation of Total Production Energy Consumption
(GB/T 2589-2008).

The Group mainly uses municipal tap water and the above data
is collected from water bills, financial reimbursement records and
administrative ledgers.

Bt 41 - BB
Z (&)
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator Mgl - IREBE -HERERBARENE
(Continued) = (&)
Social Key Performance Indicator HERERENEE
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
ﬁ:l:— 5= % ﬂi ﬁdzz g j-LE
BREBER ZA=+—HLFE ZA=Z+—BLEFE

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, age group, geographical region and employment type

Bl A - FilkAR HERERERAINESAR

Number of Number of
employees Proportion employees Proportion
BT AH (=)=¢ BT AH (=14
By gender Male 351 53.59% 343 55.50%
=R E 5 St
Female 304 46.41% 275 44.50%
7
By age group 20 and Below 32 4.89% 14 2.27%
RERMERE D 20 AT
21-30 161 24.58% 184 29.77%
21-305%
31-40 193 29.47% 207 33.50%
31-405%
41-50 215 32.82% 176 28.48%
41-503%
51-60 51 7.79% 88 5.34%
51-605%
Above 60 3 0.45% 4 0.64%
6058 A
By geographical region Mainland China 625 95.42% 565 91.42%
EI{EFEHEI D B A3
Hong Kong 29 4.43% 52 8.41%
B
Overseas 1 0.15% 1 0.17%
N [E
By employment type Full Time 535 81.68% undisclosed undisclosed
REFEEE D 2% REE AR
Contractor 120 18.32% undisclosed undisclosed
aH NI FR NI FR
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator Miggl - IREBE -HERERBARENE
(Continued) = (&)
Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) HEREBEENIEE (F)
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-Z-2F BE-ZE—NF
HARENIEE =RA=t—HLEFE =B=+—HLEE

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region®
B1.2#Z M Bl - SR A8 Bl |2 3t & &l 5 W9 1B & 2k b =R

Number of Number of
employees employees
leaving leaving
employment  Turnover rate  employment  Turnover rate
MR A A= MR AR AR R
By gender Male 294 47.04%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
EHRE D Sk REFR REER
Female 260 52.42%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
Z % RiF = RIEFE
By age group 20 and Below 85 108.97%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
BREERARIE D 2055 AR REFR REER
21-30 236 57.99%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
21-305% RIEFE R ER
31-40 159 45.82% Undisclosed Undisclosed
31-40%% RIKE KNI EE
41-50 72 29.39%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
41-505% RIEFE R ER
51-60 2 4.88% Undisclosed Undisclosed
51-607% RIKE RIEEE
Above 60 0 0 Undisclosed  Undisclosed
6057 A £ RIEFE R ER
By geographical region Mainland China 550 51.50%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
BT e & Bl 5 A i REFR KR
Hong Kong 4 7.69%  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
aBb RIF = R ER
Overseas 0 0 Undisclosed Undisclosed
YE SN REFE REER
0 Employee turnover rate in this Year = Number of employees who left employment in this ~ ° AMFBERALLE =B FHEEAREBRA L (201954
Year/(Number of employees on the 1 April 2019 + Number of employees recruited during A1EFERAB + B AR AS) 100%

this Year) * 100%
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator Mgl - IREBE -HERERBARENE
(Continued) = (&)
Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) HEEBEENIEE (F)

Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019

BE-Z_%F BEZE-Z2—N&F
BREAVER ZA=+—HLHFE ZA=+t—BHLEFE

B2 Health and Safety
B2 L 2
Work-related fatalities 0 Undisclosed
HIRTH AR AR
Lost days due to work injuries 122 Undisclosed
RAITEERANIIEBE RNIEFE
Fire drills 2 Undisclosed
EIE B IR AR
Participants in safety drills 1,092 Undisclosed
2HETEEB AR RN FE
Safety trainings of the project under construction 119 L\I/A
FERIA R B2 IHIIIRE i A
Fire drills of the project under construction 4 N/A
ERERZ2HEEE X TiE A
Participants in fire drills of the project under construction 46 N/A
FEEIAE 2 EREE AR i A
B3.1&B3.2 The percentage of employees trained and average training hours per employee by gender and

ranking category
B3.1&B3.2 REFBRBRESNZINEETILRZIFHRE

Percentage Average Percentage Average
of trained  training hours of trained  training hours
employees per employee employees per employee

ZilES ZlES
Aok ABZIIEE Aotk AR
By gender Male 92.02% 17.15  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
RMRIE 5 S AR AIRER
Female 94.41% 16.50  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
gk REE AEKE
By ranking Senior Management 92.59% 7.99  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
RBRE D aRERRE REE REEE
Middle-level Management 89.05% 4.60 Undisclosed  Undisclosed
RAREREE REE AEKE
General and Technical 94.30% 20.76  Undisclosed  Undisclosed

Staff

—REEME T R AR
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Appendix I: ESG Key Performance Indicator Miggl - IREBE -HERERBARENE
(Continued) = (&)
Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) HEREBEENIEE (F)
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2020 Year ended 31 March 2019
BE-z-%x BE-2-n%
HARENIEE =B=+—HILEE =B=+—HLEE

B5 Number of suppliers by geographical region

B5izithEBE| 5 HWHEFHE

By geographical region Mainland China 2,778 178
LR ER TN = B 5D H B A3
Hong Kong 32 37
5
B6 Product Responsibility
B6EmEE
Product recalls due to health and safety issues 0 Undisclosed
Bl 2z 2 ER {2 R 3 )l 11 78 1B A28 o AR REE
Complaints related to product and service (Printing business) 28 Undisclosed
B AE m KRS IR AR A2 2 (EDRRI SR 75 ) A
Complaints related to product and service (Property business) 8 Undisclosed
BHAEMNIREORFAB (MEER) REE
B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRES
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices 0 0

brought against the organization or its employees

A EEBRERE TERTTREERENEITHARRMF

Trained Total Trained Total
Anti-corruption training employees training hours employees training hours
RE B XillEEAH HAXIKHE XIEE A ABXIIFE
Anti-corruption training provided to directors 5 8.75 Undisclosed  Undisclosed
mMESFRENRESTE AEE AKE
Anti-corruption training provided to Senior management 13 15.25  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
employees
M B TiRENREFE =RERE R EE A
Middle-level Management 29 29.00  Undisclosed  Undisclosed
and General and
Technical Staff
AR B I B — AR N Al R EE A
8T
Scope of social data collection HEHBWRESEE

Social data collected from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 was included in 4 & SR E2019F4 A1 H £2020F3A31H : &
this Report, covering the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong, Guangdong B EHBESIEAEEFELIN EREIEERE
Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited and Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural ﬁ‘l‘\%ﬂLEﬂi‘%ﬁﬁE ANBEEREXIRFIRERR
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd., among which Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural A& EFBEHREXCRFIEEEGR QAR
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. are newly-added coverage of this Year. FHFIE SR EE -

10 This Year, the number of printing business suppliers is 104, and the number of property 10 AUFE EREBEEEOREA104  WEEBEEED
business suppliers is 2,674. BB H2,674
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Appendix II: References to the ESG Reporting 4l : (EBE -HEREA

Guide 5|y &3
ESG indicator Chapter/Disclosure
BRE HERERER =0/ WEAR

A1 General disclosure Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws Environment
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

A—RIFE EHBERKAZERBHR KR HOEES BEREEE RIE
EYNEESZHNBER LB THETABERZENEBED K&
RO EEL o

Al.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
HERUTE AR SR B HE ER - MHERIIRIR - B RERH
REBBIEIR
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, Appendix | ESG Key
intensity. Performance Indicator
BRERBRIEMENR (MWER)BE - MisEiERE it e REARE
RBEBIEE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, Appendix | ESG Key
intensity. Performance Indicator
FIEEEEREEMRER (WER)FE - MHERIERIR -t g R EIEH
I BIEIE
A14 Total non-hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, Appendix | ESG Key
intensity. Performance Indicator
FEEEEEEBER (MER)FTE - MisxiERE it e RERE
REBEBIEIR
A15 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results Environment
achieved.
i URE BERL 2B R e R PTASRCR RIR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are Environment

handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEEEEREZEEYN L REEEENEBRAE BN
R e

A2 General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water Environment
and other raw materials.

A2— R E BREREIR (BIEER  KREMEME) RER - R
A2.1 Direct or indirect energy consumption by type in total and Appendix | ESG Key
intensity. Performance Indicator
BEEEEEREEEREE - MERIERIR (g REIEH
BB BIEIE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
BEKEREE- MHERIIRIR - B REIRH
RIBWIER
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Appendix II: References to the ESG Reporting Ml : (BE -2 RERB/EE

Guide (Continued) 51» &5 (&)
ESG indicator Chapter/Disclosure Page
RE HERERER BH BRERAR i
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results Environment 86-93
achieved.
A BE IR A e st Bl RATIS AR RIE
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is  Environment 86-93

fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
At SREGE AR AR ERI B ERIERE - ARRARKS @S R RE

FRASBCR o

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products with Appendix | ESG Key 130
reference to per unit produced. Performance Indicator
R MTABRRMENBEREGEESUNE- MHERIIRIR - B R EIRH

REBEBIEIER

A3 General disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the Environment 89-95
environment and natural resources.

AS— R E BIEZETABRRBERRANERERNERZERBUE - RIR

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on major Environment 89-95

resources of the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
HMEBRSHIRBERRAARBRNEABERNERZERER RIE
BRERBEHLENITE-
B1 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Employment 96-110
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
B1—RiKE A LRE BERER TERE RE TERE 2 BRE
Tob - RIEAR LA R H M 538 RAB RV BUER ME T HEITARE
R BEHEEERERIROIEEFR -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and Employment, 97,132
geographical region. Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
RIER - EERE - FRRAR iR B D HES A - E1% - HERIRIE 1t 8 &2
BRBERENEIRER
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical ~ Appendix | ESG Key 188
region. Performance Indicator
RIER] FERER RBISNESRKLE MHERIIRIR - g R EIEH
RBEMBUER
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Appendix II: References to the ESG Reporting 4l : (EBE -HEREA

Guide (Continued) 51) &5 (&)

ESG indicator Chapter/Disclosure
RE HERERER BHBRERAR

B2 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Safety and Health

and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

B2—RiXE AR izﬂ’ﬁi‘%iﬁu&fﬂﬁﬁéiﬁaﬁﬁﬁ MEENRER T2HER
BFHBITABERZENHBERELROINEFR -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
ETERR ML TR A B R L Ko PIeRIRIzE  tt g REAH
RBEBIEE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
EAIEBERIIERSE- MHERIRIE  tt & RERH
REWIEER
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted Safety and Health

and how they are implemented and monitored.

WP RN B R R FERL 2HEE URBBRTERERES ZT2ERER

e

B3 General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Staff Training and
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Development

B3—RKE BHRARERITIIERE R ME R EAERBUR - B IE B IIEJIRER
& o

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Staff Training and
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Development,

Appendix | ESG key
Performance Indictor
EMRIREESER (MERERE RRAEREES)SSHNZI BIEIHEEE.

EEBDLL- MERIRIE &8 R
BB BUIEIR
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender  Staff Training and
and employee category. Development,

Appendix | ESG key
Performance Indictor

RMRREEERE S BEEETKZINTHEE- BT HIMERE
Wﬁ-ﬁ%’éiﬁ ek
BB BUIEIR
B4 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Labour Standards

and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B4— R E B IEE T 8518 THBR RETHETAGERTEN LIT%L|
EREZ KRG B -

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Labour Standards
avoid child and forced labour.
s BB R EE AR R E T RoaH|4 T - 4T AR

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate violations when Labour Standards
discovered.
L AE 25 3R 52 AR TR R E BR B BB 0 P ERER 9 AP BR: o & T8
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Appendix II: References to the ESG Reporting M4l : (EBE -HEREABBRE

Guide (Continued)

ESG indicator
BiIE HEREREE

B5 General disclosure

B5— R E
B5.1

B5.2

B6 General disclosure

B6—REE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.

ERHEENRE R ERBEBUR -

Number of suppliers by geographical regions.

minmE oM HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

a5 RS A A e e 1B 01 - (R EL N T B RAAE 1) O 4 R 7 3K
B UREBEANNITRERT %

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
FHMRHERNRENERERZS BEE REAMESTHE
VAR R R B M B ST BT AR E R EEERER
RO E R

Percentage of total sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.

EEREEXEETALEEREAMAERBNE D -

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BRERANEMEIRGHIRFFEE LR EE %

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

i it B 4 o % (R PR NG EE R R R V1B B

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HnEERTEMEREMBIKERT -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HIUEBEEERRERFLBEE  ARBBERITRER -

51> &al (#&)

Chapter/Disclosure
EH HERAB

Supply Chain
Management
frEsEeEns

Supply Chain
Management,

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
HEEE IR - MISRIERIE -
e RERBBEIUER
Supply Chain
Management

Page
B

110-112

112, 135

110-112

HEHEER

Product Responsibility 112-123

£

it

Em

Product Responsibility,
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
EmEE - MRS 1t
2 RERERERIER
Product Responsibility,
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
EmEE MRS 1t
2 KERERERIER
Product Responsibility

121,135

121,135

122

EmEE
Product Responsibility
EREE
Product Responsibility

115-120
122

EmBEE
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Appendix Il: References to the ESG Reporting Fff &I

a¥RsS

Guide (Continued)

ESG indicator
B HBREREE

B7 General disclosure

B7T—RIKE

B7.1

B7.2

B8 General disclosure

BS— R E

B8.1

B8.2

(RE -HERER

51> &al (%)

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRAD LEREAR - 1R - BRGF RO REBHIBOR BT

BEATENHEBEZRRDINEFR -
Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting

period and the outcomes of the cases.

HETAE

FE%%W%?ﬁA&EE%%&ﬁE% VRS Sac

2B RAFAAER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.

Py 8 i R B WAR T - A RMBERITRER G-
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BRAMLES BT iR
JErL 18 ) a5 A BUR -

BIELRE

ENBRERFLEHE

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture sport).
IERERE (NHE REEE 4

)

BITHF @5 Xt 58

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

ERIHEMBAER (W HKERE) -
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Report of the Directors

EEBHEE

The Board presents the report of the Directors together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Business Review

The information on business review is set out in the Management and
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 26 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this “Report of the Directors”.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal subsidiaries are established in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and the British Virgin Islands. The Group is primarily
engaged in manufacturing and trading of printed products, property
investment, property development and treasury businesses. The principal
activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by business lines and
geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in

the consolidated financial statements on pages 171 to 297 of this annual
report.

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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Particulars of Principal Properties

Particulars of principal investment properties and properties under
development held by the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out on pages
298 to 299 of this annual report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 300 of this annual report.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The aggregate purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 64% and 69%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year respectively.

The aggregate revenues attributable to the largest customer and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 6% and 24%
of the total revenue of the Group for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

Relationship with Suppliers and Customers

The Group establishes long-term cooperation relationships with reputable
suppliers within the industries. The Group implements a series of
procurement management systems and control procedures so as to select
suppliers in a prudent manner.

The Group keeps good relationship and maintains effective communication
mechanisms with its customers. This is to ensure that the Group is well
aware of all customers’ requirements or feedbacks on a timely basis and
provide high quality services to its customers.

TEYXREHR
AEEN-B-BE= A=+ BARAZIERE

YR FRER Y 2 AR RN AN F R 552982299
E °

PBEHME

AEBSTREGFBREEZZEREERAGERE
R AR FIRES008

FTEREBREF

AEESAHERRAANREREESG A RBHE
7 RIFEE TR AN [ 7R 5 [ A AR R R 4064% 5.69%

REBZAEERARREPENEZAFHRAD B
B AN B RS B A YA H96% K2 24% ©

EF REZETHMEASREABRR (ORBEESM
HMEBARRF D BTN KB B5%E ) BRI E
TEHEHREFTHEE TS

BHEEEREF @&

ARERZERNEER BRI RBEERE-
REEEE— FIRBEIEGE REERRF  UEE
Bz TR ER -

REBERPRETRIFEER - WHER R 2 BB R
BB ARERASERERSHMAETPZER
HEBREE U REFREEL RS-
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Share Capital

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, share premium,
other reserve and contributed surplus of the Company are available for
distribution to ordinary shareholders (after deduction of the accumulated
losses) provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

Accordingly, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders at 31 March 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$220,858,000 (2019: HK$248,190,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities
During the year ended 31 March 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities
listed and traded on The Stock Exchange (2019: nil).

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Hung Kin Man
Mr. Ho Man
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Directors (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting and
be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Li Qing and Mr. Ho Man will retire
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 20 August
2020.

The term of office of each Independent Non-executive Director will be two
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information
of Director(s) since the last annual report are set out below:

1. On 2 July 2019, Mr. Ho Man resigned as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
Momentum Financial Holdings Limited (@ company listed on The
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1152).

2. On 22 January 2020, Mr. Ho Man was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee, the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of Grand
Ocean Advanced Resources Company Limited (a company listed on
The Stock Exchange, stock code: 65).
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Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts that are
Significant in relation to the Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director and the Director’'s connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 March 2020, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Annual Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers
such Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole

or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EFBREE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange.

During the year under review, none of the Directors and chief executives
nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had
exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company, its
specified undertaking or any of its associated corporations.
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EEBHEE

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares FERRABROPREBERG 2R
and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company HEARAFEEXZSITHRAERM N -TF=
as at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of persons in the A=+—8" T3 ATHEELA TZHXT’J}&*EE%HQT/J}
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be  ## M AR MIBIE B A MBS IEH EXVELFE28%35D

disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 #8532 \Iﬂ$ AR IRIEFEF RS KIS
of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of  XVEBE336{FR EBE BN EFTIL 2 Z e T -
Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein were as
follows:
Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the RAAQATZLERZFA
Company
Aggregate Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Ordinary Shares Interest in the
of the Ordinary Share of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Company Held the Company
AL E ARBREBR
BRRESEB B REEME ZERAY EafiNEs L
Qingda Developments Limited Beneficial owner 2,025,308,473" 35.04%
BEERBRAA EmEAA
New Element Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“New Element”) ([New Element |) SEHER 2 s
Integrity Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Integrity Fund”) ([ Integrity Fund |) ZEGEE R
Kapok Wish Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Kapok Wish”) ([Kapok Wish ) REHEE 2 R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the

Company (Continued)

Aggregate
Number of
Ordinary Shares

%%ﬁi%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@&ﬁZ%ﬁ
]

RAAREEBERz2EFR (&)

Approximate

Percentage of

Interest in the

of the Ordinary Share of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Company Held the Company
A E ARBREBR
BE®SE LB B REEHE ZERAY EafiNEsk
Grand Generation Belief Virtue Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
Investment Limited (‘Grand Generation”) S HDER 2 #E e
B EEREBRLIA ([H&H])
Wang Xigiang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
F 558 ZiEHDAE 2w
Xinsheng International Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Xinsheng International”) REHER R
MRBERIERAER AR ([FRBEE])
Zeng Dazhang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
BAE REHERE 2 s
Ally Cosmo Group Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Ally Cosmo”) REHER 2 R
BESEEBRAR ([BE])
Li Li Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
£ REHEE 2
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RARAREBERz2EFR (&)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the

Company (Continued)

Aggregate
Number of
Ordinary Shares

Approximate
Percentage of
Interest in the

of the Ordinary Share of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Company Held the Company
A E ALBREBR
BE®SE LB By HEEEE ZERAY EafiNEs
Juye Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Juye Investments”) AR 2 s
EXREBRAA(EXKRE])
Chen Liying Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
BoR 7 28 TAEHIER 2 s
Shining Orient Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Shining Orient”) ([ Shining Orient | ) REGNEE R
Pioneer Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Pioneer Fund”) ( [Pioneer Fund ) REHER R
Hong Kong Huixin Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Hong Kong Huixin”) RIEFIER 2 S
HLEEREER R ([HLEZ])
Higher Cycle Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%

(“Higher Cycle”) (THigher Cycle )

HEGIEE 2 R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares FERRAROREBRAO 2 EH
and Underlying Shares (Continued) (#&)

Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the RAQARZERZ2HFR (&)
Company (Continued)

Aggregate Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Ordinary Shares Interest in the

of the Ordinary Share of

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Company Held the Company

I E S N ERATREBR

BEREER BB Bin HEHEME ZERAE EEBHAEI

SFund International Investment Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
Fund Management Limited ZEGEE R

(“SFund International”)
EMNESBEREREESEEEGRAA
(TEMESEE])

Luso International Banking Limited Security interest in the shares 2,025,308,4732 35.04%
(“Luso International”) R 2 iR

RPIEIRRERTT (DRPIRIRR )

Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Beneficial owner 1,618,143,724% 28.00%
Company Limited EmlEAA

fE & 5 B BRI IR B R A R

Xu Ruigiao Interest of a controlled corporation 1,618,143,7243 28.00%
RInE REHER 2 R
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the
Company (Continued)

i Such interests represented 35.04% of the issued share capital of the Company owned
by Qingda Developments Limited, a company wholly-owned by New Element, which is
in turn wholly-owned by Integrity Fund. The limited partners of Integrity Fund are Grand
Generation, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Xigiang, and Xinsheng International,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Zeng Dazhang. The general partner of Integrity Fund is
Kapok Wish. Kapok Wish is owned as to 30% by Ally Cosmo, 30% by Juye Investments
and 40% by Shining Orient. Ally Cosmo is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Li, and Juye
Investments is wholly-owned by Ms. Chen Liying. Shining Crient is wholly-owned by
Pioneer Fund. The limited partner of Pioneer Fund is Hong Kong Huixin, which is wholly-
owned by SFund International. The general partner of Pioneer Fund is Higher Cycle,
which is wholly-owned by SFund International. Sfund International is wholly-owned by
Guangzhou Huiyin Tianyue Equity Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd (“Huiyin”). Huiyin
is owned as to 95% by Guangzhou Technology Financial Innovation Investment Holdings
Co. Ltd. (“Guangzhou Technology”) and 5% by Guangzhou Industrial Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Industrial”). Guangzhou Technology is wholly-owned
by Guangzhou Industrial. Guangzhou Industrial is wholly-owned by Guangzhou City
Construction Investment Group Co. Ltd, which is a state-owned enterprise of the People’s
Republic of China. Accordingly, all of the abovementioned parties were deemed to be
interested in the interests owned by Qingda Developments Limited pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

e Luso International is interested in 2,025,303,473 shares in its capacity as a person having
a security interest in the shares.

e Such interests represented 28.00% of the issued share capital of the Company owned by
Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ms.
Xu Ruigiao. Accordingly, Ms. Xu Ruigiao is deemed to be interested in the interests owned
by Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at 31 March 2020, there was no other person who was recorded in the
register of the Company as having interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

Controlling Shareholder’s Interest in Contracts
There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of its

subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EFBREE

Share Option Scheme

BRREE

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) is ~ ANA 7 7 B T2 (%13 ) B EH 7T
set out as follows:

1.

Purpose:

BH:
Participants:

S EE

\

»

Total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme and
percentage of the issued share
capital that it represents as at the
date of this annual report:

RIBZFT B BT 2 R BB HE
RAFERBHME 22 HBITRA
BotL:

Maximum entitlement of each
participant:

m

FSEERERZBRE LR

To give incentive to Directors, employees or business consultants of the Group and
any other party as approved under the Scheme.

BTYAEBEE  BEEREHBEMMZTEIE 2 (I E A 42/ -
Including, inter alia, Directors, employees or business consultants of the Group.
BE(ATEE)ANEB2E% EEEBRERM-

220,720,827 ordinary shares are available for issue under the Scheme, representing
approximately 3.82% of the issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

WRIBE LT8R T8 17220,720,827 N BB - HERNAFRAMS HITRAD
3.82% °

The maximum number of shares issuable under options granted to each eligible
participant in accordance with the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the issued share capital of the Company (or such other percentage as may
from time to time be permitted under the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws
and regulations) at any time. Any further grant is subject to the shareholders’ approval
in general meeting with the participant and the close associates of such participant
abstaining from voting.

REBEZFEARTEAERZEENBRENMEM12EA BRANATETRS RN
HEBRNARRNERFEEBITRAN1% (S ETRRRAEEMEREER
ERTREF2BEREMBEDL) - AME-—TREAFRRRBRAE LitER
RSEERZZ2EENETHREARRRER I IER-
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EFBRES

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRREstE (&)

5 Period within which the shares must An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period,

be taken up under an option:

RIBRE R AR M) 2 B

6. Amount payable on acceptance of
an option and the period within
which payments shall be made:

B AN R Iy B 2 SRR AN R
iR

7. The basis of determining the
exercise price:

TEEEEEE:

8. The remaining life of the Scheme:

%At 8] R A

commencing on the date of offer for option (the “Offer Date”) (which must be a
business day) and in any event such period must not be more than 10 years from the
Offer Date, subject to any restrictions or the minimum holding periods or conditions
(including but not limited to any performance targets or the time required for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised) on the exercise of the options as
the committee, which is delegated with the powers of the Directors to administer the
Scheme, in its absolute discretion may determine. No performance target is expressly
specified in the Scheme.

No share option has been granted since the date of adoption of the Scheme on 29
August 2012.

EERATRHRBREAD (HRAH]) (WAREXRR) EHNRARKITER
Pk - HEEmNE AREME A SEARKRAMES +F YAREEREETERX
AEZREERITERBERELENBRE ZEMRBS&ERARRIMGET (2
BEARMEMRBIERINITEARER A BIRE 2R ) RR - &t 811K
REHAEARRER-

BZER _E-—_FN A TN BERKE HERHEMBRE-

HK$1.00 payable to the Company upon acceptance of option which should be taken
up within 28 days from the Offer Date.

BREANEA R A B8R MM - M AN T AR FN.008 7T

No less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in The Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date (which must
be a trading day); (i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in The Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the Offer Date (which must be a trading day); and (jii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company.

TER T =BZ&aH8E: MIXMEARERNMMEBEH (BARKZHE)M
BARBBRDZWHE: (HXAEARERNREZAREHN (LWEARXHH)H
TAR 5 B FARARRBD 2 FHRME : R(i)ARRRMDEE-

Valid until 28 August 2022 unless otherwise terminated under the terms of the
Scheme.

BREFHEE T _FN\AZTNB I EERBZA BRI T AL ERIBR SN -
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than the section “Share Option Scheme” disclosed above, at no time
during the year under review there subsisted any arrangement to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, its subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries or its other associated corporations, was a party and the
objectives of or one of the objectives of such arrangement are/is to enable
the Directors, their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company, its specified undertaking or any of its associated
corporations.

Equity-linked Arrangements

Save as the Scheme disclosed in the above section “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year and subsisted at the end of
the year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Connected Transaction

On 28 October 2019, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited
(“Huijin”) (a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a
connected person of the Company) in relation to the underwriting
arrangement for the Rights Issue. Pursuant to which, Huijin shall underwrite
such number of rights shares (rounded down to the nearest whole number),
which together with the shares already held by the Huijin and its committed
shares, will be equal to 28% of the total enlarged issued share capital of
the Company at completion of the Rights Issue and the Company is not
required to pay any commission or reimburse any other fees or expenses
under the underwriting agreement. Details have been disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 October 2019, the circular of the
Company dated 12 December 2019 and the prospectus of the Company
dated 17 January 2020.

Equity Fund Raising Activities

To strengthen the Group’s capital base and to enhance our liquidity and
lowering the gearing level, the Company has completed Rights Issue and
issued 1,806,221,760 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.11 per
rights share on the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares
of the Company during the year. Details of the Rights Issue are set out in
the Company’s prospectus dated 17 January 2020 and in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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Use of Proceeds from Rights Issue

Upon completion of the Rights Issue on 13 February 2020, the Company
received net cash proceeds of approximately HK$194 million (the “Net
Proceeds”). The Company intends to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i)
approximately HK$170 million for the repayment of bank borrowings falling
due; and (i) approximately HK$24 million for general working capital.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had applied the
Net Proceeds of approximately HK$25 million for repayment of bank
borrowings.

The remaining Net Proceeds as at 31 March 2020 of approximately
HK$169 million is intended to be utilized in the following manner: i)
approximately HK$145 million for repayment of bank borrowings falling due;
iy approximately HK$24 million for general working capital, expecting to be
utilized during the financial year ending 31 March 2021.

Corporate Governance

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company is
set out on pages 35 to 71 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies

With regard to the environmental policies, the Group aims to minimise
the Group’s environmental impact. The Group is committed to promoting
awareness and decisions that contribute to achieving environmentally
sustainable development. The Group will comply fully with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. We will use fuel, water and other
natural resources efficiently and conservatively. We recognise this to be
a continuous process of improvement and we seek to actively look for
environmentally-friendly options and carry out environmentally-friendly
practices whenever appropriate and possible.

Further details will be disclosed in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of the Company on pages 73 to 140 of this annual
report.
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EEBHREE

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Under Article 179 of the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment
is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. During the year
under review, the Company had taken out and maintained an insurance in
respect of such Directors’ liabilities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float as required by the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Number of Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2020, the Group, including its subcontracting processing
plants, employed 655 (2019: 618) staff and workers. The Group provides
its employees with benefits including performance-based bonus, retirement
benefits contribution, medical insurance and staff training. Also, the
Company adopts a share option scheme to provide alternative means to
align the employees’ career goal with the Group’s business strategy. Details
of the Scheme are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” of this
annual report.

The Group’s remuneration policy for its employees is set up and approved
by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board, as authorized by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Report of the Directors
EFBRES

Loan Agreement(s) with Covenants Relating
to Specific Performance Obligations of the
Controlling Shareholders

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of the Company’s
bank loan facilities entered into during the year and/or subsisting at the
end of the year, which contain covenants requiring specific performance
obligations of the Company’s controlling shareholders:

1. On 25 July 2019, the Company, as a borrower, entered into a
revolving loan facility agreement with a bank, as the lender, for
certain banking facilities with an aggregate amount of up to HK$320
million which has maturity terms ranging from one year (subject to
extension for one more year) to two years from the first utilization
date. Pursuant to the terms of the revolving loan facility agreement,
Qingda Developments Limited and any persons acting in concert
with it shall remain the largest group of shareholders of the Company
at all times during the subsistence of the banking facility. Details of
the transaction are set out in the announcement dated 25 July 2019.

2. On 30 September 2019, the Company, as a guarantor, and certain of
its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, as borrowers, entered into a
revolving loan facility agreement with a bank, as the lender, for certain
banking facilities with an aggregate amount of up to HK$150 million
which is subject to annual review without a definitive maturity date.
Pursuant to the terms of the revolving loan facility agreement, Qingda
Developments Limited and any persons acting in concert with it
shall remain the largest group of shareholders of the Company at
all times during the subsistence of the banking facility. Details of the
transaction are set out in the announcement dated 30 September
2019.

Failure to comply with the above requirement will constitute an event of
default under the respective revolving loan facility agreement. In such case,
the relevant lender stated above may declare the covenants be breached
and/or declare all outstanding amounts together with interest accrued and
all other amounts payable by the Company to be immediately due and
payable. As at 31 March 2020, Qingda Developments Limited held 35.04%
of the issued share capital of the Company and had complied with the
above specific performance obligation.
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Report of the Directors

EEBHREE

Annual General Meeting

The 2020 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday,
20 August 2020 (the “2020 AGM”) at 10:30 a.m. at Auditorium 1/F, Duke of
Windsor Social Service Building, 15 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and vote
at the 2020 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 17 August 2020 to Thursday, 20 August 2020 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 August 2020.

Impact of COVID-19

The outbreak of a respiratory illness caused by novel coronavirus, or
known as the COVID-19, around the globe has affected many businesses
to different extent. In response to this, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
regions in which the Group has business operations. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak, manages
the business risks and evaluates its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EEBHEE

Review of Accounts

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Independent Auditor

At the close of the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company held
on Thursday, 22 August 2019, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as
independent auditor of the Company upon expiration of its term of office.
Ernst & Young was then appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as independent auditor of the

Company at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited

Li Qing
Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN SMERS

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of Magnus Concordia Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Magnus
Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 171 to 297, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1B L% SEhERES

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN SMERS

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BMEETER

REETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

NS NMAESRARENER

Valuation of investment properties

BREMENMGE

The Group’s investment properties comprise commercial and
office properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China for rental
earning purposes. Such investment properties were measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period and the aggregate
carrying amount of these investment properties as at 31 March
2020 was HK$434 million, which represented approximately
10.4% of the total assets of the Group.
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Significant estimation is required to determine the fair values
of investment properties, which reflect market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation of these investment properties
as at 31 March 2020. In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, a variety of sources such as
recent transaction prices of properties of similar locations and
conditions, and capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents
were used by the valuers in the valuations.
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Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures included, among others, obtaining and
reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the external valuers
engaged by the Group and assessing the external valuers’
qualification, experience and expertise and considering their
objectivity and independence. We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in the assessment of the valuation
methodologies applied and the key assumptions and estimates
adopted in the valuations, and performing benchmarking on the
value of the investment properties to the transaction prices of
other comparable properties on a sampling basis. We compared
property-related data used as inputs for the valuations with
underlying documentation, such as lease agreements. We also
assessed the disclosures of investment properties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1B L% SEhERES

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

HEETER

REETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

NS NMAESRARESER

Purchase price allocation for a business combination

EBEHNBEEEI R

In August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interests
of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Jinjin
Group”) at a consideration of HK$388 million. The acquisition
constituted a business combination which required the
identifiable assets and liabilities to be recognised at fair values
on the acquisition date, with the excess of the identified fair
values over the acquisition and related transaction costs to be
recognised as a bargain purchase gain on acquisition.
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As at the date of acquisition, the aggregate fair value of
identifiable net assets of the Jinjin Group amounted to HK$456
million. A bargain purchase gain of HK$60 million, after netting
off with directly attributable transaction costs of HK$8 million
arising from this acquisition, was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2020.
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Significant judgements and estimations are required in respect
of the fair value assessments and the allocation of the purchase
price to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. To support
management’s determination of the fair values, the Group
engaged an external valuer to assist.
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Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
MBS ESH NS B EMTE3K%3T °

Our procedures included, among others, reviewing the purchase
price allocation schedules prepared by management and
discussing with management to understand management’s
identification and measurement of the acquired assets and
liabilities assumed. We also evaluated the values of material
assets and liabilities of the Jinjin Group at the date of acquisition.
We involved our internal specialists to assist us to evaluate
the assumptions and methodologies used in the valuations
and evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency
of the valuer. We also involved our internal tax specialists to
assist us in the assessment of the tax impact calculated by
management, including analysing and evaluating the estimates
and assumptions made by the management. We also assessed
the Group’s disclosures of the business combination.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN SMERS

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BMEETER

REETEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

NS NMAESRARENER

Net realisable value of completed properties for sale and
properties under development

EXIHENERMARTMENTERFE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties for sale amounted to
HK$2,913 million in aggregate, which represented approximately
69.5% of the total assets of the Group. These properties were
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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The net realisable value was estimated based on the expected
selling prices, the cost of completion of properties under
development, when applicable, and the costs to be incurred
in selling these properties based on then prevailing market
conditions. The estimation of net realisable value involved
significant judgement. The net realisable value was assessed
by management with reference to valuations carried out by an
external valuer.
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Related disclosures are disclosed in notes 3, 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures included, among others, obtaining and
reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group and assessing the external valuer’s
qualification, experience and expertise and considering their
objectivity and independence. We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in the assessment of the valuation
methodologies applied and the key assumptions and estimates
adopted in the valuations. Our internal valuation specialists
have evaluated the expected selling prices to contracted prices
of pre-sold units, subsequent pre-sold price and property
market conditions. For the cost of completion of properties
under development and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties, we evaluated valuer’s estimation methodology, which
has been updated to reflect the latest historical information and
the budget construction costs for the completion of properties
under development and the costs to be incurred in selling the
properties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1B L% SEhERES

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN SMERS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
1B L% SEhERES

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN SMERS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

=y =\ SN
%mCMimlx
Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z_ZTF=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FET FHET
Revenue WA 5 310,404 214,380
Cost of sales THE KA (246,109) (147,859)
Gross profit EA 64,295 66,521
Other income, expense and net losses HEfA X REBEFE 5 (30,734) (997)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREES D (25,884) (15,505)
Administrative and other operating expenses THREARAMGEETH (65,689) (58,856)
Change in fair value of investment properties KEYMEZ ATFEE (78,201) 16,610
Gain on bargain purchase of a property EEBEMERREY
development business, net Z W EEF R 31 60,070 =
Operating profit/(loss) RN (BE) 6 (76,143) 7,773
Finance costs BMEEMA 7 (8,362) (4,832)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRELATE R, (EE) (84,505) 2,941
Income tax credit/(expense) FrsfisEe, (FAxX) 8 10,790 (400)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEBR, (BB) (73,715) 2,541
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to owners RAREE AEML HK cents HK cent
of the Company BRAERN (EHE) AL L
Basic and diluted ERREE 11 (1.85) 0.08
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
o nilaE

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE_ZT_ZTF=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FH&T
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REERF (FBR) (73,715) 2,541
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS: Hith2HEEE:
Other comprehensive loss that may be reclassified HE s @ EIIA 1B A9
to profit or loss in subsequent periods: E 2 EEIE -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 128 /& 9 ¥ 75 =~ [E i, = 48 (31,837) (18,777)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEHMEHEEIE (31,837) (18,777)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR ANEEEAEWN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY AFEX>HEIRARE (105,552) (11,236)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

tna Ml RS R

31 March 2020
—E-FTF=-F=+—H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y RE R EE 12 40,494 40,891
Investment properties REYE 13 434,440 522,644
Prepaid land lease payments TEA Z A 494 5k 14 - 3,051
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 15 30,258 38,493
Prepayment for acquisition of a property W —IBEERER
development business ZTER RIA 16 - 80,000
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 505,192 685,079
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 17 43,190 46,252
Properties under development e 18 2,853,687 =
Completed properties for sale ExELFEMHE 19 59,656 53,707
Accounts receivable JE W R 3R 20 49,866 58,654
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TE AT FRIR - Ho b FE UK AR 3K
REMEE 20 161,339 23,265
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AT ERMREBEZZEHMEE 21 96,037 31,671
Pledged cash and cash equivalents EEFEEIREEED 22 120,000 =
Restricted bank balances SRR B IRITEETT 22 35,807 =
Cash and bank balances R& RIBITL 22 265,502 67,945
Total current assets REBEELE 3,685,174 281,494
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable FE T BRR 23 180,182 45,839
Accrued charges and other payables FEET B FR B Ho i e < AR X 24 268,195 44,679
Contract liabilities GHBE 25 1,893,374 6,382
Bank borrowings IRITIER 26 373,127 71,099
Tax payable FEfIHRIR 109,039 48,428
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 2,058 =
Total current liabilities REBEARE 2,825,975 216,427
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 859,199 65,067
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBER 1,364,391 750,146
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

GellFINRE

31 March 2020
—E-FTF=-F=+—H

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5 THT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Bank borrowings RITIEK 26 - 63,532
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEAE 28 520,660 59,981
Lease liabilities HEBRE 27 1,875 =
Total non-current liabilities EmBBERRE 522,535 123,513
Net assets EEFE 841,856 626,633
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &2 A#HE AELER
Share capital f& 7R 29 577,920 331,081
Reserves G 30 263,936 295,552
TOTAL EQUITY A 841,856 626,633
Li Qing Au Hoi Lee Janet
=5 EEF
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rolEanSaE

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

Retained
Exchange profits/
Share Share Other Merger  fluctuation (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
REERN/
B& R EE Hit e BOtfE EXRBRE (RHBR) BRER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TR TAT TAR Thx ThAR TR
(note i) (note i) (note iii)
(H3ED) (Bt i) (B i)
At 1 April 2018 R-Z-NFEA—H 331,081 257,674 4,000 24,000 14,023 7,091 637,869
Profit for the year FREN - - - - - 2,541 2,541
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZEFE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERZ
translation of foreign operations (B X % - - - - (13,777) - (18,777)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) & 2 YA/
for the year (BB 88 - - - - (13,777) 2,541 (11,236)
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF=R
1 April 2019 =t+-Bk
“E-NENA-H 331,081 257,674 4,000 24,000 246 9,632 626,633
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (78,715) (73,715)
Other comprehensive loss FEEMZABSE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEENEBZ
translation of foreign operations X Z% - - - - (1,837) - (31,837)
Total comprehensive loss FEREFELE
for the year - - - - (31,837) (73,715) (105,552
Issue of shares upon WE-BNFEEERE
acquisition of a property ESG
development business 29, 31 66,216 60,919 - - - - 127,135
Issue of shares upon rights issue 1% 14 %17k (7 29 180,623 18,062 = = = = 198,685
Share issue expenses BRIDBITHY 29 = (5,045) = = = = (5,045)
At 31 March 2020 RZZ=-ZF
“A=t+-H 577,920 331,610 4,000 24,000 (31,591) (64,083) 841,856
Notes: (TR

(0] Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders of the Company in [0] BREBEARBBRERRNAR ZE—NERFBEFRG LiLE

the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company, share premium, other reserve and ZHARER ARRZRMEE  EMEEHERBARR
contributed surplus of the Company are available for distribution to ordinary shareholders (RHBREHBRE)AIRSIRTARR L BRRE - HE
of the Company (after deduction of the accumulated losses) provided that the Company BEREZEDTADRZ BHEBEARREREEREERKFR
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately S EIE 2 fEIE -

following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

(ii) Other reserve represents the excess of the face value of redeemable preference shares (i) ot 48 T 5 0] B (2148 25 IR (A R 38 — T Y 4F B () BE BT
over the consideration paid upon redemption in 2004. NRIEZ &%

(iii Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares of the (iii) EHREEDIRER AN RSB EARFTIREN B R RR

acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares issued for HZEEEAAREKEEENETEARC OB 8 -
the acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation in 1996.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

molRERER

Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-Z-_TF=A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KETHAERERE
Profit/(loss) before tax: BRELATE R, ( Eiﬁ #) (84,505) 2,941
Adjustments for: FHEE -
Finance costs BMEEH 7 8,362 4,832
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BB RRETE 6 13,203 11,465
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEAT L Mo AR A0 1< B 5H 6 - 118
Reversal of impairment of inventories GFERE 2 =7 6 (526) (720)
Impairment of completed properties for sale PRIFEMEZRE 6 3,109 =
Impairment of accounts receivable FEW R SR 2 RE 6 S 34
Impairment of an other non-current asset H3EmeEE 2 RE 6 7,590 -
Impairment of an other receivable H i FEWBR 5K 2 R E 6 7,565
Foreign exchange difference, net (EN ERE )T 5 (895) (1,680)
Gain on disposal of items of property, LEWE -BE K
plant and equipment REER 2 W 5 (124) (3,343)
Fair value change of financial assets at fair value NEFERBMREZRZ
through profit or loss PREELNTEE 5 6,562 737
Change in fair value of investment properties WEWMEZ N TFEES 78,201 (16,610)
Gain on bargain purchase of a property EEBEVERREB
development business, net e F 8 31 (60,070) -
Professional fees incurred for a potential acquisition 2 £ L ki =5 18 B &= A4 &
EXEH - 9,559
Bank interest income H|ITFBEWA 5 (1,702) (661)
(23,230) 6,672
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,(EM) 3,588 (18,403)
Decrease in completed properties for sale ERIHFEMERD 87,373 =
Increase in properties under development A 2% AR ) 338 N (412,411) =
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEUW R % /WQ/ (#m) 9,333 (6,637)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEf K08 - b BRI R H
other receivables and other assets HWEER LY, (M) (81,594) 788
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at ATFERMNRIBEZEHEE
fair value through profit or loss S () (70,928) 35,691
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FEfTBRZRIE A0, (R ) (50,414) 15,666
Decrease in accrued charges and other payables JEETE R R EMEMN RIS (57,405) (7,785)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 555,864 6,382
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEBES, (FTR)R
& (39,824) 32,374
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EENEH S (2,338)
Mainland China income tax paid BT B A AT 1S B (9,756) (3,497)
Net cash flows from/(used in) %é‘é'ﬁ*}ﬁﬁﬁﬁ g/ (FrA)
operating activities EREFHE (49,580) 26,539
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

meREHRER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z_ZTF=-A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHERESRE
Acquisition of a property development business U ﬁﬁ—lﬁ%ﬁ?‘?&%% 31 (139,707) =
Increase in restricted bank balances SR HIER T AT I8 0 (24,894) =
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BERZENAR
equipment and other non-current assets HM3EmeEEIHEE (3,322) (15,683)
Interest received BUF & 1,775 661
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, EEWE KEL&E
plant and equipment IHB 2 e sA 668 4,557
Prepayment for acquisition of a property WM EBRRER 2
development business AR IR 16, 31 - (80,000)
Professional fees paid for a potential acquisition & EH&E%%IEEHW?% &M - (6,855)
Net cash flows used in investing activities RETEHARSRETHE (165,480) (97,320)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RBETEMERERE
New bank borrowings FrERITER 517,128 63,391
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (278,586) (44,107)
Proceeds from rights issue AR PT1S FE 29(v) 198,685 =
Interest paid B A (13,038) (4,810)
Rights issue expenses HAR RS2 29(iv) (5,045) =
Principal portion of lease payments MENRZ A (2,018) =
Net cash flows from financing activities MEETHERESREFHR 417,126 14,474
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERAESEE
CASH EQUIVALENTS B ORd) B 202,066 (56,307)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year E%ﬂiﬁ%&fﬁAﬁﬁ 67,945 128,038
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net Exge s R TR (4,509) (3,786)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FREGRASEE
OF THE YEAR 265,502 67,945
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReREESEELEEIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the FEMBRAKRAE 2
consolidated statement of financial position Be MRITET 22 265,502 67,945
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tne AR5 ¥R S P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.1

Corporate and group information

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units D&E,
20th Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) are manufacturing and trading of printed products,
property investment, property development and treasury businesses.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 March 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ml

SRS SMicE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ol I RS MisE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE-_Z-_ZTF=-A=1+—HIFE

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 19

Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlernent

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
xRS MisE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 19 and HKAS 28,
and Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs are described below:

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under
a single on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16
is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue
to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at 1 April 2019, and the comparative
information for 2019 was not restated and continued to be
reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified
as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property
and motor vehicles. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single
approach to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective exemptions
for leases of low-value assets (elected on a lease-by-lease
basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term leases”) (elected by class of underlying asset).
Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating leases
on a straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from 1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
statement of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

As a lessee - Leases previously classified
as operating leases (Continued)

Impact on transition (Continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to include the
right-of-use assets in property, plant and equipment in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair value,
the Group has continued to include them as investment
properties at 1 April 2019. They continue to be measured at
fair value applying HKAS 40. For the leasehold land previously
included in prepaid land lease payments, the Group reclassified
these payments as right-of-use assets.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019:

° Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

° Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics when measuring
the lease liabilities at 1 April 2019

° Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 2 EERBESE (&)

disclosures (Continued)
(@  (Continued)

Financial impact at 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April JANR=S

2019 was as follows:

R-ZZEB-NAFHA—-—BHH%

—NFOA—BERABT BV HR

SEAFIRELE 2FENT

HK$'000
FHT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets 15 A 1 & EE S 0 6,287
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments TERT M A A BOR (3,051)
Increase in total assets BEMBELN 3,236
Liabilities =R
Increase in lease liabilities and total liabilities HEREBREEATRIEM 3,236
The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the —hWFRA—BMEEaERR
operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as —NWEFE=ZA=+—HNEEHEEX
follows: EHRENIT
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 RZE-NFE=ZA=+—8H®
REHEHRE 4,107
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and B R E MRS E T
those leases with a remaining lease-term ended on or RZEZZEF=R=+—HHZH
before 31 March 2020 I E R R AE (635)
Commitments relating to leases of low-value assets HMEEEEEHERBRRE (59)
3,413
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at RZZ—-NAFMA—BH N
1 April 2019 T E B RFI= 4.3%
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 —NEFMNA—BHHEEARE 3,236

—_——
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

()

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to
as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity
considers changes in facts and circumstances. Upon adoption
of the interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any
uncertain tax positions arising from the transfer pricing on its
intergroup sales. The interpretation did not have any material
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions 2
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
L No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 B E#1E &% R4 MMNE 8B ER

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for
an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that
occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
xRS MisE

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BEM{EERERNE B ER

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
and only if () the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (i) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted. The Group
has not received any rent concessions as a direct consequence of
covid-19 pandemic and therefore, the amendment is not expected to
have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2.4 EXSETERMMR

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and debt investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

AF{E B

REBERNSREMRIZAFETEREMER
BEHRE - A FEDETS2RENTEAN
ETNEFZZTHEEEMPISER AR
AR ERS - AHEENERBRHEER
EXBRRENRHINEEXRBENTIETS

FRARBEEMSNERT AREERER
HRBMTIHETT L ERZENTIHEMLR
$%I%MULE’91@7§°§FE}ZE1TE’\J NFAETS
SEERBESRBEEERGUR

most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The BN 'Jﬁ TEE-

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the BRE™

fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

FEeREENDTEFEAEZEERTIHLMET]
ERAZEESIN&ZD MREMRA  FIEZ
BEETH ARERREESI &S RE
MR 52 88 E A A RSB AR

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

AEBEFRBEANTRIERNGETDE ME
BRAERTERNTE AREFFIEMEAEH
R ABE M B ER D ER AR E AR
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. e

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

192 Magnus concordia Group Limited B ASEEIRNEIRAE]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lllm

SRS SMicE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the assets. Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Construction in progress represents costs incurred on buildings
where construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, the Group intends to hold for use as property, plant
and equipment. These properties are carried at cost which include
development and construction expenditure incurred and other
direct costs attributable to the development less any accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress since it is not in use. Upon completion of the construction,
the construction costs are transferred to the appropriate property,
plant and equipment category and depreciated accordingly.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the
relevant lease of the leasehold land on
which the buildings are situated, or 20
to 30 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term of the
relevant lease, or 20%

Plant and machinery 6.7% to 33.3%

Furniture and fixtures and ~ 20.0% to 33.3%

office equipment

Motor vehicles 20.0% to 33.3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Where the estimated
recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying amounts,
the carrying amounts are written down to their estimated recoverable
amounts.

Gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets,
and is recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)
(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or

when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)
(Continued)

Group as a lessor (Continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the income statement due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership is retained by the lessors are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)

Prepaid land lease payments (applicable before
1 April 2019)

Prepaid land lease payments represent non-refundable rental
payments for the lease of land. The up-front prepayments made
for prepaid land lease payments are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease or where there is impairment, the
impairment is expensed in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less applicable variable selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets,
professional fees and other attributable costs incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties for sale.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Properties under development (Continued)

Properties under development are classified as current assets when
the construction of the relevant properties commences unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and cost of
land use rights directly related to an existing contract that will be used
to satisfy performance obligations in the future. The costs to fulfil a
contract are recorded in properties under development if they are
expected to be recovered. The amount is amortised on a systematic
basis, consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition of the
contract to which the asset relates.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of completed properties for sale is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds received after the end of
the reporting period, or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting
period, by management estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions or reference to a valuation report from an independent
valuer. The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs
attributable to such properties.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue and income recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPP!I”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets RERHEMWEHMEE (&)
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued) BIETTE (8)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the

statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.
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This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
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the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities includes accounts payable, accrued
charges and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
depreciation or amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of the fair value of an asset less costs of disposed and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (CGU’s). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

U

(i)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(iv)
v
related to the Group;
(Vi)
identified in (a);
(vii)
(vii

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the

customer).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where a
provision is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
income statement, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at prevailing progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible costs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is recognised when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised goods or service to a customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or service may transfer over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

Revenue from the sale of goods and scraped materials is recognised
at a point in time when the goods and scraped materials are
transferred and the control has been passed, since only by the time
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for the goods and
scraped materials delivered.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised when the
properties have been completed and delivered to the buyers and
the Group has a present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant. As a practical expedient, an entity does not need to adjust
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
financing component if the entity expects, at contract inception, that
the period between when the entity transfers a promised good or
service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

Rental income, net of incentives given to lessees, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Gain or loss from treasury business is recognised on the transaction
date when the relevant sale and purchase contracts are entered into.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the Mainland
China government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension
Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the subsidiaries
with respect to the Central Pension Scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the Central Pension Scheme.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 E A&t BE M (&)

(Continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their income statement are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the financial
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors as applicable.
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make Judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes and deferred taxes mainly in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for tax for each entity of the Group.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these estimates is different from the amounts that
are initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax in the financial period in which such determination is
made.
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Income taxes and deferred taxes (Continued)

The Group has rebutted the presumption that the carrying amount
of the investment properties measured at fair value will be recovered
entirely through sale. The investment properties are held within a
business model whose objective is to consume their economic
benefit over time. The related disclosures are included in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below:

Business combination

On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interests of
Jinjin Investments Co., Limited and its subsidiaries. The acquisition
constituted a business combination which required the identifiable
assets and liabilities to be recognised at fair values on the acquisition
date, with the excess of the identified fair values over the acquisition
and related transaction costs to be recognised as a bargain purchase
gain on acquisition.

The management has performed fair value assessments and the
allocation of the purchase price to the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. To support the management’s determination of the
fair value, the Group engaged an external valuer, Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, to assist. The related disclosures are included in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of the Group’s printing business

Management has conducted an impairment review of the CGU of the
Group’s printing business and determined the recoverable amount of
the printing business based on the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use.

The value-in-use calculation uses cash flow projections based on
the detailed financial budgets approved by management covering
an 8-year period (2019: 9-year period) with estimated annual growth
rates ranging from -40% to 3% (2019: 2% to 4%) and weighted
average cost of capital of 12% (2019: 13%)).

Management estimates the cash flow projections based on certain
assumptions, such as estimated revenue and estimated margin on
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, expected
revenue and the discount rate. This evaluation is also subject to
changes in factors such as industry performance and changes in
technology. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these assumptions, the disposal values of the property, plant and
equipment and the pre-tax discount rate.

The carrying amount of printing business’s property, plant and
equipment at 31 March 2020 was HK$35,722,000 (2019:
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments of
HK$42,047,000) without any impairment recognised (2019: nil).
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for receivables is based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information including ageing of the accounts
receivable, past repayment history subsequent settlement status,
credit profile of the customers and on-going business relationship
with the relevant customers at the end of each reporting period.
Management also considered forward-looking information that may
impact the customers’ abilities to repay the outstanding balances
in order to estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for properties in the same location and condition and subject to
similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including
() by reference to independent valuations; (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of a different nature, condition and
location (or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (jii) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred at those
prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence such
as current market rates for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash
flows. Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying amount
of investment properties, are given in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature
of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling
prices, the costs of completion of properties under development,
and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on the
prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result
in a provision for properties under development and completed
properties for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in the
period in which the estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
The related disclosures are included in notes 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of inventories of the printing business

The Group assesses the carrying values of inventories of the printing
business by reviewing the inventory listing and ageing analysis on
a product-by-product basis at each reporting date, and makes
impairment for those obsolete, slow-moving inventories and items
that are no longer suitable for use in production. Provision for
impairment is made by reference to the latest market value and
current market conditions for those inventories identified. The related
disclosures are included in notes 6 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Significant accounting Judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Mainland China land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and
other property development expenditures.

The subsidiary of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China is subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in
Mainland China and the Group has not finalised its LAT returns with
various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes.
The ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact income statement and the provision for
LAT in the period in which such determination is made. The related
disclosures are included in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EXRGHHE R MG (&)

HEF T RERZE ()
Bl A dth + st 3R AT ([ L B (ERR )

R ARG ([RE]) Mg ER L 1
BE (AHEMEMBFRER IR L (2
BAHRAN BERAREMYEEES L))
A 23T A F-30% 2= 60%4K

AEEETEAMNENEFRBEEBOMBER
RIZBBN IR (BT - 28T - 770 B s T Rl
e RZENEANERSEER BAKERRK
BEARRBHEEE L DR ETRT R B
It EEE IR E SR R H ARSI A E
HEBEARHE - N BEEHBRETRENTIRE
FEANTHEE » AR BRI E I B ARk (b 5T
BEZERE - WRZEEENRENIASBRES
VRN ERTR IERERKE Y ENRa
R W MR TR AR LB
MHERREFH N RS M IEHRRMES -

Annual Report 2020 _B_ZEFHR 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tne AR5 ¥R S P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information by business lines

The operating segments of the Group are determined based on
internal reporting to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”) (the executive directors of the Company) for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The internal
reporting focuses on the strategic operation and development of
each business unit, of which business units with similar economic
characteristics are organised into an operating segment for the
Group’s CODM to evaluate its performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Printing — Manufacture and sale of printed
products

Property investment — Investment and leasing of
real estate properties

Property development - Development, sale and trading of real
estate properties

Treasury — Investment and trading of debts, equity
and other instruments

Others and corporate - Other non-reportable business
activities and operating segments
and corporate not constituting a
reportable segment individually,
together with corporate income
and expense items and acquisition

related costs

The Group’s CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of earnings or loss before interest
expense and tax (“EBIT” or “LBIT”) and earnings or loss before
interest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA” or
“LBITDA”).

Others and corporate segment assets mainly include cash and bank
balances, short-term deposits, property, plant and equipment that
are managed on a group basis and the assets related to other and
other unallocated assets.
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4. Segment Information (Continued) 4. DHER (&)
Segment information by business lines REKES 2o MER (&)
(Continued)
Others and corporate segment liabilities mainly include bank HEtRITHOHBEEETZERENEREEER
borrowings that are managed on a group basis and other unallocated RIRITIEF AR EMAR SR E-
liabilities.
The segment information by business lines is as follows: REBEIN 2 HEBERNT -
Property Property Others and
Printing  investment development Treasury corporate Total
DRI MERE NERR B% HURTHK @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TRRT TER TR TRRT TER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-Z-ZF=A=+-HLEE
Segment revenue (note 5) AEA (Hi3E5)
Sales to external customers mNBEPHE 206,761 10,385 87,138 - 1,502 305,786
Other revenue HilA - - - 4,618 - 4,618
Total revenue LoNzt 206,761 10,385 87,138 4,618 1,502 310,404
EBITDA/(LBITDA) EBITDA/(LBITDA) 11,589 (77,938) 36,497 (2,584) (30,504) (62,940)
Depreciation neE (10,938) (157) (45) - (2,063) (13,203)
Segment results — EBIT/LBIT) 9 EPE4E —EBIT/(LBIT) 651 (78,095) 36,452 (2,584) (32,567) (76,143)
Finance costs MEER (8,362)
Loss before tax RHAIER (84,505)
Income tax credit FiEHER 10,790
Loss for the year rEEEE (73,715)
As at 31 March 2020 R-Z-2£=A=+-A
Total assets BELE 152,416 468,416 3,132,420 216,143 220,971 4,190,366
Total liabilities afEEE 117,337 62,256 2,671,745 224,430 272,742 3,348,510
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2EHER (F&)
BEB25 20 BER (&)

4. Segment Information (Continued) 4.

Segment information by business lines
(Continued)

BEBEIZ2DBERNT : (&)

The segment information by business lines is as follows:(Continued)

Other segment information: HihpER:
Property Property Others and
Printing  investment development Treasury corporate Total
EN ) NERE NERE E% HERTH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TR TiER TET
2020 k- o33
Capital expenditures EAY 4,057 5 811 - 141,892 146,765
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE BERSHENE (10,938) (157) (45) - (2,063) (13,203)
Reversal of impairment of inventories BEREEE 526 - - - - 526
Bank interest income RITFBBWA 57 15 201 614 815 1,702
Fair value loss on investment properties REMEZNTERSE - (78,201) - - = (78,201)
Fair value loss of financial assets at fair value ATERMRNERZ
through profit or loss SREEZATEBE - - - (6,562) - (6,562)
Net exchange gain I R a5 733 62 29 - 7 895
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BERE
plant and equipment BB 2 W& 124 - - - - 124
Gain on bargain purchase of a property SERENERREBL
development business, net a5 - - 60,070 - - 60,070
Impairment of an other non-current asset Ht B EE 2 ME - (7,590) C = S (7,590)
Impairment of an other receivable Hit MR 2 R fE - - (7,565) - = (7,565)
Impairment of completed properties for sale BEEIHENEZRE - - (3,109) - = (3,109)
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4. Segment Information (Continued) 4.

Segment information by business lines

B EBER (

&)

BREB25 20 BEH (&)

(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: (Continued) REBEI2HEERET : (&)
Property Property Others and
Printing  investment development Treasury corporate Total
DRl WERE NERR E¥ HEHRTH @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TR TET TR
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-E-NE=A=t-HLEE
Segment revenue (note 5) AEWA (HiEES)
Sales to external customers mINBEPHE 198,638 11,159 - - - 209,797
Other revenue HiA - - - 4,583 - 4,583
Total revenue LNt 198,638 11,159 - 4,583 - 214,380
EBITDA/(LBITDA) EBITDA/(LBITDA) 11,565 25,506 = 4,159 (21,874) 19,356
Depreciation and amortisation WERBH (11,185) (66) = = (332) (11,583)
Segment results - EBIT/(LBIT) o8 HE- EBIT/LBIT) 380 25,440 - 4,159 (22,206) 7,773
Finance costs HEER (4,832)
Profit before tax BRI A 2,941
Income tax expense Fre B (400)
Profit for the year AEF R 2,541
As at 31 March 2019 R=B-AF=A=+-H
Total assets BESE 178,816 562,919 158,085 55,202 11,551 966,573
Total liabilties BfEEE 123,605 164,883 7,953 20 43,479 339,940
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HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

4. Segment Information (Continued) 4. DHER (&)
Segment information by business lines REKEN 2o MER (&)
(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: (Continued) REBENZDEERINT « (&)
Other segment information HitmHER
Property Property Others and
Printing  investment development Treasury corporate Total
DRI WERE WERRE Ef EHRTH @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR TR FER

2019 —E-hE
Capital expenditures EAY 17,742 797 = = 81,439 99,978
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE BERSHENE (11,067) (66) - - (332) (11,465)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B LRNNTR &S (118) - - - - (118)
Reversal of impairment of inventories BEREEE 720 - - - - 720
Fair value gain on investment properties REME 2 A FEKR - 16,610 - - - 16,610
Fair value loss of financial assets at fair value ATERMRERZ
through profit or loss SREEZATEBE - - - (737) - (787)
Net exchange gain/(loss) EHWs/ (BE)F8 (286) 73 = 22 1,871 1,680
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BEREHEEE 2 ki
plant and equipment 3,343 - - - - 3,343
Note: Total liabilities of the “Others and corporate” segment includes tax payable of Mis: [EMRTR]SBzEERERERBAFEL
approximately HK$37,409,000 (2019: HK$39,050,000) which relates to the & —ITHE 1 E % B RO B 9 B 18 £937,409,00078
disposal of a discontinued operation in prior years. 7C (=2 — L% : 39,050,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

4. Segment Information (Continued) 4. DHER (&)
Geographical segment information b 35 73 &B & K
The business of the Group operates in different geographical areas. AEEBENRMIGLEERS  WAREFE
Revenue is presented by the countries where the customers are ZERZN -BERTHEIFRBDEEIIREE
located. Capital expenditures and non-current assets are presented FIE 2 IR 251 « IR 25 2 HEERT -

by the countries where the assets are located. The segment
information by geographical area is as follows:

Revenue Capital expenditures
['ON EAXRXH

2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET THET FHET
Mainland China K PE 123,693 28,790 3,823 17,374
Hong Kong BE 30,243 24,167 142,942 82,604
United States of America EH 84,061 88,428 - -
United Kingdom eSS 24,826 25,270 - =
Germany = 2,916 8,490 - =
France A B 15,423 18,093 - =
Other countries EBER 29,242 21,142 = =
310,404 214,380 146,765 99,978
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HE-_Z_TF=A=+—HILFE

4. Segment Information (Continued) 4. DHER (&)
Geographical segment information (Continued) i o E R (&)

Non-current assets

RBEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Mainland China FR K e 161,801 209,399
Hong Kong BB 343,391 475,680
505,192 685,079
Information about major customers FEEFZEH
During the year, none of the customers of the Group contributed over RAFE BEAEEZFHAEEZBKA
10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10%JA L °
In last year, revenue from each of the first and the second largest EF - REHRBEBSBHIZKAKE =K
external customers of the printing business segment, amounting to SNER P I U A 9 Bl 49 428,590,000 7T &2
approximately HK$28,590,000 and HK$21,943,000 respectively, 21,943,000 7T * SAEANE B BYLAI0%IA £ -

contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group.
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WALUREMKA ZHRKREE

net losses RE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZZHIMT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAAZ WA
Sale of printed products $HE ED il 2 o 206,761 198,638
Sale of properties HEWE 87,138 =
Others Hith 1,502 =
295,401 198,638
Revenue from other sources E Ay R A
Rental income Helh A 10,385 11,159
Interest income from financial assets at fair value A FEXRBRNIEHRZ S REE
through profit or loss 2 FBUA 4,618 4,583
15,003 15,742
Total revenue FEN N 310,404 214,380
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WALUREMKA XHKREE
net losses (Continued) FE (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEFEHZWA

(@
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Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 March 2020

(@ HATWAER

BE-E-ZEF=-A=+—HLEE

Property Others and
Printing  development corporate Total
ENml MERE Hth R AT Hat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FTHET TER FTET
Segments ks
Type of goods EmER
Sale of printed products 5 & EN I & M 206,761 - - 206,761
Sale of properties HEME - 87,138 = 87,138
Others Hit - - 1,502 1,502
Total revenue from contracts BEEHZ WA BE
with customers 206,761 87,138 1,502 295,401
Geographical markets i 45
Mainland China ElEibN 30,374 87,138 - 117,512
Hong Kong &5 21,421 - - 21,421
United States of America ES 84,061 - - 84,061
United Kingdom s 24,826 - - 24,826
Germany = 2,916 - - 2,916
France 5 15,423 - - 15,423
Other countries HiBR 27,740 - 1,502 29,242
Total revenue from contracts BEFAH 2B EE
with customers 206,761 87,138 1,502 295,401
Timing of revenue recognition Il A R 52 &5 [
Goods transferred at a point AR
in time BERER 206,761 87,138 1,502 295,401
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WALUREMKA ZHRKREE

net losses (Continued) FH (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHZWA (&)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (@ #MAOWAER (E)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BHE-ZT-—NF=A=+—HLHFE
Printing
EN R
HK$'000
FHT
Segments 2
Type of goods EmER
Sale of printed products 52 EN Rl 2 @ 198,638
Geographical markets I i3 7 35
Mainland China B K 23,046
Hong Kong B 14,169
United States of America e 88,428
United Kingdom =" 25,270
Germany = 8,490
France & 18,093
Other countries HAb B R 21,142
Total revenue from contracts with customers BEPEN B ARE 198,638
Timing of revenue recognition DON TS
Goods transferred at a point in time RE-—KHEBEYER 198,638
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and
net losses (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of printed products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
printed products and payment is generally due within 30 to
180 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
provide customers with volume rebates which give rise to
variable consideration subject to constraint.

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
the properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers and the Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable. Payment in advance
is normally required.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and

WAUREMEEA  XHREE

net losses (Continued)

An analysis of other income, expense and net losses is as

follows:

(/)

Hitt A - X HRSEFENIMMT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Bank interest income RITHBEWA 1,702 661

Sales of scrap materials i & BE R 2,455 2,429
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BERREHEE 2 W

plant and equipment 124 3,343
Fair value change of financial assets at fair value AFEXMRIERZ SHMEE Y

through profit or loss NEFEEH (6,562) (737)
Professional fees incurred BEWEEEMEENEEEA

for potential acquisitions (5,600) (9,559)
Impairment of an other non-current asset HiIEmBEE 2 ME (KMi3E15)

(note 15) (7,590) -
Impairment of an other receivable (note 20) H U ER R 2 RE (F5E20) (7,565) =
Impairment of completed properties for sale EREIHFEMEZRE (3,109) -
Termination benefit costs R AIBA (4,436) -
Net exchange gain B 54 U s 5E 895 1,680
Sundries I8 (1,048) 1,186

(30,734) (997)
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6. Operating profit/(loss) 6. RBEXERN(EA)
The Group’s operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging/ AREBEERT, (BB &R (GTA) A
(crediting): TRIERER:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments: BIRAE BIEESEHE:
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE #HahEMER 76,272 63,840
Retirement benefit costs RIRREFI KA 3,340 3,805
Termination benefit costs HEQT = )97 4,436 -
Total staff costs B TR A4 84,048 67,645
Less: Amount capitalised and included in cost of 8 : R EARN L R AR EFE
inventories sold A2 &5 (26,635) (25,001)
Staff costs included in selling and marketing FTASHE REHAT TR KEEM
expenses, administrative and other operating KERTAREMAST 2 B TR
expenses and other expenses 57,413 42,644
Auditor’s remuneration: ZERT N & -
Audit and audit related services Bz R EAZAE AR TS 1,800 2,040
Non-audit services FEEZRT 1,388 3,437
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 156,668 146,115
Cost of properties sold BEMEK AR 87,396 =
Outgoings in respect of investment properties B IR BEYEMEL Y
arising from rental-earning investment properties & E L H 2,045 1,744
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERBEINE 13,203 11,465
Less: Amount capitalised and included in cost of & : & E ANt & B 5t A ENRIZE
inventories sold for printing business BEFEXRAZER (7,734) (8,698)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEREEZITE (FFAHE
included in selling and marketing expenses and & & $5 7 S LA RITER R E A
administrative and other operating expenses R 5,469 2,767
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6. Operating profit/(loss) (Continued) 6. RKERRN(&EE) (#E)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments FEAT b R 45 B2 - 118
Reversal of impairment of inventories FERE 2B (GTAEEME)

(included in cost of sales) (526) (720)
Impairment of accounts receivable FEUBR R 2 R E - 34
Impairment of an other receivable H b U BR R R E 7,565 s
Impairment of an other non-current asset HEMIERBEE 2 RE 7,590 =
Impairment of completed properties for sale ExIFEMEZRE 3,109 =
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEB B E 2 HONR

measurement of lease liabilities 2,223 -
Operating lease rental wERNHES - 1,968

7. Finance costs 7. BWEER

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZFE 15,843 4,832
Interest on lease liabilities HEEGEZFE 205 -
Interest arising from revenue contracts (note) RBRAGHEE ZF B (M) 39,257 =
Total interest B 4% 55,305 4,832

Less: Interest capitalised in properties under B ‘:F‘ Yz 2 EREFE
development (46,943) -
Total finance costs MEBRERE 8,362 4,832

Note: Interest arising from revenue contracts represented interest expenses accreted on
the contract liabilities (note 25) which contain a significant financing component.

A capitalisation rate of 6.15% (2019: nil) has been applied to the

expenditure on the qualifying assets for the year ended 31 March

2020.

M ARARHNELZFIBEREEAREDIZAN
B1E (Mia25) Bat 2 MBI -

HE-Z-_ZF=A=+—-RHIFELERKE

ENRAXERENEER616% (—ZF—NEF:
E)FTEX -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

Income tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has
sufficient tax losses to offset the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

The PRC corporate income tax for the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC is charged at 25% (2019: 25%) of the assessable profits, and
for taxable income derived from the PRC by subsidiaries located
outside the territory is charged at the PRC withholding corporate
income tax rate of 10% (2019: 10%).

The LAT for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of
land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost of land and all property development
expenditures.

Frig %

HRASREZHBEERJRERE T
FEZA=F+—RLEFEZAEFERTUEH
WA JmA BB SR RBE (ZF—NEF:
&) -

REBHEMBAR 2 PECEMEH TR
JERRTHE M 225% (=T — N4 25% )5t E
i Bt BUE AN B A B EE A 2 FERR LR A TY IR
FETEIREMEHBE10% (ZF— N4
10% ) AR AL ©

RNEE B AR 2 L HISER 5 L (B
ER)IE(E (B & Y8 A5 SRIBM PT 05k 2
i B TR AR R T M E R ) BN T
30%ZE60%8Y) 2 HE T & &g o

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FAT
Current — Hong Kong BER— &
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BAFEREETR, (BEEE) 3,881 (419
Current — Mainland China B ER — R B K e
Corporate income tax EMEH
Charge for the year FELH 4,445 355
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE S (68)
LAT THIBER
Charge for the year FELH 5,084 =
Deferred tax (note 28) EFERIA (Fif3E28) (24,200) 532
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FEBEXE (EkE)BHE (10,790) 400
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paid employees
Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

8. Income tax (Continued) 8. MEH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) HRARERNRT REKESME A TS
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdiction in which the R ZEEHETERT AR, (FB) 2
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax MIERY (Ee) BRERHERTE 2HE
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: S 2 EERINT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Profit/(loss) before tax BBIRTER], (E518) (84,505) 2,941
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) BT 2E16.5%
T —hF:16. 5%)%%:%?2%}&1,5 (13,943) 485
Effect of different tax rates in different jurisdicton 1~ ﬂ AEEE TR R Z 2 (1,186) 279
Expenses not deductible for tax IR d 53 7,605 3,774
Income not subject to tax AR ZHA (11,831) (5,684)
Tax losses and other temporary differences RERUBEEREMEEER
not recognised 4,684 2,948
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) LATE R FER 2 B #5E 18 - 915)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of WA FEAETIIE 2 R
previous years 3,881 (487)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective rate R AEBER MR E 2 518
X (%) (10,790) 400
9. Directors’ remuneration and five highest 9. EEMERFTEBESFMES

EEME

RiE AR R BB R &5 25383(1)@) * (b) *
OkOER AT (HEEEFZER)BHIFE2
BEENARTFAEENSOT :

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Fees we 981 1,046
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9. Directors’ remuneration and five highest 9. EEMER T BESFMES

paid employees (Continued) (%)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued) EEME (E)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BAFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RERNBNTEIIFNTEZZEEN
the year were as follows: ™
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FH&T
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis G ST 247 240
Mr. Hung Kin Man R R LA 247 240
Mr. Ho Man Al §LsT 247 240
741 720
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RAFERN - HEENEIFRITEEZ
non-executive directors during the year (2019: nil). B (ZF—NF &) -
(b) Executive directors (b) BITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind contributions Total
=41 BIK
we REUNEF R B
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FTET FTERT TER
2020 —EEE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Li Qing FE KL 120 - - 120
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet ESN AL+ 120 - - 120
240 - - 240
2019 Y S
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Li Qing BE K4 120 . - 120
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet ES\ AL+ 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhang Feiyang (note i) SRIEF T (FsE) 86 - - 86
326 - - 326
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9. Directors’ remuneration and five highest 9. EEMERTEBESFMES
paid employees (Continued) (#8)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued) EEME (E)
(b) Executive directors (Continued) (b) BITESE (H)
Note: PR 3E
[0) Ms. Zhang Feiyang resigned as a director on 18 December 2018. [0] RIFFLTRZZT-N\F+_A+N\A#
TEx-
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed RAFR WERBSFNEXRERETMAHE
to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: nil). 2R (ZE—NF |-
Five highest paid employees TERSTFHMES
None of the five highest paid employees during the year were RAFR AEmamMEER #BiE—F (=
directors (2019: nil) as set out in above. Details of the remuneration T—NF E)BES (WLEXAH) -BRIEAR
for the year of the five highest paid employees who are neither a REZENIERITHRABZ AG&R=EHIES
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: REAZMESFBLOT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Salaries e 6,770 6,471
Termination benefit costs Z“JHE H Bk A 1,165 =
Pension scheme contributions RIRET B 78 168
8,013 6,639
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid MER Ty SEEPNIFESRIEEBITRAE
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as ZEREFMEE ABNT
follows:
Number of employees
EEAH"
2020 2019
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0005% 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £2,500,000% 7T 1 -
5 5

Annual Report 2020 _S_BEF#k 245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tne AR5 ¥R S P 5
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10. Dividends

11.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil). No interim
dividend was declared during the year (2019: nil).

Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic loss (2019: earnings) per share is
based on loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$73,715,000 (2019: profit of HK$2,541,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 3,989,135,615 (2019:
3,310,812,417) in issue during the year.

The diluted loss (2019: earnings) per share is equal to the basic
loss (2019: earnings) per share since there were no dilutive potential
shares during both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

12. Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets
BEEE

12. YR -BERRE

Right-of-use assets
EREEE

Furniture and
fixtures and

Buildings  Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction Leasehold Motor

inthe PRC improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles
BARKE
il HRHAZ
rEgT  NEEE HRERER R k3
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
T Tin Tin Tin Thr

in progress Sub-total land Buildings vehicles Sub-total Total

ERIR Mt BB g% RE it 3
HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL ThL TR TR TR TR TR

Cost: RAR:
At 1 Aprl 2018 WZZ-N§BA-B 2,145 548 15372 14361 2654 19 172,074 = = = = 172274
Additons £ 1403 83 14871 2071 8 - 19978 - - - - 19978
Disposalsfwriten off HE/HE (108) - (20321 ) (689 - - (21,109) - - - - 1,109
Transfers &j) 104 - - - (194) - - - - - -
At 31 March 2019 W-E-nE=A=1-R 30637 1,591 119922 16,755 34% = 171,143 = = 171,143
Efiect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RAEANBRSEY

S0 7€ - - - - - - - 3051 32% - 6,287 6,287
At 1 Aprl 2019 frestated) HZZ-NERA-A

(E5) 30837 1,391 1992 15,75 3438 - 174,143 3050 32 - 6287 177430
Acquistion of a property WE-ENZEEEE

development business (note 31) (Bzxst) - - - 19 175 - 19 - - - - 19

Addtions & 06 = 2630 9t = = 397 = 1462 1460 292 6,869
Disposalsfwriten off He/mE - - (5977) - (174) - (6,151) S S S = (6,151)
Change in exchange rates EX%9 - - - [ @ S (10 S ) = (4] (30
At31 March 2020 W-§-85=R=1-8 31,083 191 116575 16,683 3431 - 169,143 3051 4678 1460 9,189 178,332
Accumulated depreciation: 2RNE:
At1 Apil 2018 NZ2-N5BA-R 16278 - 106843 13745 1816 - 133,682 - - - - 133,662
Charge for the year REERH 1315 %1 8698 650 541 - 11465 - - - - 11,465
Disposalswiten of bE /s (104 = (19,124 (667) = = (19.8%) = - - - (19,95)
A3t March 2019and 1 Api 2019 R=F-AE=A=+-B

R=F-75WA-B 17489 %1 %417 13728 2357 - 130,252 - - - = 130252
Charge for the year REERH 1573 78 7732 %8 511 - 11,082 118 1877 36 2151 13,208
Disposalsfwrten off He /s - - (5439 - (174) - (5,607 = = = = (5,607)
Change n exchange rate Ex#9 - s S e ] G ) S m c M (10)
At31 March 2020 i 19062 539 98716 14686 2601 - 135,604 118 1670 36 214 137,838
Net carrying amount: EEFE:
At31 March 2020 W-8-8£Zh=1-R 12001 852 17859 1997 74 = 3449 293 3008 1104 045 0494
At 31 March 2019 H=E-75=A=1-AR 13,148 113 2505 20 1081 - 40891 - - - - 40891

Buildings in the PRC under owned assets and leasehold land under
right-of-use assets (2019: prepaid land lease payment) with net
carrying amount of HK$12,001,000 (2019: HK$13,148,000) and
HK$2,933,000 (2019: HK$3,051,000), respectively, have been
pledged as security for the bank facilities of the Group (note 26).

BEEEE T HREFREREEEETZ
HALH (ZZ2—NF B LHBEOFFO R
EFEE D B A12,001,0008 7T (ZF— N 4F:
13,148,000/% 7t ) 2,933,000 7t (ZF — N1
£ :3,051,00087T) - ERASBERRITRE

TR (F5E26) -

Annual Report 2020 _B_BEFHR 247



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tne AR5 ¥R S P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

13. REYHE

13. Investment properties

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year RFEIZEEE 522,644 516,381
Changes in fair value N EEZE (78,201) 16,610
Exchange realignment ME 3 & (10,003) (10,347)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZEERE 434,440 522,644

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$434,440,000 (2019: HK$309,000,000) were pledged to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties was Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2019: nil).

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2020 by an independent professional valuer, Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited (2019: Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited), who
holds recognised relevant professional qualifications and has
recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

13. REW* (&)

13. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

The Group’s management reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes and reports to
the directors of the Company. Discussions of the valuation processes
and results are held between the management and the valuer at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting processes. The management:

— verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation reports;

- assesses property valuation movements when compared to
the prior period valuation reports; and

- holds discussions with the independent valuer.
Valuation techniques

Fair value of completed commercial or office properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China is generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and direct comparison method, wherever
appropriate. The income capitalisation method is based on
capitalisation of the net income and the reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have reference to valuers’ view of
recent lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The direct comparison method is based on market
comparable transactions available in the market and adjustments of
various factors would be made between the subject properties and
comparable properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

FEEZzHERRE (&)

AEE 2 EREARTHGRE TETER
T SRR 2 (51 A R T2 E
& BREBEDL S5 EA—RREERT
FEBRRER SRR E R
BF—H-EREY:

- BKEBUGMERSIMAEIZEE:

-  HEREHREZHERSEL LR T
MEMEZEE: R

—  EBUEEETER
(CREDSRZS

BRRTPERENEREARIMAENEZA
FEABERBBABDMOERERLLECA (10
ER)EE - WABRMOETRAAENER
B R BN FRE R B % 2 BERA
B MEENERBIELERDANHER S
2O RAEMHREE B R 2 2RAH LN
RELRE - MEMRAZERHEBEZ T
HEMELREMAELBYE OIMEERS
Z - BRUBENERTIS AR ARG TSR
BHBRZET UBHENYERAELER
MENELZRARFELFE-

RAFER - (RETTAY BT
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

13. Investment properties (Continued) 13. REWE (&)
Significant unobservable inputs used to AUBEAFEZEATAEER
determine fair value AEE
Relationship
Significant of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range inputs to fair
techniques inputs or weighted average fair value
EAXFABER TR BEHAZE
HERZE WAHE SEE R MEFY HAFENEE
2020 2019
Commercial properties Income Capitalisation 2.7% 2.9% Note 1
in Hong Kong capitalisation rate {iEa
REBNERME method BRI E
WABARLE
Unit market rent ~ HK$110 to HK$100 to Note 2
per month per HK$270 HK$300 B zE2
square foot 1108 TE 1008 TLE
FREMNTSES 27058 T 300/ 7T
(BFFER)
Direct Average unit  HK$52,000  HK$52,000 Note 3
comparison  market price per to to FizE3
method square foot HK$120,000 HK$148,000
HELREE THEMTSER 520008TE 52000812
(BFFHER) 120,00087T 148,000 7T
Commercial or Income Capitalisation 3.8% to 41% to Note 1
office properties in capitalisation rate 4.3% 4.4% B3
Mainland China method EARER 38%F43% 41%%24.4%
MBI KRR R S WAEREE
WAEME
Unit market rent HK$65 to HK$75 to Note 2
per month per HK$200 HK$240 Bz
square meter 658 TE 58 TLE
BREMTSEES 2007 7T 240 7T
(BFAHXK)
Direct Average unit  HK$16,000 HK$22,000 Note 3
comparison  market price per to to FizE3
method square meter  HK$64,000 HK$78,000

HEREE FHELTSER 1000212 2200082
64,0008 T 78,000 7T

(8FHXK)
Notes: Bt 5 -
1. The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value 1. ERbRYE  AFEBE
2, The higher the unit market rent, the higher the fair value 2. BlumipHtls AFEES
3. The higher the unit market price, the higher the fair value 3. B M ERES A TFESES
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

14. Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and
motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leasehold land from the owners with
lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally
have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles
generally have lease terms between 3 and 5 years. Generally, the

14. &

AEBEERSEBEA

AEEARRERHTERNZERT R
BEEANHEESH - SRATEL — R FIA
mETWEEEE T A R0 - MiREZE
30 E VRN - ST BB S IR -
BFHENHIBE R2ESF  MTEMNHEY
BERBESF - —RME ARERARALE
BEUMATEEREHEEEE - ZRBEES

Group s restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets HBREER RRILEERE-
outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options.
(@) Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 April 2019) @ LTHHEERFRK(RZZE-NAFNOA—
HaAl)
HK$'000
FHT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\FHA—HWEREE 3,169
Recognised in profit or loss during the year FARBERER (118)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 RZE-—NAF=RA=+—HBHNKEHEE 3,051

(b)  Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(¢) Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilites and the

movements during the year are disclosed in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

b ERAEEE
AEBEREEENREENRFAZ
REREGREMBIRRME12 -

© 7HEaE

$%lﬁ%%hm%ﬁﬁ&¢mm@ﬁ
BNERE TS mRMIRE27 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

14. Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

14. FHE (&)
AEBELEHEA (])

(d)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases d HEERBERERNSENT:

are as follows:

2020
HK$’000
FERT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENS 205
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets TREEENERS 2,151
Expense relating to short-term leases and 5T BAFH & K AR T A HA
other leases with remaining lease terms ended on or R-ZE-_ZF=_A=+—HK
before 31 March 2020 ZAIE MO EMEEEENFX 2,208
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets WMEEEEEHERMINREZ 15
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B R IBERE 4,579
(e)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 35 to the e MEReRILBEFENGEIERE
consolidated financial statements. BI5E35 ©
The Group as a lessor rEBEALHERS
The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting AEBREBCEAELHHAERE B RSP

of commercial properties and office properties in Hong Kong and

RERREME (RHE13)  BEEENER

Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The terms of PMREYE - HEBRR—BRERKB I MRE

the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during

SIWHRIRE B RITTOSRE B - AR E
PFER A S A 7510,385,000/87T (ZF—
£ 11,159,000/ 70) - A BIRH R B 4 & B 15

the year was HK$10,385,000 (2019: HK$11,159,000), details of AR EES ©
which are included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=+—HILFE

14. Leases (Continued) 14. & (&)
The Group as a lessor (Continued) rEBEEAEBES (K)
At 31 March 2020, the Group had total undiscounted minimum NRZE-_TF=A=+—HB AEEREHRE
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under PR T BEELEHEEN BN -1
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants faling due are as R IR B FE MR B 3R S (AR B TR ARZE LN T
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 9,224 7,459
After one year but within two years —FEWF 7,711 4,772
After two years but within three years MFEE=F 2,009 3,155
18,944 15,386
15. Other non-current assets 5. Hib ERBEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Tax indemnity upon sales of properties (note) HEYEEZ ZTRIERE ( Mﬁi) 30,068 37,658
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WY BEREREENK
plant and equipment 155 814
Others EA 35 21
30,258 38,493
Note: Balance represents the tax indemnity from Chuang’s Consortium International MisE: #1FieE MR B FEUE N A 7 f R NCGE T #
Limited (“CCIL”) in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. BEBRERAR ([HLEE]) 2RIERE - BIEE
According to the sale and purchase agreement, CCIL shall indemnify the Group B B HEAREELE NS ERIEH B
for profits tax liabilities arising from the subsequent sales of the properties acquired ARBEMBBZMEMELZFIBHARBRNE
by the Group through the acquisition of subsidiaries with the maximum amount 8 A £ 537,658,000/ 7T 2 & A 1E L R 1E - RAF
of HK$37,658,000. During the year, an impairment of HK$7,590,000 (2019: nil) is A1+ Jp AT Ui 20 56 16 37 1 1 32 R {7,590,0007% 7T (=
recognised for the tax indemnity recoverable because of the decrease in the fair T-NEF|E)  HEREERYESN R TERD -

values of the respective properties.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

16. Prepayment for acquisition of a property

17.

18.

development business

As at 31 March 2019, prepayment represented the deposit paid for

the acquisition of a property development business engaging in the

development and sale of residential properties in Sichuan Province,

the PRC. The balance was utilised upon completion of the acquisition

during the year as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial

16. WEE—BYRBEXB 2FAARK

15

R-FB-NAF=ZA=1+—8 BFRERK
E%E’%EPI@ B EEDERBERHENE
HWERBEEEMSTNIRE - RAFEWFET
Big BEERBECEDA BRFBEHNES

BATEHRRFIRERT

statements.
Inventories 17. 78
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Raw materials R 9,746 14,781
Work in progress paE 13,956 23,077
Finished goods B Gh 19,488 8,394
43,190 46,252
Properties under development 18. FE P Y=
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Properties under development expected to be FEHRESEEARATIR
completed within normal operating cycle and Uz [B] Y 7 28 4 %
recovered:
Within one year —F R 1,527,018 =
After one year —F1& 1,326,669 =
2,853,687 -
As at 31 March 2020, the balance represents residential properties RZBE-ZZEF=A=+—H HEGHERFRNE

under development situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC, acquired

through a business combination during the year (note 31). The

properties are expected to be completed within the normal operating

cycle and are classified under current assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

19.

20.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Completed properties for sale 10. ERIEEYWXE
As at 31 March 2020, the balance represents completed residential RZZBEZZEF=RA=+—8 &HERNFRE
properties held for sale situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC, WEBE B APEN) IS 2B TIAS
acquired through a business combination during the year (note 31) FEWE (H:E31)  MuRPBmE 25T
and certain residential villas held for sale situated in Hunan Province, FEEERIE-
the PRC.
As at 31 March 2019, the balance represented certain residential —NE=A=+—8 &FEMRTH
villas held for sale situated in Hunan Province, the PRC. MEAZETHEEERE-
Accounts receivable/prepayments, other 20. FEWERT FE{TFIE  HtFEUR
receivables and other assets R R HAMEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FEx FHET
Accounts receivable FEUBR 3R 50,270 59,058
Less: Impairment B RE (404) (404)
49,866 58,654

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 180
days to its trade customers of the printing business. Rental income
is received in advance. Proceeds from the sale of properties are
received in advance or upon delivery of the completed properties
to customers. For customer with long-term business relationship, a
longer credit period may be granted. Accounts receivable are non-
interest-bearing.

REBGTHERXBE 5% F30H=180H
ZEER- AW AT TBERER - SHEWEFT
BHREIEERDINZNETINEEZRF
BRI - R A B REBHAENES 0%
FTERMEEH BURERRT B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

20. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance at the end of reporting period is as

follows:

20. EH&EE VS NES

- HAt B IR
REMEE (&)

RE R BUAGRFMGRERBREBRIZER
BHE 2 BRI DOMIAT :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FTHT Fi&T
Within 30 days 30K A 14,764 24,513
31 to 60 days 31E60K 3,021 8,546
61 to 90 days 61E90K 9,675 12,736
Over 90 days H3Bo0K 22,406 12,859
49,866 58,654

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring REBFKAT BN BRE LA ESRE A

ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts

AAEEHREREER RABRKES

K{E A2 H

receivable. Impairment on accounts receivable is using the expected
loss rates, which are based on credit assessments on ageing of the
accounts receivable, past repayment history, subsequent settlement
status, deposits received, credit profile of the customers and on-
going business relationship with the relevant customers and adjusted
for forward-looking information affecting the ability of the customers

TR R - BRI ERE AR TR
BERDLENERERSFRENES G BE
BRES REZLENRE CWRE BFPEER
ARk EREEFNFEXTRE LHTE

BB RUARTR MG SV RTHE IS & RHE L
o

to settle the accounts receivable.

The movement in loss allowance is as follows: EERE ZEHanT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx FHT
At the beginning of the year REH) 404 370
Impairment loss EEE - 34
At the end of the year RER 404 404

The Group’s accounts receivable in the amount of HK$731,000
(2019: HK$3,113,000) are held as collateral for bank borrowings of
the Group (note 26).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

20. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (Continued)

20. FEWBRSR, TR

H i Uk
HtwEE (&)

The following is an analysis of the prepayments, other receivables T AEMFKIE At EBERR R EtEE
and other assets: T
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E FET FHET
Deposits i 0] 1,848 2,382
Prepayments TE FIE 0] 125,003 2,846
Other receivables H b fE UL BR X 30,244 2,913
Tax indemnity receivable for EHAETIHEYEDN
completed properties for sale FEM R TE R B (i) - 7,926
Prepaid value added taxes (“VAT”) and levies ~ TEfH&EF ([1EEF])
REE 4,244 7,198
161,339 23,265
Notes: B E

Balance mainly represented the prepayments and deposits paid to suppliers for
construction works of property development project, procurement of printing raw
materials and the office rental deposits.

As at 31 March 2019, balance represented the tax indemnity from Chuang’s
China Investments Limited (“Chuang’s China”) in relation to the acquisition of
certain residential villas in the PRC from Chuang’s China in prior years. According
to the sale and purchase agreement, Chuang’s China shall indemnify the Group
for corporate income tax and/or land appreciation tax liabilities arising from the
subsequent sales of the properties with the estimated maximum amount of
approximately HK$7,926,000. The tax indemnity of approximately HK$7,565,000
was fully impaired during the year.

Impairment on other receivables is measured at either 12-month

expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since

the initial recognition.

REXERERMEERARRETIE RBHORIR
M FHER Z BN RAREE A RS FIER
ERE-

RZZ-NF=ZA=1+—A #FEEKI+HER
&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ Al ([FELHRE])2BEREE ST EH

BEFERHETHREEBINPENSE TEER
F-REEENS HTLTRERGELEYER
EAZCEREHE iR EH A ERANER
5t B 497,926,000/ 7T 2 & FAVEH B {E - RAF
JE A RR B 497,565,000 oA SR HRRE -

Hip R BR R Z R EZ 1218 A BHE BB
HBHEEBETE KRTAVSHERER
BHIREREERELIL M-
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

21. Financial assets at fair value through profit 21. AP ENMNIERZ 2 LREE

or loss
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERx FHET
Corporate bonds listed in Hong Kong REBETMARES 64,859 31,671
Corporate bonds listed outside Hong Kong REBEIN ETRRES 31,178 =
96,037 31,671
The above debt investments were classified as financial assets at HAREHNREREVIHEAZ RS KFE
fair value through profit or loss as the contractual cash flow was not W EMEBRESBAATERERER 2 ®
solely payments of principal and interest. BEE -

22. Pledged cash and cash equivalents, 22. SEHFRERBELEEY

. P

restricted bank balances and cash and bank FRITEFURRERBITERE

balances

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET

Pledged cash and cash equivalents: EEAReMIREEFEY:

Certificate of deposit (note (i) 58 (FIEE®) 120,000 =
Restricted bank balances (note (i) ZRHIRITEETT (MHEE() 35,897 =
Cash and bank balances: iﬁfé R ERITEETT -

Cash at banks and in hand RITHE R R FER® 67,936 36,930

Short-term deposits %ﬁ,ﬁsﬁ TR 197,566 31,015

265,502 67,945

Notes: Bt 5 -

i) Certificate of deposit was purchased from a creditworthy bank in Singapore i) FEBEAFNE —HEERFORT BEEF
earning interest at a fixed rate of 1.95% per annum with an original maturity period KAH1.95% REHBAARINKR - R_T=_FTF=A
of 31 days. At 31 March 2020, the certificate of deposit was pledged to secure =t+—H8 GECEREARTFASENETRE
bank facilities granted to the Group (note 26). HHEIR (MI5E28) -

(ii) In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, proceeds from the (ii) REBEP BB MEPE THESYEOMR
pre-sale of certain properties under development are required to be deposited BHFEAGABERITERES RZHNIEMEEE 2R
into designated bank accounts and restricted to be used in the relevant project E’]EFH B ARSI R EVSE RGO E
construction. Such restriction will be uplifted upon the attainment of the relevant BERRR -

ownership certificates issued by the authorities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

22,

23.

Pledged cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The effective interest rates on short-term deposits
range from 0.01% to 2.35% (2019: 2.07% to 2.45%) per annum
and these deposits have maturities ranging from 1 day to 3 months
(2019: 1 day to 7 days). The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Majority of cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) are held in Mainland China and subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations restrict
capital remittance from the territory, other than through normal
dividend distribution. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Accounts payable

An ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period based on the date of suppliers’ invoices is as follows:

2. CEARERBASEEY ZR

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁu&ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
&

FRIBITHIR IR ES A RITERERZEF
KEREUFS o REIF R 2 BERFEFENT0.01%
2235% (ZE—NF:207%E2.45% ) ' %5
GHREHAN T EEIMEA (Z2—hF: 1R
ZF7R) RO FEREFIFRRNEERIFAL
A4 R0 ER MR T o

REBPUARE (TARE])FHENR E RIR
TR P B AP A A 5 I 0 2 M P 5
fER19) - 5% 55 & MO IE 308 1 6B PR 51 B AR PE KR
S HEE BB D IRERRIN - AR ABE
MR RE M ER AT - ARE P BIAREZ 5
EERREARBE SERNEERRE
RE B B ETTINEES 2 RITH
ARBHBBEME -

23. EfERR

RERR BNRFRHEAERAHZD)
ZERER DA -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 30 days KN 117,309 20,487
31 to 60 days 31E60K 4,980 7,070
61 to 90 days 61E90K 9,836 8,353
Over 90 days B 3E0K 48,057 9,929
180,182 45,839
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

24. Accrued charges and other payables

The following is an analysis of the accrued charges and other

24. B BEAREMEMNRNR

AT SRR B A REAMEN R Z O

25.

payables:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Accrued staff costs, subcontracting costs FEEFEIRA - DBEERR
and other accruals HEi T & A 15,372 16,725
Customer, tenant and other deposits EE P REMIZES 17,735 4,458
Construction costs payables HICEMERB I ENERER
related to investment properties 19,136 19,302
VAT and levies payable A& EAE ﬁ 43,818 1,627
Payable for acquisition of certificate of deposit W EETF 8 7 RIS 3R
(note 22) (Mf5E22) 120,000 =
Consideration payable for acquisition of a Wi —BYEBRREK 2
property development business (note 31) FERRE (BFEEST) 39,432 =
Others HAth 12,702 2,567
268,195 44 679
Contract liabilities 25, ENEE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract REBEDHERU TR AEBzEH0E8E:
liabilities:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Sale of printed products 56 BNl 24 6,965 6,382
Sale of properties HEWME 1,886,409 =
Total contract liabilities SREERTE 1,893,374 6,382
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25. Contract liabilities (Continued)

As at 1 April 2018, the Group has recognised contract liabilities
related to sales of printed products of HK$752,000. The Group
receives payments from customers based on the billing schedule as

established in contracts.

25. EWEE (E)

R-Z—N\FEMNA—B AEEDHERE B
EERIEmRZ A LB ET752,000 BT - AEEIR
BAOTBINNEBEZERE S REUI e

The increase in liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase RIZEZZEF7EBEEMNEEHRRERE

in advances received from customers in relation to the sale of
properties after the business combination as detailed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements while the increase in 2019 was
due to the increase in advances received from customers in relation

to the sales of printed products.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised

HHEBEMHEME I BREFBEM (FE
REEHBERERMES) MR_T—NEFZ
AT AR E EIRIE R 2 BT S 8K
HEhne

TRITARE PHHERNBAREZSO8

in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract BERHEREES 9 ©
liabilities.
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHT
Revenue recognised that was included in the HHENRERSTAENEL
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of BEAFENESERKA
the year for sales of printed products 6,382 752
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining REZA=T+—BoREFHRBHET (KRETT)
performance obligations (unsatisfied) as at 31 March are as follows: ZRSERSENT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHT
Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue: FBEJFEFR AU A 2 FIA
Within one year —FN 1,536,459 =
After one year —F1& 405,800 =
Total A&t 1,942,259 =

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations, which are expected to be recognised
as revenue after one year relating to sales of properties, are to be

satisfied within three years.

For contracts that have an original practical expected duration of
one year or less, the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 is not
disclosed as permitted by practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

HEEMEBBOERT —FRERRBAND
REEFBENEINRHERSBERN=FA

BB

RRBEREHBRA—FRERENEHOM
FREEFR-E-NF=A=+—H
PREFHBHETNR HERLRIZEBY
TR AR 1550 R AT A TARE B T VAP AU AT HETT
Wiz
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26. Bank borrowings

26.

31 March 2020

RIT B

31 March 2019

ZE-ZF=A=+-H —E-AF=A=1-A
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$000 (%) Maturity HK$000
ERFE (%) E) TER BIH = (%) EL TAT
Current wE
Bank loans - secured RITER-BHER 2020 or
on demand
3910634 C—ZT-ETFL 3.411t05.21 2019
3.96%6.34 RER 373,127 341E5.21 “Z-NE 71,099
Non-current Eiik |
Bank loan - secured ROTER-BER 2020-2036
_ZCTER
- - - 347 ZZ=RF 63,532
373,127 134,631
Maturity of the bank borrowingsis ~ STERAHIHA: HK$'000 HK$'000
analysed into: TER TAT
Within the one year or on demand —FRKIZEEX 373,127 71,099
In the second year - - 2,884
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-EZFEREF (BEEREM
£) - 9,270
Beyond five years BARF - 51,378
Total CH 373,127 134,631
Note: B 5% -
Certain bank facilities of the Group are secured by: AEEETRITRERUTSEERR:
i) the pledge of the Group’s right-of-use assets amounting to HK$2,933,000 (2019: i) RNEE 2 FFAEEE2933,0008 T (ZF—hE:

prepaid land lease payment of HK$3,051,000);

(i) the pledge of the Group’s buildings amounting to HK$12,001,000 (2019:

FEfF 1 4 78 4915 3%3,051,000 7T ) 2 K3

(i ANEEZEF12,001,0008 T (ZF—AF:

(i)

\J

262

HK$13,148,000);

the pledge of the Group’s investment properties amounting to HK$434,440,000
(2019: HK$309,000,000) and assignment of rental income;

the pledge of the Group’s accounts receivable amounting to HK$731,000 (2019:
HK$3,113,000);

the pledge of the Group’s certificate of deposit of HK$120,000,000 (2019: nil); and

equity interest of certain subsidiaries of the Group (2019: nil).

Magnus Concordia Group Limited B A EE R ABRAS]

13,148,000/ 7T ) Z # 48 :

(iii RNEE 7 % E Y H434,440,0008 7T (ZT—HE:
309,000,000/ 7T ) Z 1R K& WA Z 85

(iv) ANEE 7 fEUWEBRFK731,0008 L (ZE— A F:
3,113,000/ 7T) Z ## :

v) AN @ 7 17 120,000,000 7T (Z T — A& )
2R R

(vi) AEBETHBARES (ZF—LF &)
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26. Bank borrowings (Continued) 26. SRITEMN (&)

As further explained in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the adoption of HK Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan That Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause, the Group’s
bank loans with the aggregate amount of HK$373,127,000 (2019:
nil) as at 31 March 2020, containing a repayment on demand clause,
have been classified as current liabilities. For the purpose of the
above analysis, these bank loans are included within current interest-
bearing bank loans and analysed into bank loans payable within one
year or on demand. Ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand
clause and based on the maturity terms of the bank borrowings, the

AR B SRR M TE3sFTE — SRR - R
MEBREESE (W BHEEXZ 25— EHA
HEEIZEEF I FHEX ] R
—E-TFZA=+ B AEBHFBREK
BIRIE 2 #8%58/5373,127,0008 7T (ZE— A,
FE)RTEREDEARBAR - LD
WimE  ERTERD T AR BRTE
FOWAMAR—FANNIRERKEEZRITE
o BES AR ESKB RIE L 2 B RIBRR
ITERZBEAER  BARITERZEN ST
wmr:

amounts repayable in respect of the bank borrowings are as follows:

In the third to
Within In the fifth years, Beyond
one year  second year inclusive five years Total
F=EZ
FHF
(B
—-FR i3 HEMF) BALEF CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TER FER FET TR
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZEF=f=+—-H
Bank loans BAER 359,127 14,000 - - 373,127
As at 31 March 2019 RZB-NF=ZA=+-H
Bank loans HRITER 71,099 2,884 9,270 51,378 134,631
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27. Lease liabilities 27. HEAE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the HEABENRABERFENZESHT:
year are as follows:

HK$ 000
FHT
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RZE—NFHNA—BZEEE 3,236
New leases EE 2,922
Accretion of interest recognised during the year F R TSI N 205
Payments (N (2,223)
Exchange realignment ME N A (207)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=A=+—BZKAEE 3,933
Analysed into: =%
Current portion mEnE o 2,058
Non-current portion ERBNEL D 1,875
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to the HEBBIHOMEBRNGEE T BRERMT
consolidated financial statements. 38
28. Deferred tax 28. EIEHIE
The movements of net deferred tax liabilities of the Group are as AEBELEHBEEFHEZEHNOT
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year REH) 59,981 60,729
Acquisition of a property development Wi — B EBRRER (HFE31)
business (note 31) 505,839 -
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRK (Ke)BREaRkaR2
consolidated income statement during the year — IEXERIE (M 7E8)
(note 8) (24,200) 532
Exchange realignment PE 3 38 & (20,960) (1,280)
At end of the year REF 520,660 59,981
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28. Deferred tax (Continued) 28. IELERIE (&)

FRAREEELEHBAE (BE) 228 (R
HIER — B RDARE R 2 AERAT) AT -

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) of the Group (prior
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during

the year are as follows:

Deferred
Deferred tax liabilities tax assets
BEHEEE BEHEEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Fair value investment
adjustments properties
arising from  Accelerated and completed
business tax properties
combination  depreciation for sale Total Tax losses
REME
RERT
EBAHEE MEHE HENEEL
NATERE wE ZATERE k) REBEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT TR TR TR
At 1 April 2018 RZF—/\FHA—A - 593 60,303 60,896 (167)
Charged to consolidated income RENTR BEE KER
statement during the year (note 8) (Fi5E8) = 171 361 532 =
Exchange realignment EH A% - - (1,280) (1,280) =
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZ-AF=ZA=+—-AR
“T-NEWMA—A - 764 59,384 60,148 (167)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated RERNE/ (E%)
income statement during the year BiralaR (M)
(note 8) (12,153) 173 (12,220) (24,200) -
Acquisition of a property development — WE—BYEREER
business (note 31) (PFzE31) 505,839 - - 505,839 =
Exchange realignment X A% (19,748) - (1,212) (20,960) -
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZF=f=+—-H 473,938 937 45,952 520,827 (167)
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28.

29.

Deferred tax (Continued) 28. IELERIE (&)
Unused tax losses and temporary differences in respect of BENTT2BB T (ZE—NF:1.52718ET)
accelerated tax depreciation in the aggregate amount of HK$177.2 HARE AR BEERINERBREZEEER
million (2019: HK$152.7 million) have not been recognised as MWAELREMIERRANERAEEHEEE
deferred tax assets in the consolidated financial statements as it is TIERAR BRI AR A BB FE AR T m A Al F
not considered probable that taxable profit will be available against REHEREEERISHAREEE - NP
which the tax losses and the temporary differences can be utilised. HEEETA740EB T (ZE—NF 7408
The tax losses of HK$7.4 milion (2019: HK$7.4 million) in the PRC BIC) SR RESRERAFANER REBZH%
will expire within five years from the end of reporting periods and the RE 0 A fE i B A
remaining balances in Hong Kong have no expiry date.
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding B4R B FTSRUE - B BIRIAK 7 A 5h
tax, is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the EREMINEREESIRMREZBHMNI0%TE
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. MR- EFRAREH-_TTN\F—A—BRER
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to MERR-_ZEZ+F+-A=+—HZEBZA
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may FloERBINMEIING IR EEMBREERE
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the WGHE A ERAREENRE RNEEK
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The applicable rate of the Group ERAE A% - ARETHEME A KRE L
is 5%. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$0.4 million (2019: HK$0.4 million) BFERERREBIRE  WZSAEN 2 FBHIN/H
arising from withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain EEZELERIEBFEIOEE T (ZE—NF:
PRC subsidiaries have not been recognised totaled approximately BB AR T _TF=A= —f—— =R
HK$7.1 milion at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$8.2 million) in the FaBmAERE HNTI08ET (Z2—N
consolidated financial statements as these earnings are expected to ¢ (8208 A TT) °
be reinvested.
Share capital 29, A
2020 2019
HK’000 HK’000
FERT FAT
Authorised: EE:
8,000,000,000 (2019: 8,000,000,000) 8,000,000,0000% ( =& — 1.5 :
ordinary shares 8,000,000,000% ) £ 3& i 800,000 800,000
2,000,000,000 (2019: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0008% ( =F— A4 :
preference shares (note (i) 2,000,000,000% ) 12 5t i&
(BREE®) 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHRE:
5,779,196,660 (2019: 3,310,812,417) 5,779,196,6608% ( = F— A4 :
ordinary shares 3,310,812,417/% ) T @A 577,920 331,081
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HEZ

—EFEZA=+—AILER

29. Share capital (Continued) 20, IR (48)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RARZRAEEFMENT -
follows:
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
ERITROEE ;&S
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 and RZZE—N\FOA—H -ZE—h&F
1 April 2019 ZA=+—HEZZE—h#F
mA—A 3,310,812,417 331,081
New shares issued as consideration for the ~ {EAWIE—EBMELRER 2
acquisition of a property development REMELTZ ARG (B i)
business (note iii) 662,162,483 66,216
Issue of shares upon rights issue (note (iv) PR EEITIRG (FTFEv)) 1,806,221,760 180,623
At 31 March 2020 R_E_TF=A=+—H 5,779,196,660 577,920
Notes: B3
0] The preference shares rank in priority to the ordinary shares of the Company as to i) $/‘ﬂ{5 ARERERERREFHZAEBENYE

(i)

dividend and return of capital.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to the
annual general meeting held on 29 August 2012, which is valid and effective for a
term of ten years from the date of its adoption. Under the Scheme, the directors
may grant options to the eligible persons as defined in the Scheme, inter alia, any
directors, employees or business consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 29 August 2012. No options have been granted under the
Scheme since its adoption.

On 1 August 2019, the Company allotted and issued 662,162,483 ordinary shares
as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited as
detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 13 February 2020, the Company issued 1,806,221,760 ordinary shares
upon completion of the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for two
existing ordinary shares held by shareholders of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.11 per rights share. The gross proceeds from the rights issue
were approximately HK$198,685,000. The net proceeds after deducting related
expenses of approximately HK$5,045,000 were approximately HK$193,640,000.

(i)

(i)

B o

R-B-——FNA-TAARTZERAFRE
b ARATERA—HEREE ([Zt8)) &
BRFHRARMBBMES TF - REZFTE &
EURAERAL (EERZFTE EheEAR
AREMBAR 2 EMNES EEREBEM) KL
B ABEERBZATBIPTET Z R AR REE
ARE B - RIFZBIATR 2 AR TS &

EERHEETEEBBARRAR - ——FN\A
ZHAHEBITRAZ10% © A%t B ERAE -
BEAR R UL IR (R R A A o

RZFE-AhFENA-B &R ’T@E?"&%"‘ﬁ
662,162,483 B (E A UIBL BB EER A
ZWHRE (FHBEREA M BMRMES) -

RZEZZEF-_A+=HB - ARa#1T
1,806,221,7608% & il A% » 7O TE AR AR 14 + LA — AR it
RAR IR IR AR D AR A 2 MARIR A TR - R
B EATRAERANO0. 11787 - HRFTSRBLEA
#7198,685,0007% It ° 1A 1 18 B8 £ A 495,045,000
B TT18 2 P15 SIE R R840 /3193,640,0008 7T
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30.

31.

Reserves 30. f#fE
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein AEERAFERBEFEZRECELEY
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated BIER)S SRy Fry P
statement of changes in equity.
Business combination 31. ¥ &0
Acquisition of a property development business Wi —EYERRER
On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interest RZZE—NFENA—B AEERBERRIKE
of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Jinjin ERARKENBAR ([£BEE]) 223
Group”), which is principally engaged in the development and sale of Bt EFERFEM)I| S REFEMERE
residential properties in Sichuan Province, the PRC. The acquisition MIHE AEBETZRBEHEEEREME
was intended by the Group to expand its property development BRFEBHEL
business segment.
According to a sale and purchase agreement entered into BEAEEEESTUNEE HE KWER
between the Group and the seller, the acquisition consideration BAEATHEATIARZNM (AR ERE
of HK$400,000,000 was to be satisfied by: () the allotment and 17180.217%8 JT Bc 3% % #517662,162,483% (LB
issuance of 662,162,483 consideration shares of the Company AE 17 - 4 BB #97%139,054,00058 7T & R (i) 1+ 49
at the issue price of HK$0.21 amounting to approximately 260,946,000/8 7T - A &£ B IR [E B 57 A 8 Hi
HK$139,054,000; and (i) the payment of approximately (E& R MaEs2) #E M B 1% (E& R &32)
HK$260,946,000. The Group also agreed to make the conditional SR B (E&RRMITE32) 2 ZFER L (LARR
Pro Rata Payment (as defined in note 32) for up to HK$200,000,000 1835 %) [ME 5 2 1 £ %200,000,000% 7T 2
to the seller in proportion to the fulflment of the Profit Target (as EEMRE OISR (F % B HEES2) -
defined in note 32) or of the Delivery Target (as defined in note 32),
whichever is lower, during the Relevant Periods (as defined in note
32).
Acquisition consideration: B E IR (E
HK$ 000
FAT
Cash consideration (note (i) BWERE (M@ 260,946
Fair value of consideration shares (note (ii)) RER D 2 2FE HEEG)) 127,135
Fair value of contingent consideration (note 32) FAREZ AFE (HFE32) -
388,081
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31. Business combination (Continued) 31. £K50f (&)

Acquisition of a property development business Wig—EHYERREXK (F)

(Continued)

Notes: Bt 3 <

i) As at the acquisition date and 31 March 2020, approximately HK$39,432,000 had i) RKEBBHR T -_SF=A=+—R A&EERE
been withheld by the Group as retention of the seller’s tax payable. 1#939,432,000/8 TLE A E H EERBRE S -

(ii) Fair value of the consideration shares was determined with reference to the closing (ii) REBRDZAFETESERARRN AU R B
price of the Company’s shares of HK$0.192 per share at the acquisition date on 1 —E-NENA—BAZKRHETR0I2BITEE

August 2019.

The provisional fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and RUHE B B2 SR S B 2 Y T 3B R & B I P
liabilities assumed of the Jinjin Group at the date of acquisition were EaBENEELAFENT
as follows:

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment VI B R 194
Properties under development FEER Y 2,505,286
Completed properties for sale ERIGFEME 101,628
Accounts receivable JE W BR R 545
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets AR RE - M mUER R R B & 69,725
Restricted bank balances ZRHRITEETT 10,583
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEF 9,505
Accounts payable FERTER X (191,128)
Accrued charges and other payables JERFERAREMEMNER (121,858)
Contract liabilities AHEaE (1,360,872)
Tax payables FEfI AR (61,920)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEAE (505,839)
Total identifiable net assets * FRRIEERERRE 455,849
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition WENZEEE S (67,768)

388,081
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31. Business combination (Continued)

31. £K50f (&)

Acquisition of a property development business WiE—EHYERREK (HF)
(Continued)
HK$'000
FHET
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition WIS R E R B W 67,768
Less: Transaction costs B R G (7,698)
Net bargain purchase gain on acquisition WIEH B E W T8 60,070
* The assessments of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of * SREENABIEERABERTFEMGDEE
the Jinjin Group are still undergoing and the information of the fair values of the T AR HAIEERABBEATEZENAY
identifiable assets and liabilities is provisional. The finalised information will be EoRBREMBERASEEHEEZE_Z-_ZFNA=1
disclosed in the interim financial statements of the Group for the six-month period A LA A B E P R SRR P -

ending 30 September 2020.

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

WREE S MRS R HIFER

HK$ 000

FHT

Cash consideration paid BENEeRE 221,514

Add: Transaction costs = RS 7,698
Less: Prepayment for the acquisition during the year ended W EHEZZT-NAF=A=+—8

31 March 2019 IEFE W 2 Fa N IR (80,000)

Less: Cash and bank balances acquired B T EEIR © RIRTTAE 84 (9,505)

Net cash outflow e L F5E 139,707
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31.

32.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition of a property development business
(Continued)

A bargain purchase gain of approximately HK$60,070,000 was
recognised during the year. The Group measured the fair value of
the properties under development and held for sale with reference
to the valuation based on the residual method carried out by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer, at
the acquisition date. The management of the Group considered that
the bargain purchase gain was mainly benefited from the difference
between the market price of consideration shares allotted at the date
of acquisition and the contract price as well as the valuation premium
arising from certain business concessionary and support measures in
Mainland China prevailing during the current year.

The acquired subsidiaries contributed revenue of approximately
HK$87,000,000 and recorded loss after tax of approximately
HK$12,000,000 in the consolidated income statement of the Group
for the period from the acquisition date to 31 March 2020. Had the
acquisition of the subsidiaries occurred on 1 April 2019, the revenue
and net loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
have been approximately HK$779,000,000 and HK$74,000,000,
respectively.

Contingent consideration

In relation to the acquisition of the Jinjin Group as disclosed in note
31, the Group agreed to pay a contingent acquisition consideration
of up to HK$200,000,000 in tranches (the “Conditional Payment”)
if certain profit target (the “Profit Target”) and delivery target (the
“Delivery Target”) are met on or before 31 March 2021.

31.

32.

KBS (&)
WE-BMRBREREL (K)

F R B B I554960,070,000% 7T © ZIS%

Ey2EB T HEEGEMFETHERA

YehE B BRIRFIpR AT ZfETEEJrE%—rT’EH s
RAEMEZANTHE AEBERERR HER

Bz EEZmAME B BE B R ER D

Z BHE KB 2 Z A RANFEAR B ARk

RITE TEBEERSRBT RN EERE -

REEBRE S -_TF=A=+—HIH
FEEJ'EE%)\MTJ%Aﬂz%$m meElmKE
BhUg A 87,000,000/ 7T, K 8515 B B 14 5 18 40
12,000,000/ 7T ° = 3% Pff |8 A =14 i =18 Th
ZE-NFHOA—B¥LE BE_T-_TF=
A=+—BIEFEREE 2 WA RBEFER
53 Bl & #9779,000,0007% 7T £ 74,000,000/ 7T ©

HANKE

M ST A A R R E 2 U - e
FaFBEZ(DaFBED R BEZ (TR
BZR_E-—F=A=+—HAZpiE:E
B - N85 B[R & 5 B 32 1+ 5 %200,000,0007% 7T
ZHAWEERE ([BIEMER) -
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32. Contingent consideration (Continued) 32. FARE (&)

The Profit Target relates to the contribution of aggregate consolidated
net profits by the Jinjin Group of not less than RMB200 million to
the consolidated financial statements of the Company from the
1 August 2019) to 31 March 2021, while the
Delivery Target relates to delivering the aggregate gross floor area

completion date (i.e.,

of not less than 550,000 sg. m. of the properties to the customers
during the same period. In consideration for fulfilment of the Profit
Target and the Delivery Target, the Group shall pay the Conditional
Payment in tranches (the “Pro Rata Payment”) for the periods from
(i) the completion date to 30 September 2019; (i) 1 October 2019 to
31 March 2020; (i) 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020; and (iv) 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2021 (altogether the “Relevant Periods”).

The Pro Rata Payment shall be determined by (i) the product of the
Conditional Payment and the accumulated completion percentage
of either the Profit Target or Delivery Target (whichever is lower);
and (i) deducting the applicable tax and the Pro Rata Payment
previously paid by the Group. In the event that the Profit Target and/
or the Delivery Target have not been reached by 31 March 2021, the
Group will have no obligation to pay the remaining balance of the
Conditional Payment that has not been paid.

For the purpose of determining the Profit Target, the Jinjin Group
has not contributed any accumulated net profits to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the period from the
completion date to the end of the reporting period. Taking into
account the latest available information that: (a) considerable
amounts of properties under development are not expected to be
delivered by the end of the Relevant Periods (i.e., 31 March 2021);
and (b) the contribution from the properties to be delivered during the
Relevant Periods is expected unlikely to achieve the Profit Target, the
directors of the Company considered that it would be unlikely for the
Jinjin Group to meet the Profit Target and the Delivery Target during
the Relevant Periods and hence no provision for any Conditional
Payment is required. Consequently, no Pro Rata Payment is required
to be paid by the Group.
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HE_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLFE

33. Commitments 33. A&IE
Capital commitments BRARE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FERT FAT
Contracted but not provided for property, BEIYERBEZDE BELERE
plant and equipment 181 349
Operating lease commitments KEHEAE
At 31 March 2019, the future aggregate minimum lease payments RZZE-—NFE=RA=+—8" ' BERE T
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and SHAS S AL T3 RABFRE X 2 SARF AR
buildings were payable in the following periods: REBERZAR T O EARE S 1+ -
HK$'000
FHBT
Within the first year F—FR 2,099
Within the second to fifth years F_EERFA 2,008
4,107
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34.

35.

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2020, the Group provided financial
guarantees in respect of mortgage loans made by certain banks
to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in Mainland China,
either directly provided to the banks or to the housing provident
fund management centre who arranged the bank mortgages of
approximately HK$1,387,456,000 (2019: nil). Pursuant to the terms
of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalty
owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and the Group is
entitled but not limited to take over the legal titles and possession
of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from
the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and ends upon
issuance of real estate ownership certificates. The directors of
the Company consider that the fair value of the guarantees is not
significant and in case of defaulting payments, the net realisable value
of the related properties will be sufficient to cover the outstanding
mortgage principals, the accrued interest and penalty. Therefore, no
provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil) for these
guarantees.

Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$2,922,000 (2019: nil)
and HK$2,922,000 (2019: nil), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for property, plant and equipment.
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35. MEBRERERME (F)

35. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (Continued)

(b) REEBEEZEGEZEBN

(b) The movement in liabilities from financing

activities are as follows: T
Interest
payable
(included in
accrued
charges
and other Bank Lease
payables)  borrowings liabilities
A FE
(st APESH
BRAR
Hi e
329 RITER HEAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 R-E—-/\FMA—A 44 115,336 =
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREEZH (4,810) 19,284 =
Finance costs MEEM 4,832 - -
Exchange realignment BE 5 S B - 11 -
At 31 March 2019 —NWFE=HA=+—H 66 134,631
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNERMBREENEIF2HE - - 3,236
At 1 April 2019 —NWEMA—AH 66 134,631 3,236
Changes from financing cash flows BER&HREE (12,833) 238,542 (2,223)
New leases EHE - = 2,922
Finance costs MEEA 15,843 - 205
Exchange realignment fE 5 SR - (46) (207)
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-_TF=A=+—H 3,076 373,127 3,933

—_——
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35. Notes to the consolidated statement of 35. ZREHERERMK T (&)
cash flows (Continued)

(c) The total cash outflow for leases included (c) STAREHREXRNEERER
in the statement of cash flows is as follows: HAAZEMT :
HK$'000
FiBT
Within operating activities K EED 2,223
Within financing activities BEEH 2,223
4,446
36. Related party transactions 36. BB ARG
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BENEMTIBEEBRERE ZHMAT

management is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Short-term benefits SRR 4,955 3,528
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 1R A 36 36
4,991 3,564
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37. Financial instruments by category 37. ZERETHNERTE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBEARSENeRTAMNRABENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 —EC-BF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
n WE&BQ%
RERZ
TRMEE- REHEHKAR
IR T2
RULEE TREE wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
Accounts receivable UK BR 3R = 49,866 49,866
Financial assets included in ST AT FIE - H A U BR TR
prepayments, other receivables LEMEEZCMEE
and other assets - 32,092 32,092
Financial assets at fair value AFERMNEEZEREE
through profit or loss 96,037 - 96,037
Pledged cash and cash equivalents  EEMR L RIFLZEY - 120,000 120,000
Restricted bank balances SRR HIRITEETT - 35,897 35,897
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHETT - 265,502 265,502
96,037 503,357 599,394
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37. Financial instruments by category 37. R ERE 2 MWEM T A (&)
(Continued)

2020 —EIERF
Financial liabilities =N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
bi7g: X1 DN
FEH
TRAE
HK$’000
FHET
Accounts payable FETER X 180,182
Financial liabilities included in TR B A R H A BT AR K
accrued charges and other payables ZEBmBE 222,287
Bank borrowings HRITIEK 373,127
Lease liabilities HEARE 3,933
779,529
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37. Financial instruments by category 37. RERE2MWELRMIAE (&)
(Continued)

2019 —T-NEF
Financial assets TREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
ATE R
iNEi=Fcowd
TREE— REHEKAN
o il T 2 FER
=]l | TRIEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT
Accounts receivable JE W5 R 3R - 58,654 58,654
Financial assets included in T AR A - H A EUER TR X
prepayment, other receivables and HMEECEsRMEE
other assets = 5,295 5,295
Financial assets at fair value AFERBNER SREE
through profit or loss 31,671 - 31,671
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITHETT - 67,945 67,945
31,671 131,894 163,565
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37. Financial instruments by category 37. R ERE 2 MWEM T A (&)

(Continued)
2019 —E-NF
Financial liabilities =N
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
big: X1 N
FEH
AR
HK$’000
FHT
Accounts payable FETER X 45,839
Financial liabilities included in accrued charges and other payables &t A fE&t 2 i K H ith & 15 BR 7%
e =N 42,963
Bank borrowings HRITIEK 134,631
223,433

38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EREEBEERBXR

policies

Financial risk factors MRk EE

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial AEEBEBAZZENRZHBRERE  21EE
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow and fair value ERk nBHESRR RenE A TENE
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk. The overall BB - PE KRR FE SRR - AN E 2 B
risk management programme of the Group focuses on the A“@“@HEEPEA%EL/\?E Az &b WaR
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential BERIR U AR E I B RIR BRI E -
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance department PRREREERNGHBREEEE ([E52))
under policies approved by the board of directors (the “Board”). The HEZBRAIT EE S T BRBRKREER
Board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as Bl R R e S 2 BRSR

written policies covering specific areas.
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38.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) after deducting any impairment provision
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks, credit exposures to customers and other debtors. The Group
has credit policies in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
for the printing business, the Group has purchased credit insurance
from Export Credit Insurance Corporation on certain overseas sales
to compensate for losses from debts that are not collectible. Rentals
in respect of investment properties are payable in advance by tenants
in accordance with the lease agreements.

38.

HREREZRFRRBE (&)

jﬁﬂ@.% (nlﬁ)
EERE
BAZ EERRAGEMBIKAKRMIIGES

BEE (R VPERRREBRZ EBEERI)
R R EBER 2 BRE B

rEBEZEERBRIZHRBITER EF A
EHBACEERRARM AEEFIEEERR

E[?i%%’?%%ltt—rﬁf [\ f o

ERETFAHZEERR AEEEEREE
EiE—1E J\Zﬁﬁf/?%m*%%ﬁ TEEERE

B RAR T MR TEN AR DB B E
B thsh NEBE NI < & T85MH
ERALAERRREBEEERR  UMHE
R EEIRZ BR - REMEZBP LA
BiH#EELEINEE-

Annual Report 2020 —ZS_BEF#k 281



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

tne AR5 ¥R S P 5

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EMREEBERKE (&)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that rental deposits are
required from tenants prior to commencement of leases. Proceeds
from sale of properties are received in advance or upon delivery of
the completed properties to customers. As at 31 March 2020, 26%
(2019: 38%) of the Group’s total accounts receivable came from
the top five customers. However, the Group concluded that the
credit risk in relation to its customers is not significant because they
have no history of default in recent years. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors considered
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced and there is no
significant concentration of risk on the accounts receivable which
consist of a large number of customers, spreading across diverse
geographical areas.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification.
For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors them by using
external credit ratings. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk for the
financial guarantee contracts.
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EMREEBEREE (&)
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

At 31 March 2020

RS EREE ()

REERERFREE ()

R=-B=-BF=ZA=+—H

Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECLs impairment
amounts assessment approaches ECLs
EEAE EREERSCEFRABIATENEE REER
General General General
approach approach approach Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
-RA% -RA%E —-RA%E
KB ERER FZRE s %
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A R
FEESE 2HEHEERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Accounts receivable FEWER 50,270 - - - 50,270 404
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5T ATE(TFUB « Eth YRS K
other receivables and other assets HtEEZ S RERE
- Normal* —E®* 32,092 32,092 - - - -
Pledged cash and cash equivalents BERRERALSE 120,000 120,000 - - - -
Restricted bank balances XRHRITEE 35,897 35,897 = = = -
Cash and bank balances* BERBTER 265,502 265,502 = = = -
503,761 453,491 - - 50,270 404
Other item: HfIER :
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREH 1,387,456 1,387,456 - - - -
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38. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

38. HiIEAREEEERBE (&)

BE R EE (&)

REERERFREE ()

At 31 March 2019 RZZE—hF=A=+—H
Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECLs impairment
amounts assessment approaches ECLs
EH
FaaE EREERACEBENETEAENEE REER
General General General
approach approach approach Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
—R7% —R7% —R7%
F—IRE ERRE R Bl
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12/ A B ‘
REER HEBEERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR TR TR TR FAR AR
Accounts receivable JEURERR 59,058 - - - 59,058 404
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5T ATE(FUB « Eth YRS K
other receivables and other assets EEEZSREE
- Normal* -7 5,295 5295 - - - -
Cash and bank balances* ReRRTEF 67,945 67,945 = = = =
132,298 73,240 - - 59,058 404
* The credit quality of the financial assets included in cash and cash equivalents, * B ABRESRASESEY EMNRE KRR

prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,

the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

The Group provides for credit losses against accounts receivable to
customers by geographical location and the lifetime expected credit
loss rate of 0.8% (2019: 0.7%) on the accounts receivable balance.

The Group was not aware of any credit risk on other receivables and
deposits as their counterparties are corporations with proven credit
history. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in note

20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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38.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. The Group measures and monitors
its liquidity through the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group has put in place a policy
of obtaining long-term banking facilities to match its long-term
investments in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group also
maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to ensure the availability
of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash
requirements in the ordinary course of business. In addition, as at
31 March 2020, the Group had standby banking facilities to provide
contingency liquidity support which amounted to approximately
HK$166.8 million (2019: HK$20.6 million). Details of the bank
borrowings are disclosed in note 26.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will be
settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows including interest payment.

38.

HREREZRFRRBE (&)

jﬁﬂ@.% (nlﬁ)
MREE SRR

RBE SRR IIEAREEREBITREIHZ
NREAZRR AXEEREEE BB B
RRFEEZ R AR EERTEZLE
TERERERBESMRN - AEECTAK
B ERRPETEEUEAEEEERTH
REZRERE WM REBKRBEELE
BRRTKE BREBEEBTREREST
WzRenENEMNIMAEEsEAESE
koeBE RZTEZTF=A=+—H HBAR
THEEBR 6681EH T (ZF—F : 2,060
BAT) MARESERHEES I RBES IR
BRABITE R Z BRI FE26 -

TRIZREBHAEANIHA 2 FREEDR
RAR DM AEE I FRERZCRMEE-
TRAZFERGHNARBREZRSRELE
BEMSMRK-
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EMREEBERKE (&)
policies (Continued)

BE R EE (&)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) nEBESRER (&)
Within In the Within the
one year or second third to Beyond
on demand year fifth years five years Total
—£R F=%
RERER EZFR ERER BBRE k)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET TET
2020 “ToTE
Accounts payable EfTERR 180,182 - - = 180,182
Accrued charges and other payables ST B A RE R BR AR 222,287 - - - 222,287
Bank borrowings * BITER 379,785 - - - 379,785
Lease liabilties HEAR 2,159 1,262 658 - 4,079
Financial guarantee contracts BB EREND 1,387,456 - - = 1,387,456
2,171,869 1,262 658 - 2,173,789
Within In the Within the
one year or second third to Beyond
on demand year fifth years five years Total
—£R =%
FREK E_FER EFLER BBNE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FTHx TER FER TEx
2019 —Z-NE
Accounts payable TR 45,839 - - = 45,839
Accrued charges and other payables ~ [EFT B R EMENER 42,963 - - - 42,963
Bank borrowings RITER 74,049 5,044 25,222 53,420 157,735
162,851 5,044 25,222 53,420 246,537
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38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EMREEBEREE (&)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

* Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$373,127,000 (2019: nil)
containing a repayment on demand clause giving the lender the unconditional right
to call the loan at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity
profile, these amounts are classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors do not
believe that the bank loans will be called in their entirety within 12 months, and
considered that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity
dates as set out in the respective agreements. This evaluation was made
considering: the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of the
bank borrowings, the contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest
payment for maturity terms as at 31 March 2020 are HK$365,723,000 (2019:
nil) payable less than 12 months, and HK$14,062,000 (2019: nil) payable in the
second year.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the position of the Group may be
adversely affected by the changes in market interest rate. The policy
of the Group involves close monitoring of interest rate movements
and replacing and entering into new banking facilities when
favourable pricing opportunities arise.

The interest rate risk of the Group mainly arises from interest-bearing
bank deposits, bank borrowings and the bond investments in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Bank deposits and
bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The bond investments at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policy in relation to interest rate risks.
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and
will consider hedging interest rate risks should the need arise.

BsE R EE (&)

nEBEERR (&)

) st AGHEIRTTE R 2 3 B373,127,0008 T (= F
—NEFE)BRERBERERGER BTERXARRK
THREFIBER BB Fut - RIE R EER - %
FLBOMRIRBREE] -

BE LPMREERER EERRERRITER
FeR+t_EAREZHEE BRAZSRITE
PR EEBREMEI B ER BT EDE
ZE AEERIERA B HRE B NS BRR
RASBEILATE R WEEEMAFIEMIEL R
BRITBERZER RZT_ZF=A=+—HE
EAENRZEHNAURBEERENIHHRA
365,723,000/ 7 (Z T — N F - &) ZAR12 A RN
838 14,062,000 T (ZE—NF:E)ARE
—FERNEE-

RERER D FEFZER

AR @R TR A SR BRI AT B & R 5 Al R
BMXATNFE 2B NEEZBE SR
ETRERNXES EEAN 2 EEREER
FOREMIRITEE -

AEBZANERERERREFEZH|RITER
RITERBRIIRAFERRRNEBERZEREE
B TARFE - FEF KRG B 2 |RITIFK
RIFITIERSANEEAZ RS REFN KRR -
REENEG B2 BEFRECAEEARZ AT
B AR - AN B B Al 8L A & @ 6 E
ERFREHRBR - EEGRAETEARE
B EAE BRI EE BEH R EER
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

38. Financial risk management objectives and 38. B EMREEBERKE (&)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, if interest rates had been 1% (2019: 1%)
higher with all other variables held constant, the loss before tax of the
Group would have increased by HK$3,731,000 (2019: profit before
tax decreased by HK$1,346,000).

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises on monetary assets and liabilities
being denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency,
differences resulting from the translation of financial statements
into the presentation currency of the Group are not taken into
consideration.

The Group takes into consideration exchange rate fluctuations to
determine the selling prices of the printing products based on the
Hong Kong dollar, the functional currency of the group entity making
the sales. The sales of printing products are invoiced mainly in United
States dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”), Australian dollars (*AUD”),
Pound sterling (“GBP”), Vietnamese Dong (“VND”), New Zealand
dollars (“NzD”), Canadian dollars (“AD”) and RMB. The Group
has foreign currency sales, accounts receivable, other receivables
and cash and bank balances, which expose the Group to foreign
exchange risk. Exchange rate fluctuations have always been the
concern of the Group. The Group currently does not enter into any
derivative contracts to minimise the foreign currency risk exposure.
However, management will consider hedging significant currency risk
should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

38.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase
and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against EUR, AUD, CAD,
NZD, VND and GBP, 5% increase and decrease in the Hong Kong
dollar against RMB and 1% increase and decrease in the Hong Kong
dollar against USD. 10%, 5% or 1% are the sensitivity rates used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10%, 5% or 1% change in relevant foreign
currency rates. A 10%, 5% or 1% strengthening or weakening of the
Hong Kong dollar against the relevant foreign currencies will give rise
to a decrease or increase in profit before tax and the impact is shown
in the following table.

38.

HREREZRFRRBE (&)

jﬁﬂ@.% (nlﬁ)
X Rk (&)

TRFAJIANEELETTARIT R T 4
FIRTT A R SR RE R A0% AR BT
AR [ 6%+ BR 8 M 7T 3 52 7T I A%t
PRIE < BURE ° 10% 5% 1% RMEZEEA
B A RRIE R IE X AR IR A 2 SURE L& - R
REBBHINEERZ ST LB AL -
UETEURE ST R BIEAINE BB L REER
ERIER  WHHERRERR ZEER10%:
5%3H1%.2 6 RAE R E B E BT LB I
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

38. Financial risk management objectives and 38.

policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

HREREZRRRBE (&)

ji%ﬂlﬁ%.% (nlﬁ)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued) & 5 E ks (&)
Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
BRBADEFIG I O
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
usD v (691) (528)
EUR BT (107) (506)
RMB AR 1,956 (757)
VND HMrE (147) -
GBP W (49) (35)
CAD mrc 42) )
NZD M (32) (14)
Price risk BRER

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses arising from the
change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated income statement. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

38.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Price risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, if market price of the Group’s publicly-traded
investments increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax of the Group would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$4,802,000 (2019: HK$1,584,000).

Capital risk management

The objectives of the Group for managing capital are to safeguard the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as a percentage of bank borrowings over
net asset value attributable to equity holders of the Company. Bank
borrowings are calculated as total bank borrowings (including current
and non-current bank borrowings as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position). Net asset value attributable to owners
of the Company represents shareholders’ funds as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 March 2020,
the debt to equity ratio was 44.3% (2019: 21.5%).

38.

HREREZRFRRBE (&)

jﬁﬂ@.% (nlﬁ)
BRERE (&)

RZTEZTF=A=+—B FAEELHE
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BIT) o

EXREREE
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NSRS - RRFFIRE 2 BRERBIAREE
ZND PN
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PR Z IR B2 8 BTN L EEE LR
LafE-.

AEBRBAEEALXERER - ABEER
LRy ERRITERRIAR AR ERFE A
BB EREZ B AL - RITEFIRRITER
HBE (BEGEV KRR ZmE RIER
BIRITER) A H - RNRREE AR EEF
BEFAEMBMRRAINZBRESR R _F
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

39. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

financial instruments

The disclosure of fair value measurements of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level in the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (Level 1)

° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly (Level 2)

o Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable (Level

3)

See note 13 for disclosure of the investment properties that are

measured at fair value.

The Group had no Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments as at
31 March 2020 and 2019. The only level 1 financial instrument as at
31 March 2020 and 2019 represented financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 21), the fair value of which is based on
quoted market prices. There was no transfer of financial instruments
between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

39. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of

financial instruments (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
price within the bid-ask spread which is the most representative of
the fair value in the given circumstances. The fair values of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with the generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The fair values of the non-current portion of bank borrowings were
estimated using the expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates. The carrying amounts of the non-current portion of
borrowings approximated their fair values since they were floating
interest rate borrowings.

The carrying amounts less any estimated credit adjustments for
financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year,
including accounts receivable, financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables, pledged cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balances, cash and bank balances, financial liabilities included
in accounts payable, accrued charges and other payables and the
current portion of bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

39.
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HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

40. Statement of financial position of the 40. &2 T M BARREK

Company

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LI NG 928,726 493,308
Prepayment for acquisition of a W — B EBRRER 2 TAMNRIE
property development business - 80,000
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 928,726 573,308
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT 5RIE R H Ath JE R AR 3R 520 435
Cash and bank balances Be RRITET 198,816 9,369
Total current assets MEEELE 199,336 9,804
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Accrued charges and other payables FEETEA R EMEMERR 9,285 3,841
Bank borrowings HRITIE 320,000 =
Total current liabilities nEBERE 329,285 3,841
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE(8E)FE (129,949) 5,963
NET ASSETS EEFE 798,777 579,271
EQUITY s
Share capital f& s 577,919 331,081
Reserves (note) s (BaE) 220,858 248,190
TOTAL EQUITY FERAEER 798,777 579,271
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

BHE

40. Statement of financial position

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Company (Continued)

Note:

Reserves movement of the Company

of the 40. XX FH KRR K (&)

BiaE

KRR HEEE

Share Other Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
BRGRE Hipf#E BB 2itEE E-¥ ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHERT FER FHET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZE-NFEOA—H 257,674 4,000 77,963 (111,413 228,224
Profit for the year REE R - - - 19,966 19,966
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 —NWFE=ZA=+—H
—NWEFMA—B 257,674 4,000 77,963 (91,447) 248,190
Loss for the year REEEE - - - (101,268) (101,268)
Issue of shares upon acquisition of a WIE—EMEBEER
property development business BATRRD (HizE29 - 31)
(notes 29, 31) 60,919 - - - 60,919
Issue of shares upon rights issue HAR B TR (BT 5E29)
(note 29) 18,062 = = = 18,062
Share issue expenses BHETZH (5,045) - - - (5,045)
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZB-_ZTF=RA=+—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (192,715) 220,858

Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company, share premium, other reserve and
contributed surplus of the Company are available for distribution to ordinary shareholders
of the Company (after deduction of the accumulated losses) provided that the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

Other reserve of the Company relates to contribution by the then substantial shareholders
of the Company who were also the then holders of the preference shares. It represents
the excess of the face value of redeemable preference shares over the consideration paid
upon redemption in 2004.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the underlying
net assets of the subsidiaries which were acquired by the Company at the date of a group
reorganisation in 1996 (the “Group Reorganisation”) and the nominal amount of the shares
issued by the Company for the Group Reorganisation.

BREARTABRRAARFA - -—A"FRIVEFAE LA
ZHRIRESR $"’TZH§T’7§5&T§{“\Eﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ&%&)\@ﬁ@
(R RFEER) THSIKTFAR B EBRBBR R
BER 2 ER D /TEZE,HJ@{§$AE¢E§EEE%¥?%EP
RS2 ER

AARZEMFEFEERATEHOEBHR DEFESL
BZFBEABAZKERR s EEELREERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE_Z-ZF=A=1+—HILFE

4. FERE QT

41. Principal subsidiaries

AAREEMBARFFMT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name operation share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
HEMAEL/ BERITEER/ N
a1 R M RA EhESEDL TEER
Direct Indirect
B# ik
BEREIREREER A Mainland China RMB32,000,000 - 100%  Property development
(notes 31, 2, )
REAME AR #32,000,0007 MEER
Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas ~ Mainland China US$12,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Printing Limited (notes 1, 2) printed products
BRABESRNGEDH REARE 12,500,000 7T IR S BE R E
BRAF (MiE-2)
Midas Printing International Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000 = 100%  Trading of printed products
HEDRIERERRAA £ 7,000 7T IR R mEE
BMNBAREBARKER Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
(notes &1, 2)
hEARE AR 39,000,000 MERE
Magnus Concordia Development Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 S 100%  Property investment
(Chengdu) Limited
RAZR (R#)BRAF B 60,000,000/ 7 NERE
Perfect Outlook Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
RBRLES/BE Y NERE
Delta Key Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
RERIHS /B e MERE
Ever Favour Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Property investment
KAIEFR DA £ 18T NERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020
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41.

42,

43.

ZECTE=A=+—HILFE

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

4. TEME LT (&)

Place of Issued ordinary/

incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name operation share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities

FE&L/ BERITEER/ NN
a1 mehy AmRA EEERED L TEER

Direct Indirect
B# filf
BMBARHEGRAR Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property development
(notes BiH5E1, 2)

REARE AR%50,000,0007T NELR
Lever Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 - 100%  Treasury investment
FZERIBERAF 0 500,000 7T EBEE
Magnus Concordia Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Management services and

Management Limited treasury investment
BREEERBRAF N 18T ERRBRERRE
Notes: B3 -
1. The entities are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment 1. SERIINIBEDE 2 7M.
enterprises.
2. Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & 2. RIEBBL KGN BRI LK ESE
Young global network. A S — B AR EZ .

3. The entities were acquired through a business combination during the year as 3. ZEETRDRFNEAEBEHIRE FEHNEG

detailed in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative amounts in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements have been re-presented to conform with the
current year’s presentation. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, this would better reflect the financial performances of the
Group.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 29 June 2020.

42.

43.

BB HRMEES -

ERENEFRREIBZFEAKEFAREAN
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FERINESH

Investment Properties REWE

The following list contains investment properties held by the Group as at 31 AEBR T -_FE=F=+—HEFE2REWE

March 2020. FHNRTXe
Location Term Usage Group’s interest
b B HAHR Az rEBEERER
Shop B, Ground Floor, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Wuhu Residence, R HATE 49 [BES

No. 111 Wuhu Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
E

BEALHY
HOHAT11158
HWE
T BRI

Shop D, Ground Floor, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Wuhu Residence, HEAFR A [BES
No. 111 Wuhu Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
G
BEATH)
HOMAT11158
HRE
H DRy &

Shops 3, 4 and 5, Ground Floor, Medium lease Commercial 100%
Parkes Residence, HEAFR A [EES
No. 101 Parkes Street,
Kowloon,
Hong Kong
G
BE
B in+E1015%
30 e %F
583 - 45504

6th Floor, Chengdu Digital Plaza, Medium lease Commercial 100%
No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth Portion, HhERFR A [GES

Wuhou District, Chengdu,

Sichuan Province, the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”)

REEARLAME ([HE])

e

B ER T R R =

AR FEI PO ER15%

PR EB TS 5612
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FRIMFER

Investment Properties (Continued) REWE (&)

Location Term Usage Group’s interest
It B HA R Jizkes rEBHEERS
Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, Medium lease Office 100%
38th Floor, R&F Yingkai Square, HEAFR A BFE

No. 16 Huaxia Road, Tianhe District,
Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
the PRC

PEERE

BEMTRE

#E K165

BHRINES

3801%F * 3802% -

3803F * 3806 % 3807 =

Properties under development BRBPYE

The following list contains principal properties under development held by AEBR " ZE-ZEF=A=+—HEHFAZTEHE

the Group as at 31 March 2020. PESEN T

Location Term Usage Group’s interest
ih B HAHR Ag rEBEHEER
Three plots of land identified Long lease Residential 100%
as land lots C1-9, C1-10 and C1-11 forming REAFEY F=

part of Zhonggang Shenhai
Forest Project, the high-tech
industrial development zone

of the Yanluyu District of
Wolong Lake in Zigong City,
Sichuan Province, the PRC
BRI

REm)IE

BEM

R E R R

FABE W B OB 1 1R

2 e ZFIRMIAR —EB
Z =@k (351 AC1-9 - C1-10%C1-114b 17 )
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Financial Summary

A5l

Results ¥iE
For the year ended 31 March
HE=HA=t-RLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FiET FET FET FHET
REVENUE WA 310,404 214,380 222,119 195,137 230,673
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE (BR),/&H (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,407 92,605
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: JEAE :
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY A G#E =B A (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,437 93,146
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Rl £ - B S (30) (541)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE (BR),/&H (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,407 92,605
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 March
R=B=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET FExT FExT FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BE®E 4,190,366 966,573 951,033 819,679 920,085
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELH (3,348,510)  (339,940)  (313,164)  (177,421)  (219,802)
NET ASSETS BEZE 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258 700,283
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: FEAE :
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY & A F]#E2535 5 A 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258 634,458
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEf | A 25 - - - - 65,825
TOTAL EQUITY gy et 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258 700,283
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